
 

 
PLAN COMMISSION / ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

AGENDA 
  

Thursday, August 25, 2022                                                                         Frankfort Village Hall        
6:30 P.M.                                                                                               432 W. Nebraska Street (Board Room) 
 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Roll Call 

 
3. Approval of Minutes of August 11, 2022 

 
4. Public Hearing: 20245 S. La Grange Road – Little Caesars (Ref #104)  

Proposed Special Use Permit to operate a Carry-Out Restaurant in the B-2 Community Business District 
(PIN: 19-09-15-103-013-0000). 

 
5. Public Hearing:  11031 W. Lincoln Highway (Pending Address Assignment) – Everbrook Academy 

Preschool/Daycare (Ref #105) 
Proposed Major Change to Planned Unit Development and a Special Use Permit for a daycare facility in the 
B4 Office District on Lot 1 in the New Lenox State Bank Subdivision (PIN: 19-09-20-301-055-0000).   

 
6. Workshop:  240 Center Road – Oltman Residence  

Future Public Hearing Request: Construction of a new single-family home for the property located at 240 
Center Road, zoned R-2, requiring 3 variances.  
(PIN: 19-09-28-227-013-0000)  

 
7. Public Comments 
 
8. Village Board & Committee Updates  

 
9. Other Business 

 
10. Attendance Confirmation (September 8, 2022) 

 
11. Adjournment 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
All applicants are advised to be present when the meeting is called to order.  Agenda items are generally reviewed in the order 
shown on the agenda, however, the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals reserves the right to amend the agenda and consider 
items in a different order. The Commission may adjourn its meeting to another day prior to consideration of all agenda items.  All 
persons interested in providing public testimony are encouraged to do so.  If you wish to provide public testimony, please come 
forward to the podium and state your name for the record and address your comments and questions to the Chairperson. 



1 
 

 

 

MINUTES 

MEETING OF VILLAGE OF FRANKFORT PLAN 
COMMISSION / ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

        August 11, 2022–VILLAGE ADMINISTRATION BUILDING    

 432 W. NEBRASKA STREET 

 

 

Call to Order:   Chair Rigoni called the meeting to order at 6:31 PM 

Commissioners Present: Chair Maura Rigoni, David Hogan, Jessica Jakubowski, Brian 
James, Will Markunas, Nichole Schaefer 

Commissioners Absent: Dan Knieriem 

Staff Present: Director of Community and Economic Development Mike 
Schwarz, Senior Planner Chris Gruba, Planner Drew Duffin 

Elected Officials Present:  None 

A. Approval of the Minutes from July 14, 2022 

Motion (#1): Approval of the minutes, as presented, from July 14, 2022 

Motion by: Jakubowski  Seconded by: James 

Approved: (4-0, Commissioners Markunas and Schaeffer abstained) 

Chair Rigoni swore in any members of the public who wished to speak at the meeting. 

B. Public Hearing: 229 N. Locust Street – Norman Variance 

Chris Gruba gave the staff report. 

Chair Rigoni asked the applicant to stand. 

Gabriel Garcia, architect for the applicant, approached the stand. He stated he was 
available to answer any questions.  

 
 



2 
 

Chair Rigoni asked if any members of the Plan Commission had any questions.  

There were none. 

Chair Rigoni opened the Public Hearing, and asked if there were any members of the 
public who wished to speak. 

There were no comments.  

Motion (#2): Motion to close the public hearing. 

Motion by: Schaeffer   Seconded by: James 

Approved: (6-0) 

Chair Rigoni asked if the Commission had any other comments or questions. She asked 
for comments on the variations first before discussion shifted to a possible text 
amendment.  

Commissioner Hogan noted that the side yard was already nonconforming with the 
Zoning Ordinance, so he did not have any comments.  

Commissioner Jakubowski asked if the proposed side yard setbacks were exactly the 
same as the existing. 

Staff responded that they were.  

Commissioner Markunas stated that the proposal seemed appropriate for the area. 

Chair Rigoni noted that she liked the additions proposed, especially in that part of 
Frankfort. She liked that the addition would not alter the visual character of the 
neighborhood along the streetscape. She asked if the proposed brick would match the 
existing brick. 

The architect responded that the proposed brick would be stained to match the existing 
brick. There was some hardship in meeting the code due to costs. He asked if the property 
was a legal nonconformity in regard to the basement requirement.  

Staff responded that the basement requirement had been applied for any property which 
does not conform to the Zoning Ordinance. Staff was also looking for direction from the 
Plan Commission on how to address the regulation in the future through a potential Text 
Amendment. 

Chair Rigoni stated she would like others to understand that the current regulation, 
applied to all nonconforming properties, was restrictive. She asked for the thoughts of the 
other members of the Plan Commission. 



3 
 

Commissioner Hogan remarked that the current case was the third recent case which 
required a basement variation.  

Commissioner Schaeffer noted that in this case, a first-floor addition pushed the property 
out of compliance with the regulation. In her opinion, granting a variation for the 
basement size was alright in that case. A home which was torn down and rebuilt which 
sought a variation for the basement would not be allowable. A future change to the 
regulation should consider factors such as the number of floors on the home, the size of 
the addition, and whether the project in question was an addition or new construction.  

Commissioner Markunas agreed, and added that other nuances arising from the 
conditions of the site should be considered as well, such as size, shape, and location of 
both the home and the basement.  

The architect added that there is often a large construction impact when expanding a 
basement. Some older homes might require a large amount of work to bring into 
compliance.  

Commissioner James stated that he liked to see older homes renovated, and did not want 
to have regulations in place that would discourage the practice. 

Chair Rigoni suggested that the size of a basement did not really seem like a zoning 
matter in the first place.  

Mike Schwarz suggested that staff could go back through Village records to determine 
the original intent behind the regulation, and move forward from there.  

Motion (#3): Recommend the Village Board approve the variance from Article 6, 
Section B, Part 1 of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance to permit a north side 
yard setback of 7’ 6”, whereas at least 10’ is required with a total of 25’ on both sides, 
resulting in a deficiency of 6’ ½”, for the property located at 229 Locust Street, in 
accordance with the reviewed plans, public testimony and Findings of Fact. 
 
Motion by: Markunas   Seconded by: Schaeffer 

Approved: (6-0) 

Motion (#4): Recommend the Village Board approve a variance from Article 6, Section 
B, Part 2(l) of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance to permit the construction of a 
basement that is 50.9% of the area of the ground floor of the house whereas 80% is 
required, for the property located at 229 Locust Street in accordance with the reviewed 
plans, public testimony, and Findings of Fact. 
 
Motion by: Jakubowski  Seconded by: Schaeffer 



4 
 

Approved: (6-0) 

C. Public Hearing: 21195 S. La Grange Road – Wild Flower Hair Salon 

Drew Duffin gave the staff report. 

The applicant, Sydney White, approached the podium.  

Chair Rigoni asked how the proposed use differed from the previous use.  

Staff responded that the current use did not offer massage services, which were offered 
by the previous tenant. In addition, the applicant would occupy less space than the 
previous tenant had.  

Chair Rigoni confirmed that the use was the same, but was less intense than the previous 
tenant.  

Chair Rigoni asked if there were any comments from the public.  

There were none.  

Motion (#5): Motion to close the public hearing.  

Motion by: Schaeffer  Seconded by: Markunas 

Approved: (6-0) 

Commissioner Markunas stated he agreed there was no issue with the amount of parking 
on the site.  

Commissioner James agreed he saw no issue with parking. He stated that the required 
parking for the dentist’s office on the site seemed high. 

Chair Rigoni clarified for the Plan Commission that the first motion for this item was a 
formal acknowledgement of the parking, rather than a variation requested by the 
applicant.  

Motion (#6): Approve an adjustment to the total Zoning Ordinance-required parking for 
the subject property based on the availability of both joint parking and shared parking for 
the proposed salon and the current office tenants. 
 
Motion by: Schaeffer  Seconded by: Markunas 
 
Approved: (6-0) 
 



5 
 

Motion (#7): Recommend the Village Board approve a Special Use Permit for Personal 
Services for a salon located at 21195 S. La Grange Road, Units 1B and 1C, in accordance 
with the submitted plans, public testimony, and Findings of Fact. 
 
Motion by: Schaeffer  Seconded by: Jakubowski 
 
Approved: (6-0) 
 

D. Workshop: 213 Nebraska Street – Plantz Residence 

Chris Gruba gave the staff report.  

Chair Rigoni asked the applicant to step forward. 

Gabriel Garcia approached the stand, the architect for the applicant. He asked if he should 
point out some of the changes proposed. 

Chair Rigoni said he should. 

The architect pointed out that the garage was small, only 1.5 cars wide. The regulations 
for the height of accessory structures was limiting, particularly for the slope of the roof of 
the garage. The applicant wanted the pitch of the garage to match the pitch of the home. 
It was historically appropriate to have a higher roof pitch, since in the past garages stored 
carriages. He stated that he brought color renderings to show how the originally proposed 
garage matched the proposed changes to the house. 

Chair Rigoni asked if the request for a higher roof pitch on the garage was for 
architectural reasons or functional reasons. 

The architect responded that the request was an architectural consideration. In regard to 
impervious lot coverage, one of the changes made to comply with code was a reduced 
patio area, and the removal of sidewalks which led from the garage to the back door of 
the home. With the changes, the proposed patio was now very small, only eight feet by 
eight feet. This was done so that the home was at least ten feet away from the garage. 

Chair Rigoni asked staff for clarification on that regulation. 

Staff responded that patios are defined as accessory structures, and that accessory 
structures needed to be at leas ten feet away from the main structure. 

Staff responded that the patio counted as part of the main structure, and that accessory 
structures needed to be at least ten feet away from the main structure.  

Chair Rigoni asked what the patio was going to be made of.  



6 
 

The architect responded that they would be using pavers.  

Chair Rigoni noted that she thought the ten-foot separation requirement related only to 
bulk, not paved surfaces, and was designed for fire safety reasons.  

Staff noted that patios must be set back at least 10’ from property lines and from other 
accessory structures, but that the text could be amended again if needed. 

The architect stated that the patio was more landscaping than anything else. There was no 
sidewalk from the garage to the back door, either, and was removed to meet the 
impervious coverage regulation. He understood that the applicant was asking for a lot of 
variances, but there was not much yard on the site to begin with.  

Chair Rigoni opened up the discussion to the other six variances the applicant originally 
requested in addition to the five presented. She cautioned other members of the Plan 
Commission to be limited in their comments since they did not have the same amount of 
information for the additional six as for the original five.  

Commissioner Markunas asked staff to explain which aspects of the existing house were 
nonconforming.  

Staff responded that the front yard setback was existing nonconforming, but the 
nonconformity was being increased. The non-masonry materials and accessory structure 
setbacks were nonconforming as well, but required variations. 

The architect noted that the design altered the location and dimensions of the garage’s 
footprint to avoid flooding.  

Chair Rigoni asked what the maximum rear yard coverage calculation was.  

Staff responded that they calculated 37%, whereas 30% was allowed. 

The architect noted that another linear foot, or 18 square feet, was added to the garage.  

Staff remarked that the variation for accessory structures was increasing in intensity then.  

Chair Rigoni summarized that front yard setbacks and lot coverage were increasing in 
intensity. She asked if any of the members of the Plan Commission had any comments 
about the masonry requirement. 

There were none. 

Chair Rigoni turned the discussion to the accessory building setback. She asked the 
applicant what was to the north of the garage.  

Staff responded that another garage was to the north. 



7 
 

Chair Rigoni asked if the other members of the Plan Commission had any comments.  

There were none.  

Chair Rigoni asked the applicant why they did not shorten the garage’s length. 

The architect responded that they wanted to allow tandem parking in lieu of side-by-side 
parking. 

Commissioner Hogan noted that the garage on the other side of the alley was larger than 
the one proposed by the applicant.  

The architect reiterated that they were only adding 18 square feet to the garage. 

Chair Rigoni remarked that no portion of the proposed house would be located within the 
required rear yard.  

Commissioner Markunas noted there was no real visual encroachment either. 

Commissioner Schaeffer agreed that it would not impact the existing yard.  

Commissioner Markunas said that it was a difficult piece of property to work on.  

Chair Rigoni stated that meeting the square footage required by the code was hard due to 
the dimensions of the lot. The code set a maximum at 20%, and 33.2% was proposed.  

Commissioner Markunas asked what the existing lot coverage was. 

Staff responded that the existing lot coverage was 23.2%. 

Chair Rigoni asked whether if the property were on a standard 15,000 square foot lot, it 
would meet the 20% requirement.  

Staff responded it would.  

Commissioner Markunas calculated the lot coverage for the property as if it were on a 
15,000 square foot lot.  

Chair Rigoni asked for any other comments while Commissioner Markunas completed 
the calculations.  

Commissioner James noted that past variations that were granted nearby had higher lot 
coverage rates that 33%.  

Commissioner Markunas stated that lot coverage on a typical R2 lot would be 10%.  



8 
 

Discussion continued comparing the existing site to the R2 regulations. The proposed 
home was 2,602 square feet whereas the minimum house size is 2,600 square feet, now 
complying with the Ordinance. 

Commissioner Markunas stated he understood the reason behind requesting so many 
variances, given the dimensions of the lot. The proposed changes seemed appropriate for 
the site and would have been appropriate for a typical R2 property.  

Commissioner Schaeffer noted that she agreed with the proposed changes from both a 
qualitative and quantitative standpoint.  

Commissioner James stated he saw no issue with the proposed lot coverage. 

Commissioner Hogan asked if the applicant had shared their plans with the neighbors yet. 

The architect replied that they had not.  

Chair Rigoni asked for any other comments on lot coverage. 

There were none. 

Chair Rigoni asked for comments about the front yard setback. 

The architect noted that the proposed porch was adding to the existing porch. In his 
experience the Village liked seeing porches added to homes. 

Chair Rigoni stated she saw this project as essentially a brand-new house, which made it 
hard to justify the addition of such a large porch. The applicants would then be the closest 
to the front lot line along the whole block. The new façade was not similar to the existing 
one. Losing two trees to install it was also a hard sell.  

The applicant stated that the porch created a more inviting feel for the home. 

Commissioner Markunas stated that the porch was something he liked. It tied the look of 
the home in with others along the street.  

The architect stated that there was limited space in front of the home.  

Commissioner Schaeffer recalled a case heard by the Plan Commission earlier in the year 
somewhere along Oregon Street. They had also added a porch to their home. The Plan 
Commission approved the addition of that home because of the positive aesthetic 
changes. She also noted that some subdivisions in the Village varied the distances of 
homes from the front lot lines, and wondered how bad that might look in this context.  

The applicant asked if the existing home could be shown on the screen.  

Staff pulled up Google Street View of the home.  



9 
 

Commissioner Hogan asked if the porch would replace the landscaping in front of the 
house currently, and not come closer forward than the existing brick wall which 
surrounded the front stairs. 

Staff said that was correct. 

Chair Rigoni suggested that her issue with the porch then was with the volume. The 
proposal included a full-width porch, where the existing home only had a partial-width 
porch. 

Commissioner Markunas asked if the applicant intended to add any trees to replace the 
two that would be removed.  

The applicant stated that there was an intention to landscape the property, but no formal 
plans existed yet. Looking at the existing porch on Street View, the addition would not 
come any closer to the front lot line than the existing brick wall did. The expansion 
would not look as large in reality as the drawing suggested.  

Chair Rigoni stated that the fact that the proposed porch was covered added to the 
bulkiness. In her opinion, the existing uncovered porch looked fine. 

The applicant noted that they tried to match the design of the house immediately to their 
east.  

Staff noted that the property being emulated was 211 W. Nebraska. 

Commissioner James remarked that the proposed addition would be ten feet closer to the 
front lot line than 211 W. Nebraska. 

Commissioner Schaeffer stated that the depth of the porch at the subject property was 7 
feet, 4 inches. The covered porch at 211 W. Nebraska is set back further from the 
property line, but did not feel massive. 

Chair Rigoni stated that the use of brick added to the feeling of massiveness. 

The architect noted that the design of the addition treated the property as a corner lot, and 
so wrapped the porch around the side in order to increase curb appeal.  

Commissioner Jakubowski stated that the proposal was an improvement to the site. She 
expressed a desire to focus more on the property in question rather than discuss the 
neighboring property. She said that the project overall would enhance the neighborhood. 

Commissioner James agreed, saying that the home would look good to anyone passing 
by. 



10 
 

Staff suggested that if the Plan Commission made a favorable recommendation to the 
Village Board, it could add a condition that prevented the porch from being enclosed in 
the future.  

Chair Rigoni stated that if they specified that the porch was covered, which did not move 
the front façade closer to the front lot line, that could achieve a similar result. 

Commissioner Hogan agreed, and said that the covered porch looked great. That aesthetic 
effect would be lost if the porch were ever enclosed. 

Chair Rigoni stated she may be in the minority, but believed that the extent of the 
changes transformed the property into functionally a new house. The proposed project 
was a complete deviation from the surrounding neighborhood. 

The applicant noted that the structure was only 21 feet wide. 

Chair Rigoni responded that there was also a large addition being proposed.  

Commissioner Markunas liked the fact that the home deviated from the neighborhood, 
though he did not want to be rude to members of the Plan Commission who disagreed 
with him. He expressed having an issue with the front setback, but noted that the design 
of the house generally worked because the property acts like a corner lot, since it’s 
adjacent to an alley.  

Chair Rigoni agreed about the corner lot considerations. She stated she was trying to 
strike a balance herself. She wanted to be comfortable in her understanding of what 
existed now before deciding on the addition. It was obvious to those present what parts of 
the home would be from the addition and what would be original, but that may not be the 
case in the future, and she wanted to avoid setting the wrong precedent. She asked if there 
were any other comments on the height of the detached garage or the impervious lot 
coverage. 

Commissioner Markunas asked what height the applicant was seeking for the detached 
garage. 

Staff responded that they were looking for a 20’ 6” height.  

Commissioner James asked how that height compared to the large garage across the 
alley.  

The architect responded that their request was for a greater height, but the garage across 
the alley was wider.  

Commissioner Markunas asked what the pitch on the home would be. 

The architect responded that it would be 12/12. 



11 
 

Commissioner Markunas responded that the originally proposed garage would match the 
proposed additions to the home.  

The applicant asked if staff had included a photograph of the flooding garage in their 
report. 

Staff had not.  

Laura Plantz, one of the applicants, approached the Plan Commission to share a photo of 
the flooded parts of the garage.  

Chair Rigoni stated that if the Plan Commission were to approve the height variation for 
the accessory structure, they would need to be clear that the change was for architectural 
reasons only and was not, for example, an accessory dwelling.  

Mike Schwarz noted that zoning regulations in other municipalities measured the height 
of a structure to the midpoint of the roof, so as to give architects flexibility when 
designing the pitch of the roof. He was aware that the definition was just changed, but 
wanted the Plan Commission to be aware of the other method. 

Commissioner Markunas remarked it might be a good change to make. 

Chair Rigoni asked the applicant to clarify the reason for a lot coverage variation request.  

The applicant stated it would be to increase the size of the patio and to add a sidewalk 
leading from the garage to the home.  

Chair Rigoni noted that the applicant was currently 30 square feet under the allowed 
impervious coverage maximum with the presented changes. 

The architect stated he was aware, but wanted to go with the original addition plans if 
possible.  

Commissioner Markunas confirmed that the patio in the rear of the home would be a 
patio, and not a deck. He also asked what materials would be used for the patio. 

The applicant responded that they would use pavers.  

Commissioner Jakubowski asked what color the pavers would be. 

The applicant responded that they did not know. 

Commissioner Schaeffer asked whether the pavers would be uniform. 

The architect responded that they would use uniform blue stone pavers.  



12 
 

Commissioner Markunas stated that pavers were an easier thing to approve for him, 
especially for a walkway. 

Commissioner Schaeffer asked what the proposed walkway would look like and where it 
would go. 

The architect responded that the walkway would run alongside the garage and lead to the 
home, allowing someone to park near the garage door and exit more conveniently from 
the garage door, and walk to the home. 

Chair Rigoni asked what the impervious lot coverage calculation would be then.  

The architect responded that it would be 43%. 

Chair Rigoni recalled that the only time the Plan Commission approved something 
similar was for a property on a 5,000 square foot lot, though she was trying to recall a 
more similar case.  

Commissioner Schaeffer noted that there was a similar case for a proposed home on 49 
N. White Street. In that case, there was barely any grass anyway. 

The applicant stated that all of the property’s green space was on the west side. 

Commissioner Hogan noted that a nearby home seen on the aerial photographs used 
stepping stones as a path from the detached garage to the home. He asked whether that 
was considered landscaping.  

Chair Rigoni asked how the patio would be increased. 

The architect responded saying the proposed patio was 8’ by 8’, which was small. 12’ by 
12’ is typically needed to allow for dining on the patio. 

Chair Rigoni asked what the setback was for the patio. 

Staff stated it was ten feet. 

The architect agreed with a previous comment, stating that a larger patio would not be a 
fire nor a structural concern.  

Chair Rigoni asked if the variation request for the impervious lot coverage would be 
43%. 

The architect responded that they would need to calculate it to be sure. 

Chair Rigoni asked if the number would be around 43%.  

The architect said it would be.  



13 
 

Chair Rigoni said that there was a possibility the Plan Commission would hear that 
request, depending on the materials that were used.  

The applicant responded saying they could bring a sample for next time. 

Chair Rigoni said that if the home had an attached garage, she would be less amenable to 
granting so many variations. She confirmed with the applicant that the only trees to be 
removed were the two marked at the front of the house. She stated that the applicant 
should work with staff to try and make the next meeting a public hearing. So long as the 
calculations did not result in something unreasonably different than what was discussed, 
the next meeting could be a public hearing.  

For future reference, staff asked the Plan Commission whether they should work with 
applicants to try to minimize the number of variances requested prior to a workshop or 
whether the plans should come before the Commission as originally submitted, for the 
Commission to then decide which variances were excessive. Staff recalled the Plan 
Commission’s hesitation to some of the variances requested at 143 Kansas, in which the 
applicant requested 8 variations.  

Chair Rigoni said that staff should continue to do work with the property owner to reduce 
the number of variations requested, but that each property had to be considered 
differently.  

Mr. Garcia noted to the Commission that Mr. Gruba was good to work with. 
 

E. Workshop: 25 Carpenter Street – Kerley Residence 

Drew Duffin gave the staff report. 

Chair Rigoni asked if the current home was not constructed of masonry. 

Staff responded it was not. 

Commissioner Markunas stated he had no issues with the building materials.  

Chair Rigoni asked what the front yard setback was for the house to the north. 

Staff responded they were unsure. 

Chair Rigoni asked that that information be provided at the next meeting. She then asked 
if the north side yard setback was going to be maintained. 

Staff responded it was. 

Chair Rigoni shifted discussion to the lot coverage on the site. She asked if the lot 
coverage calculations for the existing site included the detached garage.  



14 
 

Staff responded it did. 

Commissioner Markunas asked what the size of the lot was. 

Staff responded the lot was 8,000 square feet.  

Chair Rigoni remarked that the applicant was proposing 29% lot coverage.  

Commissioner Markunas noted that the lot was just over 50% the size of a typical R2 lot. 
He had no issue with the lot coverage.  

Chair Rigoni noted that Carpenter Street was narrower and less busy than other 
downtown streets such as Nebraska Street. She asked the applicant to be sure that what 
they brought to the Plan Commission was everything they wanted to do on the site, so 
they did not come back later to request more variances. Adding more driveway to the east 
of the proposed attached garage would require another variance, but is not shown on the 
submitted plans. A larger driveway may put the site into nonconformity with the 
impervious lot coverage.  

Commissioners noted and commented on Carpenter Street being narrower than other 
streets in the Village.  

F. Public Comments 

There were none. 

G. Village Board & Committee Updates 

Schwarz noted that the following matters that previously came before the PC/ZBA were 
approved by the Village Board at its meeting on August 1: 

• Root Residence Variations for 324 Center Road – the ordinance was approved. 

In addition, an item which was on the agenda for the cancelled July 28th meeting of the 
Plan Commission for Facen4Ward, an indoor entertainment Special Use Permit for 20879 
S. La Grange Road, was withdrawn by the applicants. They may file in the future at a 
different address. 

At its meeting on August 10, the Committee-of-the-Whole made a recommendation to 
the Village Board to enter into a purchase and sale agreement with Integrus Development 
for Village property at 7 N. White Street, which is the western/front portion of the Prairie 
Park parking lot. The project will require future review by the Plan Commission and the 
Historic Preservation Commission.  

Chair Rigoni asked about the status of 2 Smith Street.  



15 
 

Schwarz responded that there were four responses to the RFP for the sale of 2 Smith 
Street and two of those proposals appear to remain on the table for Committee 
consideration.  One of those would reuse the existing building and the other would 
develop a new building on the existing parking lot closer to Smith Street.  The latter 
proposal may be withdrawn as it appears that the developer is focused on 7 N. White 
Street property.  

Chair Rigoni asked how many proposals were submitted for 7 N. White Street.  

Schwarz responded only one proposal was submitted. He recalled that another 
development was proposed for the same site in 2018. 

Chair Rigoni stated she hoped the current proposal for 7 N. White Street would be as 
good as the previous one was.  

H. Other Business 

There was no other business.  

I. Attendance Confirmation (July 28th, 2022) 

Chair Rigoni asked the Commissioners to notify staff if they will not be in attendance on 
August 25th, and to notify to staff once they knew they could not attend.  

Motion (#5): Adjournment 8:32 P.M. 

Motion by: Schaeffer  Seconded by: Markunas 

Unanimously approved by voice vote. 

Approved August 25th, 2022 

As Presented_____ As Amended_____ 

_____________________/s/ Maura Rigoni, Chair 

_____________________/s/ Secretary 

 

 

 



1 

Planning Commission / ZBA      August 25, 2022 

Project: Little Caesars Pizza 
Meeting Type: Public Hearing 
Requests: Special Use Permit for a carry-out restaurant 
Location: 20245 S South LaGrange Road, Suite 3 
Applicant: Little Caesar Enterprises 
Prop. Owner: National Shopping Plazas, Inc. 
Consultants: Jennifer Thorstenson, MRV Architects; Jeanne Armando, MRV Architects; Peter Gillis, Little 

Caesar Enterprises  
Representative: MRV Architects 
Report By:  Drew Duffin 

Site Details 

Lot Size: 156,903 square feet (+/-)   Figure 1: Location Map  
PIN(s): 19-09-15-103-013-0000
Existing Zoning: B2 Community Business with a Special Use

Permit for a PUD (Frankfort Commons II)
Prop.  Zoning: B2 Community Business with a Special Use

Permit for a Carry-out Restaurant
Building(s) / Lot(s): 2 buildings / 1 lot 
Adjacent Land Use Summary: 

Land Use Comp. Plan Zoning 

Subject 
Property 

Commercial    General Commercial B2 PUD 

North  Office (Bank)    General Commercial B4 PUD 

South Vacant Open Space ER PUD 

East Commercial   General Commercial B2 PUD 

West Commercial    General Commercial B2 

Project Summary 

The applicant, Little Caesar Enterprises, is requesting a Special Use Permit for a Carry-Out Restaurant for a Little 
Caesars Pizza located at 20245 S. LaGrange Road, Suite 3. The owner of the property is Humphrey Property Group, 
LLC.  

Attachments 
1. 2020 Aerial Photograph from Will County GIS
2. Site Photographs taken 7.18.22
3. Findings of Fact completed by the applicant
4. Plan Commission minutes from 5.28.15 and 9.10.15 regarding the Frankfort Commons 2 PUD
5. Equipment Plan received 6.17.22
6. Proposed changes to the exterior elevation received 7.19.22
7. Engineering Plans for the Frankfort Commons II PUD dated 7.23.15



2 

 

Analysis 
 

In consideration of the request, staff offers the following points of discussion: 
 

1. The site included the following uses: Mathnasium, T-Mobile, Bellavan Nails, and Dollar Tree. O’Reilly’s 
Auto Parts is located in a separate building, but is a part of the PUD. Suite 3 is situated between 
Mathnasium and Dollar Tree.  
 

2. As proposed, Little Caesars will require 16 spaces per the Zoning Ordinance. Six spaces are required based 
on the square footage of the space, and ten are required for ten employees in the largest work shift.  
 

3. Existing parking on the site does not meet the requirements in the Zoning Ordinance. The following table 
breaks down the parking requirements per the Zoning Ordinance in three different tenancy scenarios: 
 

Tenant With Previous Tenant 
(Sprint) 

Empty Suite 3 With Little Caesars 

Building A    

    O’Reilly’s 37 Spaces (9 
employees, 7200 SF) 

37 Spaces (9 
employees, 7200 SF) 

37 Spaces (9 
employees, 7200 SF) 

Building B    

    Dollar Tree 46 Spaces (9 
employees, 9100 SF) 

46 Spaces (9 
employees, 9100 SF) 

46 Spaces (9 
employees, 9100 SF) 

    Mathnasium 13 Spaces (5 
employees, 1,759 SF) 

13 Spaces (5 
employees, 1,759 SF) 

13 Spaces (5 
employees, 1,759 SF) 

    Bellavan Nails 17 Spaces (8 
employees, 1,769 SF) 

17 Spaces (8 
employees, 1,769 SF) 

17 Spaces (8 
employees, 1,769 SF) 

    T-Mobile 10 Spaces (4 
employees, 1,489 SF) 

10 Spaces (4 
employees, 1,489 SF) 

10 Spaces (4 
employees, 1,489 SF) 

    Suite 3 (vacant) 10 Spaces (4 
employees, 1,500 SF) 

0 Spaces 16 Spaces (10 
employees, 1,500 SF) 

Total Required 
Parking 

132 Spaces 122 Spaces 138 Spaces 

Existing Parking 125 Spaces (-7) 125 Spaces (+3) 125 Spaces (-13) 

 
4. Article 7, Section B, Part 5(b) of the Zoning Ordinance refers to adjustments to required parking.  It states 

in part:    
 

Adjustments. In all business and industrial districts, the minimum number of required parking spaces may 
be adjusted by the Plan Commission on a case-by-case basis. The petitioner for such an adjustment shall 
show to the satisfaction of the Plan Commission that adequate parking will be provided for customers, 
clients, visitors, and employees. The following provisions and factors shall be used as a basis to adjust 
parking requirements: 



3 

 
1. Evidence That Actual Parking Demands will be Less Than Ordinance Requirements. The petitioner shall 
submit written documentation and data to the satisfaction of the Plan Commission that the operation 
will require less parking than the Ordinance requires. 
 
2. Availability of Joint, Shared or Off-Site Parking. The petitioner shall submit written 
documentation to the satisfaction of the Plan Commission that joint, shared or offsite 
parking spaces are available to satisfy the parking demand. 

    
a) Agreements shall be provided which demonstrate evidence that either parking lots are large enough 

to accommodate multiple users (joint parking) or that parking spaces will be shared at specific times 
of the day (shared parking, where one activity uses the spaces during daytime hours and another 
activity uses the spaces during evening hours.)  

b) Off-site parking lots may account for not more than 50-percent of the required parking and shall be 
located not more than three hundred (300) feet from the principal use that it is intended to serve. 

 

The Plan Commission may choose to either allow an adjustment to the parking requirements, or it may 
choose to table the current motion to allow the applicant request a variance.  

5. Staff took photographs of the site and the current parking situation on the afternoon of July 18th, 
2022. Staff visited the site previously on July 7th and July 1st, 2022 and the lot was only approximately 
half full in front of Building B (the multi-tenant building) and nearly empty in front of Building A 
(O’Reilly’s). There is a possibility that summer vacation may have had an impact on parking demand, 
since fewer students might attend tutoring sessions outside of the school year.  
 

6. When the Plan Commission reviewed the Frankfort Commons II PUD plans on May 28, 2015 and 
September 10, 2015, they noted that: “The applicant agreed to remove the three parking stalls at the 
northeast corner of Building B and that landscaping would be added to the grassy area immediately to 
the south.” 
 

7. The attached Engineering Plans prepared by Manhard Consulting show parking calculated at 5 spaces per 
1000 square feet. This ratio is a fairly common Zoning Ordinance requirement for multi-tenant 
commercial buildings in other communities. Using the 5 spaces per 1000 standard, the PUD needs and 
meets the 125-parking space requirement. This differs from the required parking per the Frankfort Zoning 
Ordinance, which is 138 spaces, as outlined above. 
 

8. The hours of operation for the various tenants will impact the availability of parking at different times of 
day and throughout the week. The following table shows the hours of operation for each tenant Monday 
to Sunday:  
 

Day Hours 
O’Reilly’s T-Mobile Bellavan 

Nails 
Mathnasium Little 

Caesars 
Dollar Tree 

Weekdays 
(M-Th) 

7:30a to 
9:00p 

10:00a to 
8:00p 

9:30a to 
7:30p 

3:00p to 
7:00p 

10:30a to 
10:00p 

8:00a to 
10:00p 

Friday 7:30a to 
9:00p 

10:00a to 
8:00p 

9:30a to 
7:30p 

Closed 10:30a to 
11:00p 

8:00a to 
10:00p 

Saturday 7:30a to 
9:00p 

10:00a to 
8:00p 

9:30a to 
6:00p 

10:00a to 
2:00p 

10:30a to 
11:00p 

8:00a to 
10:00p 

Sunday 8:00a to 
8:00p 

11:00a to 
6:00p 

Closed Closed 10:30a to 
10:00p 

8:00a to 
8:00p 

 



4 

9. The number of people patronizing the current uses likely decreases during typical dinner hours (6:00 to
8:00) Monday through Friday, dropping off completely as they close for the evening. At this same time,
traffic to Little Caesars would likely increase as a result of people picking up dinner. While the magnitude
of the change in traffic levels cannot be predicted ahead of time, it is likely that the decrease in traffic to
the other uses would be greater than the increase in traffic going to Little Caesars, which would result in
greater parking availability during Little Caesars’ peak times.

10. On the weekend, traffic to the other uses at this location would likely be steady throughout the day, while
Little Caesars will be busiest during meal times. However, two tenants, Bellavan Nails and Mathnasium
are closed on Saturday evenings. T-Mobile, Bellavan Nails, and Mathnasium are all closed on Sunday
evenings, at times when Little Caesars faces a dinner rush.

11. Apart from signage, no exterior changes to the building are proposed.

Standards for Special Uses 

For reference during the workshop, Article 3, Section B, Part 6 of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance lists 
“findings” or “standards” that the Plan Commission must use to evaluate every special use request.  

The Plan Commission shall make written findings of fact and shall refer to any exhibits containing plans and 
specifications for the proposed special use, which shall remain a part of the permanent record of the Plan 
Commission. The Plan Commission shall submit same, together with its recommendation to the Village Board for 
final action. No special use shall be recommended by the Plan Commission, unless such Commission shall find:  

a. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not be detrimental to, or endanger,
the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare.

b. That the special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate
vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property values within
the neighborhood.

c. That the establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and
improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district.

d. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at
variance with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already
constructed, or in the course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of the
applicable district, as to cause a substantial depreciation in the property values within the neighborhood.

e. That the adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or necessary facilities have been or are being
provided.

f. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to
minimize traffic congestion in the public streets.

g. That the special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in which
it is located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified by the Village Board, pursuant
to the recommendations of the Plan Commission.

Affirmative Motion  



5 

For the Commission’s/Board’s consideration, staff is providing the following proposed affirmative motion.  

Recommend the Village Board approve a Special Use Permit for Carry-Out restaurant for a carry-out restaurant 
located at 20245 S. La Grange Road, Suite 3, in accordance with the submitted plans, public testimony, and Findings 
of Fact, conditioned upon no delivery vehicles being parked on-site overnight. 



Disclaimer of Warranties and Accuracy of Data: Although the data developed by Will County for its maps, websites, and Geographic 
Information System has been produced and processed from sources believed to be reliable, no warranty, expressed or implied, is made 
regarding accuracy, adequacy, completeness, legality, reliability or usefulness of any information. This disclaimer applies to both isolated and 
aggregate uses of the information. The County and elected officials provide this information on an "as is" basis. All warranties of any kind, 
express or implied, including but not limited to the implied warranties of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, freedom from 
contamination by computer viruses or hackers and non-infringement of proprietary rights are disclaimed. Changes may be periodically made 
to the information herein; these changes may or may not be incorporated in any new version of the publication. If you have obtained 
information from any of the County web pages from a source other than the County pages, be aware that electronic data can be altered 
subsequent to original distribution. Data can also quickly become out of date. It is recommended that careful attention be paid to the contents 
of any data, and that the originator of the data or information be contacted with any questions regarding appropriate use. Please direct any 
questions or issues via email to gis@willcountyillinois.com.

Notes

Legend

0.14

1: 4,514

0 Miles

Aerial Photo - 20245 S. La Grange Road

WGS_1984_Web_Mercator_Auxiliary_Sphere

Projection

7/21/2022 Date:

0.07

Address Points

Roadways

Federal

State

County

Local and Private

Parcels LY

Townships



 

Overview of Pictures 

 



 
Picture 1: Westernmost parking rows in front of building B, facing south 

 
Picture 2: South part of parking lot in front of Building B, facing east 



 
Picture 3: North side of parking lot in front of Building B, facing east 

 

 
Picture 4: Parking in front of Building A, facing northeast 



 
Picture 5: Parking behind Building A, facing north 

 
Picture 6: Parking behind Building A, facing northeast 



 
Picture 7: Parking behind Building B, facing southwest 

 

 
Picture 8: Parking behind Building B, facing southeast 



Application for Plan Commission / Zoning Board of Appeals Review 
Special Use Permit Findings of Fact 

Article 3, Section E, Part 6 of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance lists “findings” or “standards” that 
the Plan Commission must use to evaluate every special use permit request. The Plan Commission must 
make the following seven findings based upon the evidence provided. To assist the Plan Commission in 
their review of the special use permit request(s), please provide responses to the following “Findings of 
Fact.” Please attach additional pages as necessary.  

1. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not be detrimental to, or
endanger, the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare.

2. That the special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the
immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair
property values within the neighborhood.

3. That the establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and
improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district.

4. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at
variance with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already
constructed, or in the course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of the
applicable district, as to cause a substantial depreciation in the property values within the
neighborhood.

The maintenance and operation of the proposed take out only restaurant will not be
detrimental to, or endanger, the public health, safety, morals comfort or general
welfare.

The Little Caesars take out only restaurant, will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other
propterty in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and
impair the property values within the neighborhood.  This new use is consistent with the businesses in
the surrounding area.

The proposed Little Caesars restaurant will not impede the normal and orderly
development and improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the
district.

The proposed Little Caesars restaurant will be located within an existing tenant space
in a multi-tenant building.  We are not proposing to make any modifications to the
exterior facade other than the addition of a wall sign.  This would not change the
existing character of the district.

Received 7.13.22



5. That the adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or necessary facilities have been or are being 
provided. 

 
 
 
 
 
6. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so 

designed as to minimize traffic congestion in the public streets. 
 

 

 

 

7. That the special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district 
in which it is located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified by the Village 
Board, pursuant to the recommendations of the Plan Commission. 

 
 

Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or necessary facilities are already existing to remain. 
While we are below the require parking count.  Adequate parking is available for our use.  This will be 
a take out only facility.  Little Caesars has a hot & ready concept.  The business model is to have all 
orders hot and ready, reducing and/or eliminating the need to wait for any product to be prepared.  
The parking need is minimal, as the concept provides a quick turnaround.  Customers are in and out, 
typically with no waiting for food preparation, reducing the demand for parking.

Existing ingress and egress at the shopping center will be utilized and is sufficient for 
our use. 

The special use conforms to the applicable regulations of the district in which it is located, except for the parking 
calculations for Little Caesars.  There is no differentiation from dine in vs. take out only restaurants within the 
parking code.  The demand for parking with the Little Caesars in not comparable to a dine in concept. Little 
Caesars has a hot & ready concept.  The business model is to have all orders hot and ready, reducing and/or 
eliminating the need to wait for any product to be prepared.  The parking need is minimal, as the concept provides 
a quick turnaround.  Customers are in and out, typically with no waiting for food preparation, reducing the demand 
for parking.















aduffin
Received



SIGNAGE NOT A PART OF THESE DOCUMENTS -
UNDER SEPARATE PERMIT

RACEWAY MOUNTED SIGN SECTION

FILM BORDER BLACK
TRANSLUCENT GRAPHIC
3/16" PLEXIGLAS ACRYLIC FACES

MATTE BLACK EXTERIOR COLOR
.040 ALUMINUM RETURN

1" JEWELITE TRIM CAP BLACK

U.L. LISTED TRANSFORMER BOX
(RACEWAY) & PAINTED TO

L.E.D. POWER SUPPLY

EXISTING WALL SECTION

L.E.D. ILLUMINATION
.040 ALUMINUM BACKS
WHITE INTERIOR COLOR

MATCH FASCIA

ACCESS PANEL

NOTES:  1. SIGN TO BE U.L. APPROVED & LABELED.

SIGN SQUARE FOOTAGE:

2. POWER REQUIREMENTS  4 - 7 AMPS.
3. RACEWAY TO BE PAINTED TO MATCH FASCIA.

LITTLE CAESARS STANDARD SIGN SPECIFICATION

SIGN HGT. LENGTH OUTLINE S.F. SQUARED OFF S.F.

24" 18'-1" 19 S.F. 46 S.F.
28" 20'-11" 25 S.F. 62 S.F.
32" 24'-2" 33 S.F. 82 S.F.

AMPS

4
6
7

LITTLE CAESARS SIGNS ARE TO BE MANUFACTURED BY APPROVED
LITTLE CAESARS SIGN MANUFACTURERS ONLY. CONTACT BLUELINE
1-800-447-1933 OR VISIT L.C.E. GATEWAY FOR APPROVED VENDORS

SIGN OUTLINE SIGN SQUARED OFF

20" 15'-3" 13 S.F. 33 S.F. 4

EXTERIOR ELEVATION (WEST)
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

aduffin
Received



±

PROJ. MGR.:

DRAWN BY:

DATE:

SCALE:

OF

SHEET

PROJ. ASSOC.:

D
A

TE
R

E
V

IS
IO

N
S

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y

FR
A

N
K

FO
R

T 
C

O
M

M
O

N
S

 -
 P

H
A

S
E

 II

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
FR

A
N

K
FO

R
T,

 IL
LI

N
O

IS

S
IT

E
 D

IM
E

N
S

IO
N

A
L 

A
N

D
 P

A
V

IN
G

 P
LA

N



1 

                                          

Planning Commission / ZBA                                                                                                                               August 25, 2022 

 
Project: Everbrook Academy 
Meeting Type:  Public Hearing  
Requests: Major Change to a PUD; Special Use Permit for a Daycare Center/Preschool; Special Use 

Permit for extended hours of operation 
Location: 11031 W. Lincoln Highway (Pending Address Assignment) a.k.a Lot 1 in New Lenox State 

Bank Subdivision 
Applicant:  Tom Williams, Owner’s Representative 
Prop. Owner:  REM Acquisitions, LLC 
Consultants:  Javier Cora, Architect; Scott DiGilio, Civil Engineer   
Representative: Marty Murphy, Attorney   
Report By:  Michael J. Schwarz, AICP 
 

Site Details 
 

Lot Size: 2.561 acres                                                                     Figure 1: Location Map  
PIN(s): 19-09-20-301-055-0000 
Existing Zoning:  B4 Office District, PUD 
Prop.  Zoning: B4 Office District, PUD, with a Special Use 

Permit 
 for a Daycare Center  
Building(s) / Lot(s): Vacant/undeveloped lot 
Adjacent Land Use Summary:  
 

 Land Use Comp. Plan Zoning 

Subject 
Property 

Vacant/undeveloped General Commercial B4 PUD 

North  Forest Preserve 
 

Parks / Open Space Will 
County 

A-1 
South  Single-Family  

Attached Residential 
  Single-Family 

Attached Residential 
R4 PUD 

East Single-Family  
Attached Residential 

 Single-Family 
Attached Residential 

R4 PUD 

West Commercial (Bank)  General Commercial B2 PUD 

 
 
Project Summary  
 
The applicant, Tom Williams, representing the property owner, REM Acquisitions, LLC, has filed an application 
requesting (1) a Major Change to the Prairie Crossings Planned Unit Development (PUD); (2) a Special Use Permit for 
a Daycare Center/Preschool in the B4 Office District; and (3) a Special Use Permit for extended hours of operation, 
for the property located at 11031 W. Lincoln Highway, Frankfort, Illinois (PIN: 19-09-20-301-055-0000).  
 
The Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals held an initial workshop on this matter on April 28, 2022.  At that 
workshop, the members discussed the proposed use for a daycare center/preschool, the view of the north side of 
the building and outdoor play area from Lincoln Highway and other design details.  Following that workshop the 
applicant provided a Tree Removal and Preservation Plan, provided a Photometric Plan, revised the Landscape Plan, 
and revised the building and site Signage Plan.  A second workshop was held on June 9, 2022.  At that workshop the 



2 

discussion topics included the orientation of the play area facing Route 30; changes that were made to the building 
elevations since the last workshop; lack of visual continuity with the adjacent bank, including the lesser roof pitch; 
and signage. 
 

Property Background  
 
The overall shopping center known as Prairie Crossings, located at the southeast corner of U.S. Route 30/Lincoln 
Highway, was annexed, rezoned, and granted a Special Use for a Planned Unit Development (PUD), along with other 
Special Uses for a drive-up window for a bank, a gas station, outdoor seating, sale of alcoholic beverages, and a carry-
out restaurant, on August 5, 2002 (Ordinance Nos. 1908, 1909, 1918).  From staff’s research of Village records, it 
appears that a small portion of the subject property – the “bump-out” at the southwest corner, was included in the 
Prairie Crossings PUD as depicted on the “Zoning Plan”, which is Exhibit C to the annexation agreement.  The larger 
remainder of the property appears to already have been annexed into the Village and zoned C-5 PUD per the 2001 
Zoning Map.  C-5 was the Office/Transitional District zoning classification under the former Village Zoning Ordinance 
before the current zoning classification system was adopted on September 17, 2001, as part of the current version 
of the Zoning Ordinance.  
 
In 2002, the subject property was recorded as Lot 1 in the New Lenox State Bank Subdivision (Lot 2 is the property 
which now contains the BMO Harris Bank).  
 
On January 22, 2008, the Village Board approved Ordinance No. 2439, approving a Major Planned Unit Development 
(PUD) Change for the subject property, two allow two separate office buildings with 105 total parking spaces. Office 
Building #1 was approximately 11,327 square feet and located on the northern portion of the site along U.S. Route 
30/Lincoln Highway, 30 feet from the eastern property line. Office Building #2 was approximately 8,866 square feet 
and located on the southern portion of the site, 50 feet from the southern property line. A key feature of the plan 
was a rectangular green space with raised seating area and center planter island in the middle of the parking lot 
within the center portion of the site. The proposed office buildings also mimicked the bank building (originally the 
New Lenox State Bank building, now BMO Harris Bank) in terms of architectural style, roof pitch, roof dormers, and 
building materials. Ordinance No. 2439 and associated information and various plans are attached for background 
information. Construction of the office buildings never occurred, likely due to the economic downturn during the 
Great Recession.    

 
Attachments 

1. 2020 Aerial Photograph from Will County GIS 
2. Site Photographs taken 4.21.22 
3. ALTA/NSPS Land Title and Topographic Survey dated 2.17.22, received 4.18.22 
4. Site Plan dated 3.1.22, revised/received 6.24.22 
5. Site Details dated 6.23.22, received 6.24.22 
6. Building Elevations dated 6.23.22, revised/received 6.24.22 
7. Colored Building Elevations dated 6.23.22, revised/received 6.24.22 
8. 3D Renderings dated 3.1.22, revised/received 6.24.22 
9. Material Board dated 6.23.22, received 6.24.22 
10. Sign Design Package dated 3.30.22, revised/received 6.24.22 
11. Tree Removal/Preservation Plan dated 5.24.22, received 5.25.22 
12. Landscape Plan (black and white) dated 5.23.22, received 6.24.22  
13. Playground Details dated 3.1.22, received 4.21.22 
14. Playground Equipment Plans and Details dated 4.5.22, received 4.21.22 
15. Detention Easement Agreement granting rights to the subject property dated 10.14.02, received 4.22.22  
16. Photometric Plan with Light Fixture Specifications dated 5.19.22, received 5.25.22 
17. Preliminary Engineering (Site Plan, Utility Plan, Grading Plan) dated 4.26.19, received 7.5.22 
18. Preliminary Engineering Review Comments dated 8.3.22 



3 

19. Ordinance No. 2439 with associated plans and background information 
20. Approved PC/ZBA Workshop Meeting Minutes from 6.9.22 and 4.28.22 

 
Analysis 
 

In consideration of the request, staff offers the following points of discussion: 
 
Zoning 
 

1. The applicant proposes to construct a ±12,870 sq. ft. daycare center/preschool called Everbrook Academy 
on Lot 1 in the New Lenox State Bank Subdivision, located at 11031 W. Lincoln Highway (address assignment 
pending). 

2. The subject property is 2.56 acres and is located immediately to the east of the BMO Harris Bank at 11041 
W. Lincoln Highway.  

3. The property is zoned B4 Office District, and a small portion of the property is part of the Prairie Crossings 
Planned Unit Development which contains the adjacent BMO Harris Bank and the shopping center to the 
west. The larger remainder of the property is part of an older Planned Unit Development per the 2001 
Zoning Map. 

4. A Major Change to the PUD is required because the property is currently undeveloped. The proposed 
development is a major change to the Prairie Crossings PUD (for the small “bump-out” at the southeast 
corner of the subject property), as well as a major change to a previous PUD for the larger remainder of the 
property as was depicted on the 2001 Zoning Map. 

5. A Special Use Permit for a Daycare Center/Preschool is required in the B4 Office District. 
6. The Village's Zoning Ordinance does not contain specific use standards for daycare centers/preschools. 

Parking and traffic flow are often primary areas of consideration for daycare centers/preschools. The unique 
nature of their operation may generate spikes in traffic and parking demand during peak times when 
children are being dropped off and picked up. 

 
Site Plan 
 

1. The submitted Site Plan depicts a one story, L-shaped, 12,870 square-foot daycare center/preschool 
building, situated in the central portion of the property, with the front entrance to the building oriented to 
face a proposed parking lot to the south, and the rear of the building and outdoor playground area oriented 
to face north toward Illinois Route 30/Lincoln Highway.  The main entrance would be located at the 
southwest corner of the building. 

2. Access to the proposed parking lot is via a cross-access easement through Lot 1 in the New Lenox State 
Bank Subdivision, Phase 2.  Said cross-access easement is currently improved with pavement and curb and 
gutter and serves as the driveway entrance for the existing BMO Harris Bank parking lots and drive-through 
lanes.  There is an existing signalized intersection at the eastern entrance to the Prairie Crossings Shopping 
Center, immediately to the west of the BMO Harris Bank. 

3. The proposed building complies with all required setbacks in the B4 Office District, including the minimum 
150’ front yard setback from the centerline of Route 30.  The Site Plan indicates that the rear wall of the 
building will be 115’-5” from the front property line, which is approximately 195’-5” from the centerline of 
Route 30.   

4. Increased building setbacks are provided from the residential properties to the east (50' required; more 
than 70’ provided) and from the residential properties to the south (50’ required; more than 170’ provided). 

5. The Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance requires daycare centers/preschools to provide parking at a ratio 
of one (1) space per employee plus one (1) space per ten (10) client children or adults. The applicant has 
indicated that the facility will have a maximum capacity of 150 children (this would be the total enrollment 
assuming 100 percent occupancy), with ages 6 weeks up to 12 years, and 15 staff during the busiest times, 
resulting in a parking requirement of 30 total spaces. The facility likely will not operate at maximum capacity 
at all times and on all days, as some children will attend on a part time basis. 

6. A total of 41 parking spaces are depicted on the Site Plan, including 2 handicap accessible spaces, which 
complies with the Zoning Ordinance. 



4 

7. For a previous daycare proposal on a different property in February 2019 (The Learning Experience located 
at 20970 S. La Grange Road) staff reviewed the American Planning Association publication "Parking 
Standards" which recommends daycare facilities provide parking based upon either capacity (students and 
teachers) or square footage of the facility. Recommendations based upon capacity ranged from one space 
for every 10-15 students and one space per teacher. Parking recommendations based upon square footage 
ranged from 1 space per every 375 - 500 square feet. Using the most conservative calculation, 30 parking 
spaces would be required for the Everbrook proposal based on capacity and 35 parking spaces would be 
required based on square footage. The proposed 41 parking spaces is on the high end of the American 
Planning Association’s recommendations and is consistent with Village Zoning Ordinance requirements. 

8. In February 2019, following the PC/ZBA workshop for The Learning Experience proposal, staff conducted a 
parking analysis of the existing KinderCare daycare facility located at 10003 W. Lincoln Highway to provide 
the Commissioner's with a better real world understanding of parking demands and trip generations 
associated with daycare facilities. In that analysis, the maximum number of trips to the KinderCare site 
during any 15-minute period under observation was 14, which occurred between 4:30 and 4:45 pm. The 
maximum number of cars parked within that 40-space lot was 21, which occurred at 3:45 pm. 

9. The applicant has indicated that the peak drop-off period is from 6:30-9:30 a.m. and the peak pick-up period 
is from 3:30-6:30 p.m. 

10. The applicant has indicated that curbside drop-off and pickups are not permitted. 
11. To preserve as many of the parking spaces as possible in front of the building for customer traffic, staff 

recommends that Commissioners consider a condition requiring that employees shall utilize the proposed 
15 parking spaces located along the south end of the parking lot. 

12. No loading berth is depicted on the Site Plan. The Zoning Ordinance requires one (1) loading berth for a 
school or educational facility, a minimum of 50’ in length, 12’ in width, and 14’ in vertical clearance. The 
applicant is seeking a waiver of this requirement.  

13. A ±5,975 square-foot outdoor play area is proposed to the north of the building. The applicant proposes to 
enclose the play area with a 6’ tall, black, ornamental aluminum open picket fence, with masonry piers 
spaced approximately 20’-8” apart (The original submittal included a 6’ tall, white vinyl privacy fence around 
the play area).  The play area is set back 75.22’ from the front property line (approximately 155.22’ from 
the centerline of Route 30).  Article 6, Section C, Part 1(c) of the Zoning Ordinance requires all principal and 
accessory structures (which would include the play area structures) to adhere to all bulk dimensions, which 
would include the minimum 150’ front yard setback from the centerline of Route 30.  In initial discussions 
with the applicant, staff suggested that the building be flipped so that the play area would be closer to the 
bank to the west and further from the residential subdivision to the east.  The applicant indicated that the 
internal configuration of the building does not allow for that change. 

14. The applicant has submitted Playground Details and Playground Equipment Details.  At this time, staff’s 
only concern is the proposed “Storage Shed by Tenant” which is depicted and labeled on the Site Plan.  Staff 
will need to review the details of the proposed shed to ensure that it does not exceed the height of the 6’ 
tall, black, ornamental aluminum open picket fence. 

15. As part of the engineering review, the Village’s Consulting Engineer has noted that the Village Design 
Standards require 26’ minimum width drive-aisles within the parking lot.  The Site Plan reflects 24’ drive 
aisles.  The applicant’s design engineer has indicated that there is adequate room on the site to provide 26’ 
drive-aisles and still comply with all parking lot setbacks, therefore the Site Plan will be revised. 

 
Landscape Plan / Tree Preservation Plan 
 

1. The applicant has submitted a revised Landscape Plan in black and white, which depicts the proposed new 
plantings as well as identifies any existing trees to be preserved. 

2. The applicant has also submitted a Tree Preservation Plan which includes a survey of the existing trees. 
3. Staff has reviewed the Landscape Plan and has the following comments, which may be addressed prior to 

Village Board consideration as conditions to be attached to any motion for approval: 
a) The center portion of the required transition yard along the south side of the property is slightly 

narrower than 25’ and must be revised to meet the regulation.  



5 

b) No symbology or labels are provided on the Landscape Plan which are necessary to indicate the location 
and quantity of species and plant types.  This information is required to verify compliance with the 
Landscape Ordinance.  

c) The height of the shrubs is required on the plant list to determine total plant units. Volumes are given 
in most cases, but the height is necessary to confirm compliance with the Landscape Ordinance. 

4. The Tree Preservation Plan depicts the removal of seven (7) existing trees in the center portion of the site 
where the parking lot would be located.  The Plan depicts forty-five (45) trees to be removed along the east 
and south property lines.  Per the tree survey on the Plan, none of the trees to be removed are classified as 
Preservation Trees per the Landscape Ordinance.  All trees to be removed are either dead or in poor 
condition.  The Plan depicts thirty-five (35) trees to be preserved.    

5. The applicant proposes to offset the removed trees by planting numerous new trees and plantings within 
the required transition yards abutting the east and south property lines. 

6. The Landscape Plan depicts a trash enclosure in the southwest corner of the parking lot, more than 50’ from 
the south property line. The Site Details Plan (Sheet AS2.1) depicts an 8’ tall trash enclosure which will be 
constructed of materials to match the exterior of the building – masonry block and stone veneer wainscot 
– as well as a composite wood slat gates.  

7. As part of the development of the Prairie Crossings Shopping Center, the subject property was improved 
with a terraced front yard along U.S. Route 30/Lincoln Highway, which includes two parallel limestone block 
retaining walls.  The Landscape Plan depicts new trees, shrubs, and groundcover to be added to along both 
terraces.   

 
Engineering Plans 
 

1. The applicant has submitted Preliminary Engineering Plans which have been reviewed by the Village’s 
Consulting Engineer (see attached review letter).  There are no major engineering issues.  As stated in the 
Site Plan comments above, the drive-aisles must be revised from 24’ in width to 26’ in width and an 
AutoTURN® analysis must be submitted to ensure maneuverability for fire trucks and delivery vehicles.    

2. The applicant has submitted a recorded Detention Easement Agreement.  The applicant has indicated that 
the document provides that the owner subject property has the right to utilize the existing stormwater 
detention basin for the overall Prairie Crossings Shopping Center which is located to the south of the 
adjacent BMO Harris Bank parking lot.  

3. The B4 Office District requires a maximum impervious surface lot coverage of 70%.  Per the applicant’s 
design engineer, the proposed development has an impervious surface lot coverage of 43% and will comply 
with the requirement.    

 
Architecture 
 

1. The applicant proposes to construct a single-story building with a hip roof, including a dominant gable over 
the entrance on the south elevation. Lesser gables are proposed above two sets of windows on the south 
elevation and above three sets of widows on the west elevation. No gables are proposed on the north 
elevation facing U.S. Route 30/Lincoln Highway or the east elevation facing the adjacent residential 
subdivision. The north and east elevations each include a recessed rooftop area which would contain the 
mechanical units for the building.  Those units would be screened with composite lumber railings (Aged 
Bronze color).  The roof material would be asphalt shingles (Weathered Wood color).  

2. The predominant exterior material on all elevations is thin brick in a red color which attempts to match the 
adjacent BMO Harris Bank building.  The applicant has provided a material sample which will be brought to 
the public hearing.  It should be noted that there are no buildings in the Prairie Crossings Shopping Center, 
including the BMO Harris Bank building, that utilize thin brick material.  All existing buildings have 
dimensional brick.  The Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals may wish to add a condition that 
dimensional brick to match the BMO Harris Bank building be provided.     

3. The more residential style of the building is a distinct departure from the Federalist style of architecture for 
the BMO Harris Bank building. 

4. The proposed 5/12 roof pitch is less than the much steeper 9/12 roof pitch of the adjacent BMO Harris Bank 
but is generally consistent with the roof pitch of the gabled portions of the smaller outlot buildings in the 
Prairie Crossings Shopping Center.  



6 

5. A 2’-8” cultured stone wainscot is proposed on all elevations. The stone style and color appear to be 
generally similar to the wainscot found on the buildings in the Prairie Crossings Shopping Center.  The 
adjacent BMO Harris Bank building does not have a stone wainscot.  The applicant has provided a material 
sample which will be brought to the public hearing.     

6. The walls under the three gables on the south elevation would be finished with Nichiha vintage wood fiber 
cement siding in a vertical orientation (Cedar color).  The same material would be used as an accent material 
on either side of the north gable on the west elevation, as well as to the right of the south gable on the west 
elevation.   

7. The exterior walls within the two recessed rooftop areas would be finished with thin brick in a carbon black 
velour color to blend with the color of the asphalt shingles.   

8. The height of the building is 26’-4” which would comply with the maximum height of 35 feet in the B4 Office 
District. 

9. The proposed vinyl windows would have clear glass and almond color trim. 
 
Photometrics/Site Lighting Plan 
 

1. The applicant has provided a Photometrics Plan and light fixture specifications.  The Plan depicts four 
15’ tall parking lot lights (the height includes the base).  The light fixtures are black, flat-head LED lights.  
The Photometric Plan demonstrates that the light readings would be zero footcandles at the property 
lines.  Parking lot light fixtures may be mounted at 25' or less, which is the maximum height permitted 
by the Municipal Code. The Village’s Municipal Code requires decorative bases for all parking lot light 
poles.  No details have been provided for the bases for the light poles.   

2. The Building Elevations depict ingress and egress lighting above all exterior doors, but no fixture details 
have been submitted.  

3. Per the applicant, the lighting consultant is proposing light pole and exterior light fixture options to 
match or at least be compatible and harmonious with those which exist in the surrounding 
development. The adjacent BMO Harris Bank has black coach light fixtures on black poles within its 
parking lot.  The Prairie Crossings Shopping Center has much taller black “shoebox” style light fixtures 
on black poles within its parking lot.  

4. Given the proximity to nearby residential properties, the previous office approval in 2008 included a 
condition that the single parking lot light fixture was to be connected to a shutoff timer although no 
specific time was stated in the ordinance condition.  

 
Signage 
 

1. The applicant is proposing a total of three (3) exterior signs – one (1) ground sign along U.S. Route 30/Lincoln 
Highway, one (1) wall sign on the south building elevation, and one (1) directional sign oriented to face the 
entrance to the parking lot.   

2. A directional sign at the entrance to the parking lot that was removed from the plan for the second 
workshop meeting has now been placed back on the plan.  The proposed directional sign requires the 
following variations as part of the proposed Uniform Sign Plan: 

a. Internal illumination.  Internally-illuminated directional signs are not permitted [Municipal Code 
Section 151.064(B)(1)(b)].   

b. Information.  Internally-illuminated directional signs may not include the business name or logo, 
only “Enter”. “Exit”, etc. [Municipal Code Section 151.064(B)(1)(e)].  Under 151.005 (Definitions) 
the following is stated:   DIRECTIONAL SIGNS. Signs limited to directional messages, principally for 
pedestrian or vehicular traffic, such as "one-way," "entrance," drive-thru,", and "exit," but does not 
identify the establishment itself or other goods or services available at the establishment and does 
not contain advertising messages. 

c. Color.  All colors of any directional sign shall be compatible and harmonious with the color of the 
building identified by the sign. Furthermore, text on a directional sign is limited to three colors, 
unless otherwise regulated by the approved uniform sign plan.  The logo on the proposed 
directional sign includes four (4) colors. 

d. Height.  The maximum height of a directional signs is four feet (4’).  The proposed directional sign 
is 5’ in height. 



7 

e. Sign Area.  The maximum area for a directional sign is five (5) square feet.  The proposed 
directional sign is 3’ wide by 1’-8” high for a total of 5.25 square feet.  

   
3. The applicant is proposing a 20 square-foot monument sign along U.S. 30/Lincoln Highway.  The proposed 

sign is 7’-8” wide and 5’ high.  This is one (1) foot taller than the previously submitted monument sign.  The 
maximum height of a sign for a single-tenant building within the B4 District is 7’ but may be increased 10% 
to allow for ornamental features (a maximum of 7’-8.4”). The maximum area for a freestanding sign for 
both single tenant and multi-tenant commercial uses is determined by the total square footage of the 
building(s). The maximum allowable area of the proposed monument sign is 20 square feet.  

4. The applicant is proposing one (1) internally illuminated wall sign on the southern façade of the building. 
The proposed wall sign does not face a public right-of-way. The Sign Regulations require that for a single-
tenant business, one (1) wall sign shall be permitted per frontage on public right-of-way or frontage on a 
main point of ingress/egress into the commercial development. Staff believes that no variation would be 
needed for the location of the southern wall sign which faces the parking lot, as that wall sign would be in 
lieu of a sign which would be permitted on the north elevation (rear of the building) facing U.S. Route 
30/Lincoln Highway.  

5. The Village’s Municipal Code limits wall signage to a maximum of one square foot per linear foot of frontage 
resulting in a maximum wall sign square footage of approximately 145 square feet for the proposed 
building. The applicant proposes to install a 65 square-foot internally illuminated wall sign above the main 
entrance to the building (south elevation) facing the proposed parking lot.  
 

Hours of Operation 
 

1. The proposed business hours of operation are 6:30 a.m. to 6:30 p.m. on weekdays. The facility is closed on 
Saturdays and Sundays. The applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit to allow hours of operation outside 
of the Village’s normal hours of operation which are 7:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. under Article 6, Part 2(q) of the 
Zoning Ordinance. 

 
Standards for Planned Unit Developments  
 
For reference during the workshop, Article 3, Section F of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance refers to Planned 
Unit Developments (refer to complete Article 3 attached). Part 4 of said Section F refers to the review standards the 
must be considered. 
 
In granting or withholding approval of Preliminary Plans and Final Plans, the Plan Commission and the Village Board 
shall consider the extent to which the application fulfills the requirements of this Ordinance and the following 
standards:  
 

a. The plan is designed to protect the public health, welfare, and safety.  
 

b. The proposed development does not cause substantial injury to the value of other property in the 
immediate area.  
 

c. The plan provides for protection of the aesthetic and function of the natural environment, which shall 
include, but not be limited to, flood plains, streams, creeks, lakes, ponds, wetlands, soil and geologic 
characteristics, air quality, vegetation, woodlands, and steep slopes.  
 

d. The plan provides for and ensures the preservation of adequate recreational amenities and common open 
spaces.  
 

e. Residential use areas may provide a variety of housing types to achieve a balanced neighborhood.  
 

f. The planned unit development provides land area to accommodate cultural, educational, recreational, 
and other public and quasi-public activities to serve the needs of the residents thereof.  
 



8 

g. The proposed development provide for the orderly and creative arrangement of all land uses with respect 
to each other and to the entire Village.  
 

Standards for Special Uses  
 

For reference during the workshop, Article 3, Section B, Part 6 of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance lists 
“findings” or “standards” that the Plan Commission must use to evaluate every special use request.  
 
The Plan Commission shall make written findings of fact and shall refer to any exhibits containing plans and 
specifications for the proposed special use, which shall remain a part of the permanent record of the Plan 
Commission. The Plan Commission shall submit same, together with its recommendation to the Village Board for 
final action. No special use shall be recommended by the Plan Commission, unless such Commission shall find:  
 

a. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not be detrimental to, or endanger, 
the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare.  

 
b. That the special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate 

vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property values within 
the neighborhood.  
 

c. That the establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district.  
 

d. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at 
variance with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already 
constructed, or in the course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of the 
applicable district, as to cause a substantial depreciation in the property values within the neighborhood.  
 

e. That the adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or necessary facilities have been or are being 
provided.  
 

f. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to 
minimize traffic congestion in the public streets.  
 

g. That the special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in which 
it is located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified by the Village Board, pursuant 
to the recommendations of the Plan Commission.  

 
Affirmative Motions    

For the Commission’s consideration, staff is providing the following affirmative motions that may be modified as 
desired.  

1. Recommend that the Village Board approve a Major Change to the Prairie Crossings Planned Unit 
Development (PUD) for the “bump-out” at the southwest corner of the property, and a Major Change to 
the unnamed Planned Unit Development on the larger remainder of the property, for the property located 
at 11031 W. Lincoln Highway (Pending Address Assignment), in accordance with the submitted plans, public 
testimony and Findings of Fact, subject to the following conditions: 
 

a. Subject to the Village Engineer’s approval of the Preliminary Engineering Plans prior to Village 
Board consideration. 

b. Subject to staff approval the Landscape Plan prior to Village Board consideration. 
c. Subject to staff approval of the Photometric Plan prior to Village Board consideration. 
d. Subject to staff approval of the Building Elevations prior to Village Board consideration. 
e. Subject to staff approval of the Sign Package prior to Village Board consideration. 



9 

 
2. Recommend that the Village Board approve a Special Use Permit for a Daycare Center/Preschool for the 

property located at 11031 W. Lincoln Highway (Pending Address Assignment), in accordance with the 
submitted plans, public testimony, and Findings of Fact, subject to the following condition: 

 
a. Parking lot lights shall be connected to a shutoff timer which automatically turns off the lights no 

later than 9:00 p.m. each night. 
 

3. Recommend that the Village Board approve a Special Use Permit for extended hours of operation 
(allowing the Daycare Center/Preschool to open for business at 6:30 a.m.) for the property located at 
11031 W. Lincoln Highway (Pending Address Assignment), in accordance with the submitted plans, public 
testimony, and Findings of Fact. 
 



Disclaimer of Warranties and Accuracy of Data: Although the data developed by Will County for its maps, websites, and Geographic 
Information System has been produced and processed from sources believed to be reliable, no warranty, expressed or implied, is made 
regarding accuracy, adequacy, completeness, legality, reliability or usefulness of any information. This disclaimer applies to both isolated and 
aggregate uses of the information. The County and elected officials provide this information on an "as is" basis. All warranties of any kind, 
express or implied, including but not limited to the implied warranties of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, freedom from 
contamination by computer viruses or hackers and non-infringement of proprietary rights are disclaimed. Changes may be periodically made 
to the information herein; these changes may or may not be incorporated in any new version of the publication. If you have obtained 
information from any of the County web pages from a source other than the County pages, be aware that electronic data can be altered 
subsequent to original distribution. Data can also quickly become out of date. It is recommended that careful attention be paid to the contents 
of any data, and that the originator of the data or information be contacted with any questions regarding appropriate use. Please direct any 
questions or issues via email to gis@willcountyillinois.com.

Notes

Legend

0.07

1: 2,257

0 Miles

Aerial Photo - Lot 1 in New Lenox State Bank
Subdivision

WGS_1984_Web_Mercator_Auxiliary_Sphere

Projection

4/22/2022 Date:

0.04

Address Points

Roadways

Federal

State

County

Local and Private

Parcels LY

Townships



Site Photos – 11031 W. Lincoln Highway 

 

Figure 1: 11031 W. Lincoln Highway, viewed looking south from U.S. Route 30/Lincoln Highway. 

 

 

  Figure 2:  11031 W. Lincoln Highway, viewed looking south from U.S. Route 30/Lincoln Highway.   
    

   



 

 

 

  Figure 3: BMO Harris Bank at 11041 W. Lincoln Highway as viewed from U.S. Route 30/Lincoln Highway.   
 Subject property is located immediately adjacent to the east (left). 

 

 

 

 

   Figure 4:  11031 W. Lincoln Highway, viewed from cross-access drive behind BMO Harris Bank looing east. 
 

 



 

 

  Figure 5: 11031 W. Lincoln Highway, viewed looking north from cross-access drive behind BMO Harris Bank. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Figure 6: Rear of Settlers Pond townhomes, viewed looking south from cross-access drive behind BMO 
 Harris Bank. 



 

   Figure 7:  Rear of Settlers Pond townhomes, viewed looking east from cross-access drive behind BMO  
    Harris Bank. 

 

 

  Figure 8:  U.S. Route 30/Lincoln Highway, viewed looking east from 11031 W. Lincoln Highway. 

  

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   Figure 10:  Existing landscape terrace with limestone block retaining walls along frontage of 11031 W.  
       Lincoln Highway, viewed looking west. 

  

Figure 9:  Existing landscape terrace with limestone block retaining walls along frontage of 11031 W.
 Lincoln Highway, viewed looking east. 



 

Figure 11:  Existing landscape terrace with limestone block retaining walls along frontage of 11031 W.      
Lincoln Highway, viewed looking south. 

 

 

   Figure 12:  Existing trees located in southern portion of subject property at 11031 W. Lincoln Highway. 



S E T T L E R S   P O N D
D R I V E

L O T    5 4

P
  R

  A
  I  R

  I  E
       C

  R
  O

  S
  S

  I  N
  G

  S

L O
 T     2

L O T     5

L O T     6

P A R T      O F     P A R C E L    2

L
 I N

 C
 O

 L
 N

     H
 I G

 H
 W

 A
 Y

L O
 T     1

L O T     7
P R A I R I E     C R O S S I N G S

L
 O

 T
    4 5

L
 O

 T
    4 6

L
 O

 T
    5 1

L O T    5 2

B
 E

 E
 C

 H
 E

 N
     &

     D
 I L

 L
 ' S

      S
 E

 T
 T

 L
 E

R
 S

     P
 O

 N
 D

      P
 . U

 . D
 .

B E E C H E N     &     D I L L ' S      S E T T L E R S     P O N D      P . U . D .

L O
 T   1

N E W
       L E N O

 X    S T A T E

B A N K
    P H A S E     2

P
 A

 R
 C

 E
 L    1

L O T    5 3

P
 A

 R
 T

      O
 F

     P
 A

 R
 C

 E
 L

    3

3
5
2
0

’

PARCEL  2

P
A

R
C

E
L
  3

P
A

R
C

E
L
  1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 5/8" IRON PIPE 0.09' N'LY & ON LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORDED NOVEMBER 7, 2002 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-191084

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART OF ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. R2004049251 [24][24]

AutoCAD SHX Text
(IL ROUTE 30)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET 5/8" IRON PIPE AT CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET 5/8" IRON PIPE AT CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET 5/8" IRON PIPE AT CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 2ND 5/8" IRON ROD 0.17' W'LY & ON LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 5/8" IRON ROD 0.31' E'LY & 0.09' N'LY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 5/8" IRON PIPE 0.08' E'LY & ON LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 5/8" IRON PIPE AT CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
 DETENTION EASEMENT RECORDED NOVEMBER 7, 2002 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-191084

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORDED JULY 22, 1997 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R1997-61234

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORDED JULY 22, 1997 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R1997-61234

AutoCAD SHX Text
"NO BUILDINGS OBSERVED"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 01°56'20" W (N 00 12'23" E)  328.31' (N 00°12'23" E)  328.31' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 5/8" IRON PIPE 0.20' E'LY & ON LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
150' B.S.L. (FROM FORMER CENTERLINE OF IL 30) [19][19]

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' U.D.E. [20][20]

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' B.S.L. [19][19]

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.S.L. [19][19]

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' U.D.E. [20][20]

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' U.D.E. [20][20]

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' B.S.L. [19][19]

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' C.E. [21][21]

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.5' (1 ROD) WIDE TELECOM. EASEMENT PER DOCUMENT NO. 641267 [16][16]

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' U.D.E. & L.B.E. [20][20]

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.S.L. [19][19]

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' U.D.E. & L.B.E. [20][20]

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' C.E. [21][21]

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORDED OCTOBER 16 2003 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2003-261229

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 88°29'41" W (N 89 21'36" W)  311.05' (N 89°21'36" W)  311.05' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 01°56'20" W (N 00°12'23" E)103.54'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 87°57'10" E (S 89°54'07" E)60.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 85°34'34" E (S 83 25'45" E)  252.80' (S 83°25'45" E)  252.80' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 01°54'36" E (S 00 14'07" W)  406.30' (S 00°14'07" W)  406.30' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. LINE OF THE E. HALF OF THE S.W. QUARTER OF SECITON 20-35-12

AutoCAD SHX Text
E. LINE OF THE W. HALF OF THE S.W. QUARTER OF SECITON 20-35-12

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 01°42'46" W9.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 86°10'02" W34.74'

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND CUT CROSS ON LINE & 3.00' W'LY OF EASEMENT ANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND CUT CROSS ON LINE AT EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE OF IL ROUTE 30 (LINCOLN HWY) RIGHT-OF-WAY PER DOC. 546517

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE OF IL ROUTE 30 (LINCOLN HWY) IMPROVEMENTS PER PLAT OF HIGHWAYS FOR STATE OF ILLINOIS D.O.T. PROJECT R-91-016-01

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' C.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' L.B.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' B.S.L. [19][19]

AutoCAD SHX Text
40' A.E. PER DOC. R2002192064 [24][29][24][29]

AutoCAD SHX Text
40' A.E. PER DOC. R2002191084 [24][29]

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.U.D.E. & STORMWATER DETENTION EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE AND TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO: PURCHASER WITH CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS UNDER A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE  PURCHASER WITH CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS UNDER A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE PURCHASER WITH CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS UNDER A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE  WITH CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS UNDER A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE WITH CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS UNDER A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE  CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS UNDER A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS UNDER A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE  RIGHTS UNDER A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE RIGHTS UNDER A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE  UNDER A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE UNDER A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE  A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE  PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE  AGREEMENT WITH THE AGREEMENT WITH THE  WITH THE WITH THE  THE THE VESTED OWNER; LENDER WITH A CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH  OWNER; LENDER WITH A CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH OWNER; LENDER WITH A CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH  LENDER WITH A CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH LENDER WITH A CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH  WITH A CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH WITH A CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH  A CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH A CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH  CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH  OBLIGATION UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH OBLIGATION UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH  UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH UNDER A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH  A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH  LOAN AGREEMENT WITH LOAN AGREEMENT WITH  AGREEMENT WITH AGREEMENT WITH  WITH WITH THE PROPOSED INSURED; AND CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY: THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  WHICH IT IS BASED WERE WHICH IT IS BASED WERE  IT IS BASED WERE IT IS BASED WERE  IS BASED WERE IS BASED WERE  BASED WERE BASED WERE  WERE WERE MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR  IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR  ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR  WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR  THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR  2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR  MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR  STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR  DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR  REQUIREMENTS FOR REQUIREMENTS FOR  FOR FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS,  LAND TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, LAND TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS,  TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS,  SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS,  JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS,  ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS,  AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS,  ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS,  BY ALTA AND NSPS, BY ALTA AND NSPS,  ALTA AND NSPS, ALTA AND NSPS,  AND NSPS, AND NSPS,  NSPS, NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  1, 2, 3, 4, 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD 1, 2, 3, 4, 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  2, 3, 4, 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD 2, 3, 4, 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  3, 4, 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD 3, 4, 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  4, 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD 4, 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD 7a, 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD 8, 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD 9, 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD 14 AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD  A THEREOF. THE FIELD A THEREOF. THE FIELD  THEREOF. THE FIELD THEREOF. THE FIELD  THE FIELD THE FIELD  FIELD FIELD WORK WAS COMPLETED ON JANUARY 27, 2022 DATE OF PLAT OR MAP: FEBRUARY 17, 2022 ______________________________________________ IL PROF LAND SURVEYOR #3520; EXP. NOVEMBER 30, 2022 DESIGN FIRM REG.#184.005510; EXP. APRIL 30, 2023 SEE SURVEYORS NOTES FOR DESCRIPTION AND LIMITATIONS OF TABLE A ITEMS SHOWN ON THIS SURVEY. ORIGINAL SURVEY IS IN COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROFESSIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY CERTIFICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS   

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECK BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGHT ON SOLUTIONS, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLANS, GRADING PLANS, FEMA CERTIFICATES AND MORE

AutoCAD SHX Text
"WE GET CORNERS OTHER PEOPLE CUT!"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Surveyor's email: mikeu@sightonsolutions.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOS#:

AutoCAD SHX Text
557 CAPITAL DRIVE, LAKE ZURICH, ILLINOIS 60047

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE: 847.356.7539  FAX: 815.578.9647  www.sightonsolutions.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND SURVEYING, TOPOGRAPHIC MAPPING, SITE STAKING,

AutoCAD SHX Text
K.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.S.U.

AutoCAD SHX Text
02/16/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACANT LOT - LINCOLN HIGHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE & TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
21627

AutoCAD SHX Text
02/17/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODIFIED NOTES/LABELS, ADDED FIRE PIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.S.U.

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.S.U.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch = 40 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
160

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 1: LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  OF THE SOUTHWEST OF THE SOUTHWEST  THE SOUTHWEST THE SOUTHWEST  SOUTHWEST SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  ACCORDING TO THE PLAT ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  TO THE PLAT TO THE PLAT  THE PLAT THE PLAT  PLAT PLAT THEREOF RECORDED NOVEMBER 8, 2002, AS DOCUMENT NO. R2002-192064 IN WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS. PARCEL 2: EASEMENT FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, S DEPARTMENT STORES,  DEPARTMENT STORES, DEPARTMENT STORES,  STORES, STORES, INC. A DELAWARE CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  A DELAWARE CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS A DELAWARE CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  DELAWARE CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS DELAWARE CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  JANUARY 17, 2003 AS JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  17, 2003 AS 17, 2003 AS  2003 AS 2003 AS  AS AS DOCUMENT NO.  2003-12121 FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  NO.  2003-12121 FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND NO.  2003-12121 FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND   2003-12121 FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  2003-12121 FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND 2003-12121 FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  THE DRIVEWAY AND THE DRIVEWAY AND  DRIVEWAY AND DRIVEWAY AND  AND AND ACCESS ROAD AS DESCRIBED IN SAID DOCUMENT. PARCEL 3: EASEMENT FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  NLSB, AS TRUSTEE NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  AS TRUSTEE AS TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE TRUSTEE UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  THE PROVISIONS OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, THE PROVISIONS OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  PROVISIONS OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, PROVISIONS OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  RECORDED MARCH 24, RECORDED MARCH 24,  MARCH 24, MARCH 24,  24, 24, 2004 AS DOCUMENT R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  AS DOCUMENT R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK AS DOCUMENT R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  DOCUMENT R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK DOCUMENT R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  NEW LENOX STATE BANK NEW LENOX STATE BANK  LENOX STATE BANK LENOX STATE BANK  STATE BANK STATE BANK  BANK BANK PHASE 2, RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. R2003-261 229, IN WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL OVERVIEW LOCATION MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TITLE COMMITMENT INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE TABLE A ITEMS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.	MONUMENTS PLACED (OR A REFERENCE MONUMENT OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR MONUMENTS PLACED (OR A REFERENCE MONUMENT OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR  PLACED (OR A REFERENCE MONUMENT OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR PLACED (OR A REFERENCE MONUMENT OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR  (OR A REFERENCE MONUMENT OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR (OR A REFERENCE MONUMENT OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR  A REFERENCE MONUMENT OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR A REFERENCE MONUMENT OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR  REFERENCE MONUMENT OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR REFERENCE MONUMENT OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR  MONUMENT OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR MONUMENT OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR  OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR OR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR  WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR WITNESS TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR  TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR TO THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR  THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR THE CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR  CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR CORNER) AT ALL MAJOR  AT ALL MAJOR AT ALL MAJOR  ALL MAJOR ALL MAJOR  MAJOR MAJOR CORNERS OF THE BOUNDARY OF THE PROPERTY, UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY  OF THE BOUNDARY OF THE PROPERTY, UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY OF THE BOUNDARY OF THE PROPERTY, UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY  THE BOUNDARY OF THE PROPERTY, UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY THE BOUNDARY OF THE PROPERTY, UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY  BOUNDARY OF THE PROPERTY, UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY BOUNDARY OF THE PROPERTY, UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY  OF THE PROPERTY, UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY OF THE PROPERTY, UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY  THE PROPERTY, UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY THE PROPERTY, UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY  PROPERTY, UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY PROPERTY, UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY  UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY UNLESS ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY  ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY ALREADY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY  MARKED OR REFERENCED BY MARKED OR REFERENCED BY  OR REFERENCED BY OR REFERENCED BY  REFERENCED BY REFERENCED BY  BY BY EXISTING MONUMENTS OR WITNESSES IN CLOSE PROXIMITY TO THE CORNER. 2.	THE ASSOCIATED PIN NUMBER FOR THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS: 09-20-301-055 THE ASSOCIATED PIN NUMBER FOR THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS: 09-20-301-055 THE ADDRESS FOR THE PROPERTY HAS NOT BEEN ASSIGNED PER THE WILL COUNTY ASSESSOR. 3.	ACCORDING TO THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP ACCORDING TO THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP  TO THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP TO THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP  THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP  FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP  EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP  MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP  AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP  FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP  INSURANCE RATE MAP INSURANCE RATE MAP  RATE MAP RATE MAP  MAP MAP (FIRM), HAVING A COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBER OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF  HAVING A COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBER OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF HAVING A COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBER OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF  A COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBER OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF A COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBER OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF  COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBER OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBER OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF  PANEL NUMBER OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF PANEL NUMBER OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF  NUMBER OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF NUMBER OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF  OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF  17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF 17197C0195G, WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF  WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF WITH A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF  A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF A MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF  MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF MAP EFFECTIVE DATE OF  EFFECTIVE DATE OF EFFECTIVE DATE OF  DATE OF DATE OF  OF OF FEBRUARY 15, 2019, THE SURVEYED PROPERTY LIES WITHIN AN AREA DESIGNATED AS	ZONE X ZONE X  X X (UNSHADED) WHICH IS DEFINED AS AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE  WHICH IS DEFINED AS AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE WHICH IS DEFINED AS AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE  IS DEFINED AS AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE IS DEFINED AS AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE  DEFINED AS AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE DEFINED AS AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE  AS AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE AS AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE  AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE  DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE  TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE  BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE  OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE  THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE  0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE  ANNUAL CHANCE ANNUAL CHANCE  CHANCE CHANCE FLOODPLAIN. THESE MAPS DO NOT NECESSARILY SHOW ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE  THESE MAPS DO NOT NECESSARILY SHOW ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE THESE MAPS DO NOT NECESSARILY SHOW ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE  MAPS DO NOT NECESSARILY SHOW ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE MAPS DO NOT NECESSARILY SHOW ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE  DO NOT NECESSARILY SHOW ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE DO NOT NECESSARILY SHOW ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE  NOT NECESSARILY SHOW ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE NOT NECESSARILY SHOW ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE  NECESSARILY SHOW ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE NECESSARILY SHOW ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE  SHOW ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE SHOW ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE  ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE ALL AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE  AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE  SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE SUBJECT TO FLOODING IN THE  TO FLOODING IN THE TO FLOODING IN THE  FLOODING IN THE FLOODING IN THE  IN THE IN THE  THE THE COMMUNITY OR ALL PLANIMETRIC FEATURES OUTSIDE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES  OR ALL PLANIMETRIC FEATURES OUTSIDE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES OR ALL PLANIMETRIC FEATURES OUTSIDE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES  ALL PLANIMETRIC FEATURES OUTSIDE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES ALL PLANIMETRIC FEATURES OUTSIDE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES  PLANIMETRIC FEATURES OUTSIDE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES PLANIMETRIC FEATURES OUTSIDE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES  FEATURES OUTSIDE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES FEATURES OUTSIDE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES  OUTSIDE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES OUTSIDE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES  SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES  FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES  HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES HAZARD AREAS. THIS DOES  AREAS. THIS DOES AREAS. THIS DOES  THIS DOES THIS DOES  DOES DOES NOT GUARANTEE THAT THE SURVEYED PROPERTY WILL OR WILL NOT FLOOD. 4.	THE GROSS LAND AREA OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS 111,548.39 SQUARE FEET (2.561 ACRES ) THE GROSS LAND AREA OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS 111,548.39 SQUARE FEET (2.561 ACRES±)7a.	NO BUILDINGS WERE OBSERVED AT THE TIME OF THIS SURVEY. NO BUILDINGS WERE OBSERVED AT THE TIME OF THIS SURVEY. 8.	SUBSTANTIAL FEATURES OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN SUBSTANTIAL FEATURES OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN  FEATURES OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN FEATURES OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN  OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN  IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN  THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN  PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN  OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN  CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN  THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN THE FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN  FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN FIELDWORK ARE SHOWN  ARE SHOWN ARE SHOWN  SHOWN SHOWN HEREON (IN ADDITION TO THE IMPROVEMENTS AND FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5  (IN ADDITION TO THE IMPROVEMENTS AND FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5 (IN ADDITION TO THE IMPROVEMENTS AND FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5  ADDITION TO THE IMPROVEMENTS AND FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5 ADDITION TO THE IMPROVEMENTS AND FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5  TO THE IMPROVEMENTS AND FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5 TO THE IMPROVEMENTS AND FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5  THE IMPROVEMENTS AND FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5 THE IMPROVEMENTS AND FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5  IMPROVEMENTS AND FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5 IMPROVEMENTS AND FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5  AND FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5 AND FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5  FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5 FEATURES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5  REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5 REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5  PURSUANT TO SECTION 5 PURSUANT TO SECTION 5  TO SECTION 5 TO SECTION 5  SECTION 5 SECTION 5  5 5 OF THE MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS)  THE MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS) THE MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS)  MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS) MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS)  STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS) STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS)  DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS) DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS)  REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS) REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS)  FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS) FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS)  ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS) ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS)  LAND TITLE SURVEYS) LAND TITLE SURVEYS)  TITLE SURVEYS) TITLE SURVEYS)  SURVEYS) SURVEYS) LANDSCAPED AREAS ARE OPEN TO INTERPRETATION AND MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED  AREAS ARE OPEN TO INTERPRETATION AND MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED AREAS ARE OPEN TO INTERPRETATION AND MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED  ARE OPEN TO INTERPRETATION AND MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED ARE OPEN TO INTERPRETATION AND MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED  OPEN TO INTERPRETATION AND MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED OPEN TO INTERPRETATION AND MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED  TO INTERPRETATION AND MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED TO INTERPRETATION AND MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED  INTERPRETATION AND MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED INTERPRETATION AND MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED  AND MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED AND MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED  MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED MAY NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED  NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED NOT BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED  BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED BE SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED  SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED SHOWN OR IDENTIFIED  OR IDENTIFIED OR IDENTIFIED  IDENTIFIED IDENTIFIED HEREON IF NOT CLEARLY DEFINED BY SUBSTANTIAL FEATURES. 9.	NO PARKING SPACES WERE OBSERVED ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY AT THE TIME OF THIS SURVEY. NO PARKING SPACES WERE OBSERVED ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY AT THE TIME OF THIS SURVEY. 14.	THE DISTANCE TO THE NEAREST INTERSECTING STREET IS INDICATED AND DIMENSIONED HEREON. THE DISTANCE TO THE NEAREST INTERSECTING STREET IS INDICATED AND DIMENSIONED HEREON. 19.	SIGHT ON SOLUTIONS, INC. CARRIES $2M COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE; SIGHT ON SOLUTIONS, INC. CARRIES $2M COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE;  ON SOLUTIONS, INC. CARRIES $2M COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE; ON SOLUTIONS, INC. CARRIES $2M COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE;  SOLUTIONS, INC. CARRIES $2M COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE; SOLUTIONS, INC. CARRIES $2M COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE;  INC. CARRIES $2M COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE; INC. CARRIES $2M COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE;  CARRIES $2M COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE; CARRIES $2M COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE;  $2M COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE; $2M COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE;  COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE; COVERAGE ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE;  ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE; ON OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE;  OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE; OUR PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE;  PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE; PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE;  LIABILITY INSURANCE; LIABILITY INSURANCE;  INSURANCE; INSURANCE; CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYOR'S NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.	DISTANCES ARE MARKED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE DISTANCES ARE MARKED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE  ARE MARKED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE ARE MARKED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE  MARKED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE MARKED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE  IN U.S. SURVEY FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE IN U.S. SURVEY FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE  U.S. SURVEY FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE U.S. SURVEY FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE  SURVEY FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE SURVEY FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE  FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE FEET. NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE  NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE NO DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE  DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE DIMENSION SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE  SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE SHALL BE ASSUMED BY SCALE  BE ASSUMED BY SCALE BE ASSUMED BY SCALE  ASSUMED BY SCALE ASSUMED BY SCALE  BY SCALE BY SCALE  SCALE SCALE MEASUREMENT HEREON. DISTANCES AND/OR BEARINGS SHOWN IN PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE  HEREON. DISTANCES AND/OR BEARINGS SHOWN IN PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE HEREON. DISTANCES AND/OR BEARINGS SHOWN IN PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE  DISTANCES AND/OR BEARINGS SHOWN IN PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE DISTANCES AND/OR BEARINGS SHOWN IN PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE  AND/OR BEARINGS SHOWN IN PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE AND/OR BEARINGS SHOWN IN PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE  BEARINGS SHOWN IN PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE BEARINGS SHOWN IN PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE  SHOWN IN PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE SHOWN IN PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE  IN PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE IN PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE  PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE PARENTHESIS (456.67') ARE  (456.67') ARE (456.67') ARE  ARE ARE RECORD OR DEED VALUES, NOT FIELD MEASURED. 2.	BEARINGS ARE GEODETIC BASED ON FOUND MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING BEARINGS ARE GEODETIC BASED ON FOUND MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING  ARE GEODETIC BASED ON FOUND MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING ARE GEODETIC BASED ON FOUND MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING  GEODETIC BASED ON FOUND MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING GEODETIC BASED ON FOUND MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING  BASED ON FOUND MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING BASED ON FOUND MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING  ON FOUND MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING ON FOUND MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING  FOUND MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING FOUND MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING  MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING MONUMENTATION LOCATED AND MEASURED USING  LOCATED AND MEASURED USING LOCATED AND MEASURED USING  AND MEASURED USING AND MEASURED USING  MEASURED USING MEASURED USING  USING USING TRIMBLE'S VIRTUAL REFERENCE SYSTEM (NAD 83, ILLINOIS STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF  VIRTUAL REFERENCE SYSTEM (NAD 83, ILLINOIS STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF VIRTUAL REFERENCE SYSTEM (NAD 83, ILLINOIS STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF  REFERENCE SYSTEM (NAD 83, ILLINOIS STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF REFERENCE SYSTEM (NAD 83, ILLINOIS STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF  SYSTEM (NAD 83, ILLINOIS STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF SYSTEM (NAD 83, ILLINOIS STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF  (NAD 83, ILLINOIS STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF (NAD 83, ILLINOIS STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF  83, ILLINOIS STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF 83, ILLINOIS STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF  ILLINOIS STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF ILLINOIS STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF  STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF STATE PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF  PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF PLANE, EAST ZONE), PLAT OF  EAST ZONE), PLAT OF EAST ZONE), PLAT OF  ZONE), PLAT OF ZONE), PLAT OF  PLAT OF PLAT OF  OF OF HIGHWAYS FOR STATE OF ILLINOIS D.O.T. PROJECT R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF  FOR STATE OF ILLINOIS D.O.T. PROJECT R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF FOR STATE OF ILLINOIS D.O.T. PROJECT R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF  STATE OF ILLINOIS D.O.T. PROJECT R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF STATE OF ILLINOIS D.O.T. PROJECT R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF  OF ILLINOIS D.O.T. PROJECT R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF OF ILLINOIS D.O.T. PROJECT R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF  ILLINOIS D.O.T. PROJECT R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF ILLINOIS D.O.T. PROJECT R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF  D.O.T. PROJECT R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF D.O.T. PROJECT R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF  PROJECT R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF PROJECT R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF  R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF R-91-018-01, AND THE FINAL PLAT OF  AND THE FINAL PLAT OF AND THE FINAL PLAT OF  THE FINAL PLAT OF THE FINAL PLAT OF  FINAL PLAT OF FINAL PLAT OF  PLAT OF PLAT OF  OF OF SUBDIVISION. 3.	MANHOLES, INLETS, OTHER UTILITY RIMS OR GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION MANHOLES, INLETS, OTHER UTILITY RIMS OR GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION  INLETS, OTHER UTILITY RIMS OR GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION INLETS, OTHER UTILITY RIMS OR GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION  OTHER UTILITY RIMS OR GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION OTHER UTILITY RIMS OR GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION  UTILITY RIMS OR GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION UTILITY RIMS OR GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION  RIMS OR GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION RIMS OR GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION  OR GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION OR GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION  GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION GRATES, SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION  SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION  HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION HEREON ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION  ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION ARE FROM FIELD LOCATION  FROM FIELD LOCATION FROM FIELD LOCATION  FIELD LOCATION FIELD LOCATION  LOCATION LOCATION OF SUCH BASED ON LID MARKINGS AND ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH  SUCH BASED ON LID MARKINGS AND ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH SUCH BASED ON LID MARKINGS AND ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH  BASED ON LID MARKINGS AND ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH BASED ON LID MARKINGS AND ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH  ON LID MARKINGS AND ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH ON LID MARKINGS AND ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH  LID MARKINGS AND ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH LID MARKINGS AND ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH  MARKINGS AND ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH MARKINGS AND ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH  AND ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH AND ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH  ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH ONLY REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH  REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH REPRESENT SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH  SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH SUCH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH  UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS WHICH  IMPROVEMENTS WHICH IMPROVEMENTS WHICH  WHICH WHICH ARE VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK  VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK  FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK  ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK  GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK  AT TIME OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK AT TIME OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK  TIME OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK TIME OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK  OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK OF SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK  SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK SURVEY, THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK  THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK  A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK  NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK  SEARCH AND WALK SEARCH AND WALK  AND WALK AND WALK  WALK WALK THROUGH OF THE SITE. ADDITIONAL UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE  OF THE SITE. ADDITIONAL UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE OF THE SITE. ADDITIONAL UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE  THE SITE. ADDITIONAL UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE THE SITE. ADDITIONAL UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE  SITE. ADDITIONAL UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE SITE. ADDITIONAL UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE  ADDITIONAL UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE ADDITIONAL UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE  UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE  UTILITY LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE UTILITY LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE  LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE LINES MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE  MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE MAY EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE  EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE EXIST, AND MAY NOT BE  AND MAY NOT BE AND MAY NOT BE  MAY NOT BE MAY NOT BE  NOT BE NOT BE  BE BE SHOWN HEREON, AND OBSERVATIONS HAVE NOT BEEN MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF  HEREON, AND OBSERVATIONS HAVE NOT BEEN MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF HEREON, AND OBSERVATIONS HAVE NOT BEEN MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF  AND OBSERVATIONS HAVE NOT BEEN MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF AND OBSERVATIONS HAVE NOT BEEN MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF  OBSERVATIONS HAVE NOT BEEN MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF OBSERVATIONS HAVE NOT BEEN MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF  HAVE NOT BEEN MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF HAVE NOT BEEN MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF  NOT BEEN MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF NOT BEEN MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF  BEEN MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF BEEN MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF  MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF MADE TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF  TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF  DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF  THE EXTENT OF THE EXTENT OF  EXTENT OF EXTENT OF  OF OF UTILITIES SERVING OR EXISTING ON THE PROPERTY. OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED  SERVING OR EXISTING ON THE PROPERTY. OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED SERVING OR EXISTING ON THE PROPERTY. OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED  OR EXISTING ON THE PROPERTY. OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED OR EXISTING ON THE PROPERTY. OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED  EXISTING ON THE PROPERTY. OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED EXISTING ON THE PROPERTY. OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED  ON THE PROPERTY. OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED ON THE PROPERTY. OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED  THE PROPERTY. OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED THE PROPERTY. OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED  PROPERTY. OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED PROPERTY. OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED  OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED OTHER THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED  THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED THAN VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED  VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED VISIBLE OBSERVATIONS NOTED  OBSERVATIONS NOTED OBSERVATIONS NOTED  NOTED NOTED HEREON, THIS SURVEY MAKES NO STATEMENT REGARDING THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE  THIS SURVEY MAKES NO STATEMENT REGARDING THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE THIS SURVEY MAKES NO STATEMENT REGARDING THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE  SURVEY MAKES NO STATEMENT REGARDING THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE SURVEY MAKES NO STATEMENT REGARDING THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE  MAKES NO STATEMENT REGARDING THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE MAKES NO STATEMENT REGARDING THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE  NO STATEMENT REGARDING THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE NO STATEMENT REGARDING THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE  STATEMENT REGARDING THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE STATEMENT REGARDING THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE  REGARDING THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE REGARDING THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE  THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE THE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE  ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE ACTUAL PRESENCE OR ABSENCE  PRESENCE OR ABSENCE PRESENCE OR ABSENCE  OR ABSENCE OR ABSENCE  ABSENCE ABSENCE OF ANY SERVICE OR UTILITY LINE. USE OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED  ANY SERVICE OR UTILITY LINE. USE OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED ANY SERVICE OR UTILITY LINE. USE OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED  SERVICE OR UTILITY LINE. USE OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED SERVICE OR UTILITY LINE. USE OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED  OR UTILITY LINE. USE OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED OR UTILITY LINE. USE OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED  UTILITY LINE. USE OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED UTILITY LINE. USE OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED  LINE. USE OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED LINE. USE OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED  USE OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED USE OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED  OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED OF UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED  UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED UTILITY ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED  ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED ATLAS RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED  RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED RECORDS, IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED  IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED IF ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED  ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED ANY, AND/OR CONTROLLED  AND/OR CONTROLLED AND/OR CONTROLLED  CONTROLLED CONTROLLED UNDERGROUND EXPLORATORY EFFORTS, TOGETHER WITH UTILITY COMPANY LOCATE MARKINGS IS  EXPLORATORY EFFORTS, TOGETHER WITH UTILITY COMPANY LOCATE MARKINGS IS EXPLORATORY EFFORTS, TOGETHER WITH UTILITY COMPANY LOCATE MARKINGS IS  EFFORTS, TOGETHER WITH UTILITY COMPANY LOCATE MARKINGS IS EFFORTS, TOGETHER WITH UTILITY COMPANY LOCATE MARKINGS IS  TOGETHER WITH UTILITY COMPANY LOCATE MARKINGS IS TOGETHER WITH UTILITY COMPANY LOCATE MARKINGS IS  WITH UTILITY COMPANY LOCATE MARKINGS IS WITH UTILITY COMPANY LOCATE MARKINGS IS  UTILITY COMPANY LOCATE MARKINGS IS UTILITY COMPANY LOCATE MARKINGS IS  COMPANY LOCATE MARKINGS IS COMPANY LOCATE MARKINGS IS  LOCATE MARKINGS IS LOCATE MARKINGS IS  MARKINGS IS MARKINGS IS  IS IS RECOMMENDED TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF UNDERGROUND SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.   TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF UNDERGROUND SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.  TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF UNDERGROUND SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.   DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF UNDERGROUND SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.  DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF UNDERGROUND SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.   THE EXTENT OF UNDERGROUND SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.  THE EXTENT OF UNDERGROUND SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.   EXTENT OF UNDERGROUND SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.  EXTENT OF UNDERGROUND SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.   OF UNDERGROUND SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.  OF UNDERGROUND SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.   UNDERGROUND SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.  UNDERGROUND SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.   SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.  SERVICE AND UTILITY LINES.   AND UTILITY LINES.  AND UTILITY LINES.   UTILITY LINES.  UTILITY LINES.   LINES.  LINES.  CONTACT JURISDICTIONAL AGENCY, SUCH AS 811, J.U.L.I.E. OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY  JURISDICTIONAL AGENCY, SUCH AS 811, J.U.L.I.E. OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY JURISDICTIONAL AGENCY, SUCH AS 811, J.U.L.I.E. OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY  AGENCY, SUCH AS 811, J.U.L.I.E. OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY AGENCY, SUCH AS 811, J.U.L.I.E. OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY  SUCH AS 811, J.U.L.I.E. OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY SUCH AS 811, J.U.L.I.E. OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY  AS 811, J.U.L.I.E. OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY AS 811, J.U.L.I.E. OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY  811, J.U.L.I.E. OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY 811, J.U.L.I.E. OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY  J.U.L.I.E. OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY J.U.L.I.E. OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY  OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY OR D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY  D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY D.I.G.G.E.R. OR PRIVATE UTILITY  OR PRIVATE UTILITY OR PRIVATE UTILITY  PRIVATE UTILITY PRIVATE UTILITY  UTILITY UTILITY LOCATING COMPANY FOR RECORDS OR SCHEDULING A LOCATE. 4.	ONLY THE IMPROVEMENTS WHICH WERE VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND ONLY THE IMPROVEMENTS WHICH WERE VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND  THE IMPROVEMENTS WHICH WERE VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND THE IMPROVEMENTS WHICH WERE VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND  IMPROVEMENTS WHICH WERE VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND IMPROVEMENTS WHICH WERE VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND  WHICH WERE VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND WHICH WERE VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND  WERE VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND WERE VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND  VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND VISIBLE FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND  FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND FROM ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND  ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND ABOVE GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND  GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND GROUND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND  AT TIME OF SURVEY AND AT TIME OF SURVEY AND  TIME OF SURVEY AND TIME OF SURVEY AND  OF SURVEY AND OF SURVEY AND  SURVEY AND SURVEY AND  AND AND THROUGH A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK THROUGH OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF  A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK THROUGH OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF A NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK THROUGH OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF  NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK THROUGH OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF NORMAL SEARCH AND WALK THROUGH OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF  SEARCH AND WALK THROUGH OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF SEARCH AND WALK THROUGH OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF  AND WALK THROUGH OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF AND WALK THROUGH OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF  WALK THROUGH OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF WALK THROUGH OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF  THROUGH OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THROUGH OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF  OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF  THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THE SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF  SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF SITE ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF  ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF ARE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF  SHOWN ON THE FACE OF SHOWN ON THE FACE OF  ON THE FACE OF ON THE FACE OF  THE FACE OF THE FACE OF  FACE OF FACE OF  OF OF THIS PLAT. LAWN SPRINKLER SYSTEM HEADS, IF ANY, ARE NOT SHOWN ON THIS SURVEY. 5.	THIS SURVEY MAY NOT REFLECT ALL IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE THIS SURVEY MAY NOT REFLECT ALL IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE  SURVEY MAY NOT REFLECT ALL IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE SURVEY MAY NOT REFLECT ALL IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE  MAY NOT REFLECT ALL IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE MAY NOT REFLECT ALL IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE  NOT REFLECT ALL IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE NOT REFLECT ALL IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE  REFLECT ALL IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE REFLECT ALL IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE  ALL IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE ALL IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE  IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE IMPROVEMENTS ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE  ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE ON THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE  THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE THE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE  PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE PROPERTY IF SUCH ITEMS WERE  IF SUCH ITEMS WERE IF SUCH ITEMS WERE  SUCH ITEMS WERE SUCH ITEMS WERE  ITEMS WERE ITEMS WERE  WERE WERE HIDDEN BY LANDSCAPING, FOLIAGE, EARTH, PAVEMENT, CONCRETE OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH  BY LANDSCAPING, FOLIAGE, EARTH, PAVEMENT, CONCRETE OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH BY LANDSCAPING, FOLIAGE, EARTH, PAVEMENT, CONCRETE OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH  LANDSCAPING, FOLIAGE, EARTH, PAVEMENT, CONCRETE OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH LANDSCAPING, FOLIAGE, EARTH, PAVEMENT, CONCRETE OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH  FOLIAGE, EARTH, PAVEMENT, CONCRETE OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH FOLIAGE, EARTH, PAVEMENT, CONCRETE OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH  EARTH, PAVEMENT, CONCRETE OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH EARTH, PAVEMENT, CONCRETE OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH  PAVEMENT, CONCRETE OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH PAVEMENT, CONCRETE OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH  CONCRETE OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH CONCRETE OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH  OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH OR WERE COVERED BY SUCH  WERE COVERED BY SUCH WERE COVERED BY SUCH  COVERED BY SUCH COVERED BY SUCH  BY SUCH BY SUCH  SUCH SUCH ITEMS AS DUMPSTERS, PALETTES, STOCK MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT, TRAILERS OR OTHER OBJECTS. 6.	THE LOCATION OF THE PROPERTY LINES SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE THE LOCATION OF THE PROPERTY LINES SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE  LOCATION OF THE PROPERTY LINES SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE LOCATION OF THE PROPERTY LINES SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE  OF THE PROPERTY LINES SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE OF THE PROPERTY LINES SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE  THE PROPERTY LINES SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE THE PROPERTY LINES SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE  PROPERTY LINES SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE PROPERTY LINES SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE  LINES SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE LINES SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE  SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE SHOWN ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE  ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE  THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE  FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE FACE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE  OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE OF THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE  THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE THIS PLAT ARE BASED ON THE  PLAT ARE BASED ON THE PLAT ARE BASED ON THE  ARE BASED ON THE ARE BASED ON THE  BASED ON THE BASED ON THE  ON THE ON THE  THE THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE  DESCRIPTION AND INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE DESCRIPTION AND INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE  AND INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE AND INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE  INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE  INCLUDED IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE INCLUDED IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE  IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE  THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE  TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE TITLE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE  COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE COMMITMENT PROVIDED BY THE  PROVIDED BY THE PROVIDED BY THE  BY THE BY THE  THE THE CLIENT. THE PARCEL WHICH IS DEFINED MAY NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS  THE PARCEL WHICH IS DEFINED MAY NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS THE PARCEL WHICH IS DEFINED MAY NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS  PARCEL WHICH IS DEFINED MAY NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS PARCEL WHICH IS DEFINED MAY NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS  WHICH IS DEFINED MAY NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS WHICH IS DEFINED MAY NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS  IS DEFINED MAY NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS IS DEFINED MAY NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS  DEFINED MAY NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS DEFINED MAY NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS  MAY NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS MAY NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS  NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS NOT REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS  REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS REFLECT ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS  ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS ACTUAL OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS  OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS OWNERSHIP, BUT REFLECTS  BUT REFLECTS BUT REFLECTS  REFLECTS REFLECTS WHAT WAS SURVEYED. FOR OWNERSHIP, CONSULT YOUR TITLE COMPANY. 7.	COMPARE THIS PLAT, LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND COMPARE THIS PLAT, LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND  THIS PLAT, LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND THIS PLAT, LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND  PLAT, LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND PLAT, LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND  LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND  DESCRIPTION AND ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND DESCRIPTION AND ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND  AND ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND AND ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND  ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND ALL SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND  SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND SURVEY MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND  MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND  BEFORE BUILDING, AND BEFORE BUILDING, AND  BUILDING, AND BUILDING, AND  AND AND IMMEDIATELY REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE SURVEYOR. 8.	APPARENT ENCROACHMENTS EXISTS ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND APPARENT ENCROACHMENTS EXISTS ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND  ENCROACHMENTS EXISTS ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND ENCROACHMENTS EXISTS ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND  EXISTS ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND EXISTS ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND  ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND  THE SUBJECT PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND THE SUBJECT PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND  SUBJECT PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND SUBJECT PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND  PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND PROPERTY WITH THE END OF A SOUND  WITH THE END OF A SOUND WITH THE END OF A SOUND  THE END OF A SOUND THE END OF A SOUND  END OF A SOUND END OF A SOUND  OF A SOUND OF A SOUND  A SOUND A SOUND  SOUND SOUND WALL EXTENDING OVER THE EAST BOUNDARY LINE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE  EXTENDING OVER THE EAST BOUNDARY LINE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE EXTENDING OVER THE EAST BOUNDARY LINE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE  OVER THE EAST BOUNDARY LINE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE OVER THE EAST BOUNDARY LINE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE  THE EAST BOUNDARY LINE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE THE EAST BOUNDARY LINE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE  EAST BOUNDARY LINE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE EAST BOUNDARY LINE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE  BOUNDARY LINE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE BOUNDARY LINE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE  LINE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE LINE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE  ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE ONTO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE  THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE  SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE SUBJECT PROPERTY, THE STONE  PROPERTY, THE STONE PROPERTY, THE STONE  THE STONE THE STONE  STONE STONE WALLS AND CONCRETE CURB CROSSING THE WEST PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING  AND CONCRETE CURB CROSSING THE WEST PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING AND CONCRETE CURB CROSSING THE WEST PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING  CONCRETE CURB CROSSING THE WEST PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING CONCRETE CURB CROSSING THE WEST PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING  CURB CROSSING THE WEST PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING CURB CROSSING THE WEST PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING  CROSSING THE WEST PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING CROSSING THE WEST PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING  THE WEST PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING THE WEST PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING  WEST PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING WEST PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING  PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING PROPERTY LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING  LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING LINE, AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING  AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING AND A STONE FIRE PIT LYING  A STONE FIRE PIT LYING A STONE FIRE PIT LYING  STONE FIRE PIT LYING STONE FIRE PIT LYING  FIRE PIT LYING FIRE PIT LYING  PIT LYING PIT LYING  LYING LYING ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY NEAR THE SOUTHERLY PROPERTY LINE, AS SHOWN HEREON. 9.	THERE IS NO VISIBLE EVIDENCE OF CEMETERIES ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY. THERE IS NO VISIBLE EVIDENCE OF CEMETERIES ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY. 10.	THE SUBJECT PROPERTY HAS NO DIRECT ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY HAS NO DIRECT ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT  SUBJECT PROPERTY HAS NO DIRECT ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT SUBJECT PROPERTY HAS NO DIRECT ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT  PROPERTY HAS NO DIRECT ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT PROPERTY HAS NO DIRECT ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT  HAS NO DIRECT ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT HAS NO DIRECT ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT  NO DIRECT ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT NO DIRECT ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT  DIRECT ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT DIRECT ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT  ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT ACCESS FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT  FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT FROM LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT  LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT LINCOLN HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT  HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT HIGHWAY, BUT HAS INDIRECT  BUT HAS INDIRECT BUT HAS INDIRECT  HAS INDIRECT HAS INDIRECT  INDIRECT INDIRECT ACCESS FROM U.S. ROUTE 30 (LINCOLN HIGHWAY) AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS  FROM U.S. ROUTE 30 (LINCOLN HIGHWAY) AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS FROM U.S. ROUTE 30 (LINCOLN HIGHWAY) AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS  U.S. ROUTE 30 (LINCOLN HIGHWAY) AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS U.S. ROUTE 30 (LINCOLN HIGHWAY) AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS  ROUTE 30 (LINCOLN HIGHWAY) AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS ROUTE 30 (LINCOLN HIGHWAY) AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS  30 (LINCOLN HIGHWAY) AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS 30 (LINCOLN HIGHWAY) AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS  (LINCOLN HIGHWAY) AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS (LINCOLN HIGHWAY) AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS  HIGHWAY) AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS HIGHWAY) AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS  AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS AND FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS  FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS FROM WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS  WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS WOLF ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS  ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS ROAD THROUGH EASEMENTS  THROUGH EASEMENTS THROUGH EASEMENTS  EASEMENTS EASEMENTS PARTIALLY SHOWN, DEPICTED OR NOTED HEREON.  (SEE TITLE DOCUMENTS FOR PARTICULARS) 11.	THE PARCELS CONTAINED IN THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS, THE PARCELS CONTAINED IN THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS,  PARCELS CONTAINED IN THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS, PARCELS CONTAINED IN THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS,  CONTAINED IN THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS, CONTAINED IN THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS,  IN THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS, IN THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS,  THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS, THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS,  LEGAL DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS, LEGAL DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS,  DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS, DESCRIPTION ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS,  ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS, ARE CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS,  CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS, CONTIGUOUS WITHOUT ANY GAPS,  WITHOUT ANY GAPS, WITHOUT ANY GAPS,  ANY GAPS, ANY GAPS,  GAPS, GAPS, GORES OR OVERLAPS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH MARKS: (NAVD88) SOURCE BENCH MARK: NGS MONUMENT WITH PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA  MONUMENT WITH PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA MONUMENT WITH PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA  WITH PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA WITH PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA  PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA  DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA  BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA  A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA  STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA  STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA STEEL ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA  ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA ROD IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA  IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA  SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA  (SEE NGS DATA (SEE NGS DATA  NGS DATA NGS DATA  DATA DATA SHEET FOR A MORE DETAILED DESCRIPTION) ELEVATION=756.95 SITE BENCH MARK: SQUARE CUT ON LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND  CUT ON LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND CUT ON LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND  ON LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND ON LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND  LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND  POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND  BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND  LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND  1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND  WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND WEST OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND  OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND OF THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND  THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND THE WEST PROPERTY LINE AND  WEST PROPERTY LINE AND WEST PROPERTY LINE AND  PROPERTY LINE AND PROPERTY LINE AND  LINE AND LINE AND  AND AND 22.0' SE'LY OF CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT BANK DRIVE-THRU. ELEVATION=733.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
  1 FOOT CONTOURS

AutoCAD SHX Text
  TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
= DEPRESSED CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE/BRUSH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
  SPOT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
  DECIDUOUS TREE WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUNK DIAMETER IN INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
  INVERT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
  RIM ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERMAIN LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  STORM MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  STORM CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
  STORM INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
  SANITARY MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  VALVE BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
  VALVE VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
  GAS VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  GAS METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
  ELECTRICAL METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
  JULIE ELECTRIC MARKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
  LIGHT STANDARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
  SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
  BOLLARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
= RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
= DIRECTION (ie NORTHERLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NLY,WLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
= BUILDING SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
= UTILITY & DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
= RECORD/DEED DIMENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
(50.0')

AutoCAD SHX Text
= CONSERVATION EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
  CONIFEROUS TREE WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUNK DIAMETER IN INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE CLUMP W/NUMBER-SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
= ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
= CONCRETE PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
= BUILDING LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
= LANDSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.B.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY'S COMMITMENT ORDER NUMBER CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF  TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY'S COMMITMENT ORDER NUMBER CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY'S COMMITMENT ORDER NUMBER CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF  INSURANCE COMPANY'S COMMITMENT ORDER NUMBER CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF INSURANCE COMPANY'S COMMITMENT ORDER NUMBER CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF  COMPANY'S COMMITMENT ORDER NUMBER CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF COMPANY'S COMMITMENT ORDER NUMBER CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF  COMMITMENT ORDER NUMBER CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF COMMITMENT ORDER NUMBER CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF  ORDER NUMBER CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF ORDER NUMBER CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF  NUMBER CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF NUMBER CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF  CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF CCHI2200616LD, HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF  HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF HAVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF  AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF  EFFECTIVE DATE OF EFFECTIVE DATE OF  DATE OF DATE OF  OF OF JANUARY 24, 2022 HAS BEEN REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  24, 2022 HAS BEEN REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS 24, 2022 HAS BEEN REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  2022 HAS BEEN REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS 2022 HAS BEEN REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  HAS BEEN REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS HAS BEEN REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  BEEN REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS BEEN REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS REVIEWED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS CONJUNCTION WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS WITH THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS THE PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS PREPARATION OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS OF THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS THIS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  SURVEY. THE NUMBERS SURVEY. THE NUMBERS  THE NUMBERS THE NUMBERS  NUMBERS NUMBERS BELOW REFERENCE THE SCHEDULE B, PART 2 ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  REFERENCE THE SCHEDULE B, PART 2 ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL REFERENCE THE SCHEDULE B, PART 2 ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  THE SCHEDULE B, PART 2 ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL THE SCHEDULE B, PART 2 ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  SCHEDULE B, PART 2 ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL SCHEDULE B, PART 2 ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  B, PART 2 ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL B, PART 2 ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  PART 2 ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL PART 2 ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  2 ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL 2 ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL ITEM FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL FOUND IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL IN TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL TITLE COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL COMMITMENT. (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL (NOTE: ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL ITEMS 1-13 ARE GENERAL  1-13 ARE GENERAL 1-13 ARE GENERAL  ARE GENERAL ARE GENERAL  GENERAL GENERAL EXCEPTIONS OR NOTES FOR INFORMATION THAT ARE NOT SURVEY RELATED) 14.	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE  PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE  DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE  HEREON IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE HEREON IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE  IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE  SUBJECT TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE SUBJECT TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE  TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE TO THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE  THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE  TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE TERMS, POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE  POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE POWERS PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE  PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE PROVISIONS, AND LIMITATIONS OF THE  AND LIMITATIONS OF THE AND LIMITATIONS OF THE  LIMITATIONS OF THE LIMITATIONS OF THE  OF THE OF THE  THE THE TRUST UNDER WHICH TITLE TO THE LAND IS HELD. (NO DOCUMENT DISCLOSED OR PROVIDED FOR REVIEW.) 15.	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO RIGHTS OF WAY FOR DRAINAGE TILES, DITCHES, 		THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO RIGHTS OF WAY FOR DRAINAGE TILES, DITCHES, 		FEEDERS, LATERALS AND UNDERGROUND PIPES, IF ANY. SEE SHEET 2 OF 2 FOR IMPROVEMENTS AND DRAINAGE. [16]	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL  PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL  DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL  HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL  IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL  SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL  TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL TO EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL  EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL EASEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL  FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL FOR THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL  THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THE PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL  PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL PURPOSE AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL  AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL  RIGHTS INCIDENTAL RIGHTS INCIDENTAL  INCIDENTAL INCIDENTAL THERETO AS RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. 641267. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) 17.	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE  PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE  DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE  HEREON IS SUBJECT TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE HEREON IS SUBJECT TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE  IS SUBJECT TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE IS SUBJECT TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE  SUBJECT TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE SUBJECT TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE  TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE TO A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE  A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE A RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE  RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE RECAPTURE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE  AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE AGREEMENT AS SHOWN IN THE  AS SHOWN IN THE AS SHOWN IN THE  SHOWN IN THE SHOWN IN THE  IN THE IN THE  THE THE REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R97-115280. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE  AGREEMENT RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R97-115280. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE AGREEMENT RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R97-115280. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE  RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R97-115280. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R97-115280. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE  AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R97-115280. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R97-115280. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE  DOCUMENT NUMBER R97-115280. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE DOCUMENT NUMBER R97-115280. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE  NUMBER R97-115280. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE NUMBER R97-115280. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE  R97-115280. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE R97-115280. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE  NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE  SURVEY RELATED. (SEE SURVEY RELATED. (SEE  RELATED. (SEE RELATED. (SEE  (SEE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) 18.	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  ANNEXATION AGREEMENT ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  AGREEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R97-101663. NO PLOTTABLE RESTRICTIONS. (SEE DOC. FOR PARTICULARS) [19-22]	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY  PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY  DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY  HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY  IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY  SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY  TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY TO EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY  EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY EASEMENTS, SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY  SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY SETBACKS AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY  AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY AND ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY  ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY ACCESS NOTES SET FORTH BY  NOTES SET FORTH BY NOTES SET FORTH BY  SET FORTH BY SET FORTH BY  FORTH BY FORTH BY  BY BY THE FINAL PLAT OF SUBDIVISION RECORDED AS DOC. NUMBER R2002-192064. (SEE DOC. FOR PARTICULARS) [23]	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IS SUBJECT TO ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IS SUBJECT TO ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS  PROPERTY DESCRIBED IS SUBJECT TO ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS PROPERTY DESCRIBED IS SUBJECT TO ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS  DESCRIBED IS SUBJECT TO ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS DESCRIBED IS SUBJECT TO ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS  IS SUBJECT TO ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS IS SUBJECT TO ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS  SUBJECT TO ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS SUBJECT TO ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS  TO ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS TO ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS  ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS ACCESS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS  NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS NOTES ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS  ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS ON PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS  PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS PLAT OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS  OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS OF PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS  PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RECORDED AS  CROSSINGS RECORDED AS CROSSINGS RECORDED AS  RECORDED AS RECORDED AS  AS AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-191084. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL  NUMBER R2002-191084. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL NUMBER R2002-191084. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL  R2002-191084. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL R2002-191084. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL  (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL  DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL  FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL  PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL  (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL  SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL  CENTER AERIAL CENTER AERIAL  AERIAL AERIAL OVERVIEW LOCATION MAP FOR ACCESS EASEMENT LOCATIONS) 24.	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO  PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO  DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO  HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO  IS SUBJECT TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO IS SUBJECT TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO  SUBJECT TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO SUBJECT TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO  TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO  TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO  PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO  AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO  CONDITIONS RELATING TO CONDITIONS RELATING TO  RELATING TO RELATING TO  TO TO EASEMENTS DESCRIBED AS PARCEL 2 AND 3 CONTAINED IN THE INSTRUMENT CREATING SAID EASEMENTS. 25.	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON MAY BE SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON MAY BE SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION  PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON MAY BE SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON MAY BE SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION  DESCRIBED HEREON MAY BE SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION DESCRIBED HEREON MAY BE SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION  HEREON MAY BE SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION HEREON MAY BE SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION  MAY BE SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION MAY BE SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION  BE SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION BE SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION  SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION  TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION  TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION  AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION AND PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION  PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION PROVISIONS OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION  OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION OF A CERTAIN ANNEXATION  A CERTAIN ANNEXATION A CERTAIN ANNEXATION  CERTAIN ANNEXATION CERTAIN ANNEXATION  ANNEXATION ANNEXATION AGREEMENT RECORDED NOVEMBER 6, 2002 WHICH WAS NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR  RECORDED NOVEMBER 6, 2002 WHICH WAS NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR RECORDED NOVEMBER 6, 2002 WHICH WAS NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR  NOVEMBER 6, 2002 WHICH WAS NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR NOVEMBER 6, 2002 WHICH WAS NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR  6, 2002 WHICH WAS NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR 6, 2002 WHICH WAS NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR  2002 WHICH WAS NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR 2002 WHICH WAS NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR  WHICH WAS NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR WHICH WAS NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR  WAS NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR WAS NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR  NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR NOT PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR  PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR PROVIDED OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR  OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR OR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR  REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR REVIEWED BY THIS SURVEYOR  BY THIS SURVEYOR BY THIS SURVEYOR  THIS SURVEYOR THIS SURVEYOR  SURVEYOR SURVEYOR (AGREEMENT LISTED IN THE COMMITMENT IS INCORRECTLY IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030  LISTED IN THE COMMITMENT IS INCORRECTLY IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030 LISTED IN THE COMMITMENT IS INCORRECTLY IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030  IN THE COMMITMENT IS INCORRECTLY IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030 IN THE COMMITMENT IS INCORRECTLY IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030  THE COMMITMENT IS INCORRECTLY IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030 THE COMMITMENT IS INCORRECTLY IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030  COMMITMENT IS INCORRECTLY IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030 COMMITMENT IS INCORRECTLY IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030  IS INCORRECTLY IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030 IS INCORRECTLY IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030  INCORRECTLY IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030 INCORRECTLY IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030  IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030 IDENTIFIED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030  AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030  DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030 DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-19030  NUMBER R2002-19030 NUMBER R2002-19030  R2002-19030 R2002-19030 WHICH IS A MORTGAGE ON AN UNRELATED PARCEL IN WILL COUNTY). (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS)	 [26]	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS  PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS  DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS  HEREON IS SUBJECT TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS HEREON IS SUBJECT TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS  IS SUBJECT TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS IS SUBJECT TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS  SUBJECT TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS SUBJECT TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS  TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS TO OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS  OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS  AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS  EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS  AGREEMENT RECORDED AS AGREEMENT RECORDED AS  RECORDED AS RECORDED AS  AS AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-197770, INCLUDING EASEMENTS, BLANKET IN NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS,  NUMBER R2002-197770, INCLUDING EASEMENTS, BLANKET IN NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS, NUMBER R2002-197770, INCLUDING EASEMENTS, BLANKET IN NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS,  R2002-197770, INCLUDING EASEMENTS, BLANKET IN NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS, R2002-197770, INCLUDING EASEMENTS, BLANKET IN NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS,  INCLUDING EASEMENTS, BLANKET IN NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS, INCLUDING EASEMENTS, BLANKET IN NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS,  EASEMENTS, BLANKET IN NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS, EASEMENTS, BLANKET IN NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS,  BLANKET IN NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS, BLANKET IN NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS,  IN NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS, IN NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS,  NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS, NATURE, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS,  FOR INGRESS, EGRESS, FOR INGRESS, EGRESS,  INGRESS, EGRESS, INGRESS, EGRESS,  EGRESS, EGRESS, PARKING AND UTILITIES OVER THE COMMON PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER,  AND UTILITIES OVER THE COMMON PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER, AND UTILITIES OVER THE COMMON PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER,  UTILITIES OVER THE COMMON PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER, UTILITIES OVER THE COMMON PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER,  OVER THE COMMON PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER, OVER THE COMMON PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER,  THE COMMON PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER, THE COMMON PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER,  COMMON PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER, COMMON PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER,  PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER, PARKING, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER,  DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER, DRIVEWAY AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER,  AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER, AND SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER,  SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER, SIDEWALK AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER,  AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER, AREAS OF SHOPPING CENTER,  OF SHOPPING CENTER, OF SHOPPING CENTER,  SHOPPING CENTER, SHOPPING CENTER,  CENTER, CENTER, AND INCLUDING RIGHTS TO SHOPPING CENTER MONUMENT SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE  INCLUDING RIGHTS TO SHOPPING CENTER MONUMENT SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE INCLUDING RIGHTS TO SHOPPING CENTER MONUMENT SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE  RIGHTS TO SHOPPING CENTER MONUMENT SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE RIGHTS TO SHOPPING CENTER MONUMENT SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE  TO SHOPPING CENTER MONUMENT SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE TO SHOPPING CENTER MONUMENT SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE  SHOPPING CENTER MONUMENT SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE SHOPPING CENTER MONUMENT SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE  CENTER MONUMENT SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE CENTER MONUMENT SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE  MONUMENT SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE MONUMENT SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE  SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE SIGNS. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE  (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE  DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE  FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE FOR PARTICULARS) (SEE  PARTICULARS) (SEE PARTICULARS) (SEE  (SEE (SEE SHOPPING CENTER AERIAL OVERVIEW LOCATION MAP FOR LIMITS AND SIGN LOCATIONS) 27.	PARCEL 1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS PARCEL 1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS  1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS 1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS  DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS  HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS  IS NOT SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS IS NOT SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS  NOT SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS NOT SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS  SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS SUBJECT TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS  TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS TO SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS  SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS SETBACKS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS  AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS  SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS  IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS IN DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS  DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS DOCUMENTS RECORDED AS  RECORDED AS RECORDED AS  AS AS R2002-191084 AND R2003-261229. SEE EXCEPTION 19 ABOVE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE  AND R2003-261229. SEE EXCEPTION 19 ABOVE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE AND R2003-261229. SEE EXCEPTION 19 ABOVE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE  R2003-261229. SEE EXCEPTION 19 ABOVE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE R2003-261229. SEE EXCEPTION 19 ABOVE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE  SEE EXCEPTION 19 ABOVE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE SEE EXCEPTION 19 ABOVE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE  EXCEPTION 19 ABOVE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE EXCEPTION 19 ABOVE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE  19 ABOVE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE 19 ABOVE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE  ABOVE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE ABOVE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE  IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE IN REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE  REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE REGARDS TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE  TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE TO DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE  DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE DOC. R2002-191064 (SEE  R2002-191064 (SEE R2002-191064 (SEE  (SEE (SEE DOCUMENTS FOR PARTICULARS) [28]	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084 THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084  PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084 PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084  DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084 DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084  HEREON IS SUBJECT TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084 HEREON IS SUBJECT TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084  IS SUBJECT TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084 IS SUBJECT TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084  SUBJECT TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084 SUBJECT TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084  TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084 TO UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084  UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084 UTILITY EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084  EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084 EASEMENT AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084  AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084 AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084  SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084 SHOWN IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084  IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084 IN DOCUMENTS R2002-191084  DOCUMENTS R2002-191084 DOCUMENTS R2002-191084  R2002-191084 R2002-191084 AND R2003-261229. OFF-SITE EASEMENTS PARTIALLY SHOWN HEREON. (SEE DOCUMENTS FOR PARTICULARS) [29]	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS  PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS  DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS  HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS HEREON IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS  IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS  SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS  TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS TO EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS  EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS EASEMENT FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS  FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS FOR ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS  ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS ACCESS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS  AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS AS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS  SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS SHOWN IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS  IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS IN DOCUMENT NUMBERS  DOCUMENT NUMBERS DOCUMENT NUMBERS  NUMBERS NUMBERS R2002-192064, R2002-191084 AND R2003-261229. (SEE DOCUMENTS FOR PARTICULARS) 30.	PARCEL 1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS PARCEL 1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS  1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS 1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS  DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS  HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS  IS NOT SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS IS NOT SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS  NOT SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS NOT SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS  SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS SUBJECT TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS  TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS TO EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS  EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS EASEMENT, COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS  COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS COVENANTS, CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS  CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS  OR RESTRICTIONS OR RESTRICTIONS  RESTRICTIONS RESTRICTIONS FOUND IN DOCUMENT RECORDED AS R2002-197768. EASEMENTS LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR  IN DOCUMENT RECORDED AS R2002-197768. EASEMENTS LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR IN DOCUMENT RECORDED AS R2002-197768. EASEMENTS LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR  DOCUMENT RECORDED AS R2002-197768. EASEMENTS LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR DOCUMENT RECORDED AS R2002-197768. EASEMENTS LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR  RECORDED AS R2002-197768. EASEMENTS LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR RECORDED AS R2002-197768. EASEMENTS LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR  AS R2002-197768. EASEMENTS LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR AS R2002-197768. EASEMENTS LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR  R2002-197768. EASEMENTS LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR R2002-197768. EASEMENTS LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR  EASEMENTS LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR EASEMENTS LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR  LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR LIE OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR  OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR OFFSITE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR  (SEE DOCUMENT FOR (SEE DOCUMENT FOR  DOCUMENT FOR DOCUMENT FOR  FOR FOR PARTICULARS) 31.	PARCEL 1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE PARCEL 1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE  1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE 1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE  DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE  HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE  IS NOT SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE IS NOT SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE  NOT SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE NOT SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE  SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE SUBJECT TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE  TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE TO A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE  A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE A 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE  20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE 20 FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE  FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE FOOT PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE  PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE  EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE EASEMENT FOR DRAINAGE  FOR DRAINAGE FOR DRAINAGE  DRAINAGE DRAINAGE PURPOSES RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2003-1156511. EASEMENT AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE  RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2003-1156511. EASEMENT AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2003-1156511. EASEMENT AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE  AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2003-1156511. EASEMENT AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2003-1156511. EASEMENT AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE  DOCUMENT NUMBER R2003-1156511. EASEMENT AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE DOCUMENT NUMBER R2003-1156511. EASEMENT AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE  NUMBER R2003-1156511. EASEMENT AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE NUMBER R2003-1156511. EASEMENT AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE  R2003-1156511. EASEMENT AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE R2003-1156511. EASEMENT AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE  EASEMENT AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE EASEMENT AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE  AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE AFFECTS PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE  PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE PROPERTY OFF-SITE. (SEE  OFF-SITE. (SEE OFF-SITE. (SEE  (SEE (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) 32.	PARCEL 1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED PARCEL 1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED  1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED 1 DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED  DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED DESCRIBED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED  HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED HEREON IS NOT SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED  IS NOT SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED IS NOT SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED  NOT SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED NOT SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED  SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED SUBJECT TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED  TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED TO BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED  BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED  SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED SETBACK LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED  LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED LINES SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED  SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED SHOWN IN DOCUMENT RECORDED  IN DOCUMENT RECORDED IN DOCUMENT RECORDED  DOCUMENT RECORDED DOCUMENT RECORDED  RECORDED RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2002-191084. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS) 33.	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS  PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS  DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS  HEREON IS SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS HEREON IS SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS  IS SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS IS SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS  SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS  TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS TO COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS  COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS  CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS  AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS AND RESTRICTION RECORDED AS  RESTRICTION RECORDED AS RESTRICTION RECORDED AS  RECORDED AS RECORDED AS  AS AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 2005223019. (SEE EXCEPTION 24 ABOVE) (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS). 34.	THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439, THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439,  PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439, PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439,  DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439, DESCRIBED HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439,  HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439, HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439,  IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439, IS SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439,  SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439, SUBJECT TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439,  TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439, TO TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439,  TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439, TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439,  AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439, AND PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439,  PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439, PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439,  OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439, OF ORDINANCE NO. 2439,  ORDINANCE NO. 2439, ORDINANCE NO. 2439,  NO. 2439, NO. 2439,  2439, 2439, RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2008-024281. NOT SURVEY RELATED. (SEE DOCUMENT FOR PARTICULARS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW LENOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS POINTS TO WOLF ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS POINTS TO IL30 (LINCOLN HWY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS TO EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. R200219184[29]

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE CROSSINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETENTION EASEMENT PER DOC. R200219184

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW LENOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
[24,29]

AutoCAD SHX Text
[24]

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOPPING CENTER PERIMETER [26]

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONUMENT SIGN #2 [26]

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONUMENT SIGN #1[26]

AutoCAD SHX Text
= PUBLIC UTILITY & DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
= PERMANENT ROAD EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.E.



L I N C O L N     H I G H W A Y

’

AutoCAD SHX Text
150' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' C.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' U.D.E. & L.B.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' U.D.E. & L.B.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' C.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCH MARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY OVERHANG W/COLUMNS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEDIAN W/ATM & BANKING EQUIPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED STRIPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE WALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST ROAD SOUND WALL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
END OF WALL 5.1' W'LY & 10.3' S'LY

AutoCAD SHX Text
END OF CURB 2.1' E'LY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF GUTTER 6.8' E'LY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF GUTTER 4.7' E'LY

AutoCAD SHX Text
(IL ROUTE 30)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED STRIPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DSD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DSD

AutoCAD SHX Text
"NO BUILDINGS OBSERVED"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 01°56'20" W (N 00 12'23" E)  328.31' (N 00°12'23" E)  328.31' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 88°29'41" W  (N 89 21'36" W) 311.05'  (N 89°21'36" W) 311.05' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 01°56'20" W (N 00°12'23" E)103.54'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 87°57'10" E (S 89°54'07" E)60.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 85°34'34" E  (S 83 25'45" E)  252.80'  (S 83°25'45" E)  252.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 01°54'36" E  (S 00 14'07" W) 406.30'  (S 00°14'07" W) 406.30' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.5' TELECOM. EASEMENT PER DOCUMENT NO. 641267

AutoCAD SHX Text
3' DIA. CONCRETE BLOCK FIRE PIT 3.8' N'LY

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.2' S'LY

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.4' S'LY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS   

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECK BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGHT ON SOLUTIONS, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLANS, GRADING PLANS, FEMA CERTIFICATES AND MORE

AutoCAD SHX Text
"WE GET CORNERS OTHER PEOPLE CUT!"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Surveyor's email: mikeu@sightonsolutions.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOS#:

AutoCAD SHX Text
557 CAPITAL DRIVE, LAKE ZURICH, ILLINOIS 60047

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE: 847.356.7539  FAX: 815.578.9647  www.sightonsolutions.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND SURVEYING, TOPOGRAPHIC MAPPING, SITE STAKING,

AutoCAD SHX Text
K.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.S.U.

AutoCAD SHX Text
02/16/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACANT LOT - LINCOLN HIGHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANKFORT, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE & TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
21627

AutoCAD SHX Text
02/17/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODIFIED NOTES/LABELS, ADDED FIRE PIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.S.U.

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.S.U.

AutoCAD SHX Text
  1 FOOT CONTOURS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWN SPOUT TO DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DSD

AutoCAD SHX Text
  TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
= DEPRESSED CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE/BRUSH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
  SPOT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
  DECIDUOUS TREE WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUNK DIAMETER IN INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
  INVERT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
  RIM ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERMAIN LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  STORM MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  STORM CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
  STORM INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
  SANITARY MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  VALVE BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
  VALVE VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
  GAS VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  GAS METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
  ELECTRICAL METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
  JULIE ELECTRIC MARKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
  LIGHT STANDARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
  SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
  BOLLARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
= RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
= DIRECTION (ie NORTHERLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NLY,WLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
= BUILDING SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.S.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
= UTILITY & DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.D.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
= RECORD/DEED DIMENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
(50.0')

AutoCAD SHX Text
= CONSERVATION EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
  CONIFEROUS TREE WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUNK DIAMETER IN INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE CLUMP W/NUMBER-SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
= ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
= CONCRETE PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
= BUILDING LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
= LANDSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.B.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE AND TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 1: LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST  OF THE SOUTHWEST OF THE SOUTHWEST  THE SOUTHWEST THE SOUTHWEST  SOUTHWEST SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  ACCORDING TO THE PLAT ACCORDING TO THE PLAT  TO THE PLAT TO THE PLAT  THE PLAT THE PLAT  PLAT PLAT THEREOF RECORDED NOVEMBER 8, 2002, AS DOCUMENT NO. R2002-192064 IN WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS. PARCEL 2: EASEMENT FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, BY ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, EASEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, BETWEEN KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES,  KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, KOHL’S DEPARTMENT STORES, S DEPARTMENT STORES,  DEPARTMENT STORES, DEPARTMENT STORES,  STORES, STORES, INC. A DELAWARE CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  A DELAWARE CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS A DELAWARE CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  DELAWARE CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS DELAWARE CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS BANKING CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS CORPORATION, RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  JANUARY 17, 2003 AS JANUARY 17, 2003 AS  17, 2003 AS 17, 2003 AS  2003 AS 2003 AS  AS AS DOCUMENT NO.  2003-12121 FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  NO.  2003-12121 FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND NO.  2003-12121 FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND   2003-12121 FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  2003-12121 FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND 2003-12121 FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND FOR THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND THE PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND PASSAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY AND  THE DRIVEWAY AND THE DRIVEWAY AND  DRIVEWAY AND DRIVEWAY AND  AND AND ACCESS ROAD AS DESCRIBED IN SAID DOCUMENT. PARCEL 3: EASEMENT FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE BY ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE ACCESS AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  NLSB, AS TRUSTEE NLSB, AS TRUSTEE  AS TRUSTEE AS TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE TRUSTEE UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  THE PROVISIONS OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, THE PROVISIONS OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  PROVISIONS OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, PROVISIONS OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, AUGUST 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, 18, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, 1988, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, KNOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, AS TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, TRUST NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, NO. 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  1183, RECORDED MARCH 24, 1183, RECORDED MARCH 24,  RECORDED MARCH 24, RECORDED MARCH 24,  MARCH 24, MARCH 24,  24, 24, 2004 AS DOCUMENT R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  AS DOCUMENT R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK AS DOCUMENT R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  DOCUMENT R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK DOCUMENT R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK  NEW LENOX STATE BANK NEW LENOX STATE BANK  LENOX STATE BANK LENOX STATE BANK  STATE BANK STATE BANK  BANK BANK PHASE 2, RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. R2003-261 229, IN WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH MARKS: (NAVD88) SOURCE BENCH MARK: NGS MONUMENT WITH PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN  MONUMENT WITH PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN MONUMENT WITH PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN  WITH PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN WITH PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN  PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN PID DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN  DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN DN4718 BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN  BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN BEING A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN  A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN A STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN  STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN STAINLESS STEEL ROD IN  STEEL ROD IN STEEL ROD IN  ROD IN ROD IN  IN IN SLEEVE. (SEE NGS DATA SHEET FOR A MORE DETAILED DESCRIPTION) ELEVATION=756.95 SITE BENCH MARK: SQUARE CUT ON LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST  CUT ON LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST CUT ON LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST  ON LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST ON LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST  LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST LIGHT POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST  POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST POLE BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST  BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST BASE LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST  LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST LOCATED 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST  1.7' WEST OF THE WEST 1.7' WEST OF THE WEST  WEST OF THE WEST WEST OF THE WEST  OF THE WEST OF THE WEST  THE WEST THE WEST  WEST WEST PROPERTY LINE AND 22.0' SE'LY OF CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT  LINE AND 22.0' SE'LY OF CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT LINE AND 22.0' SE'LY OF CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT  AND 22.0' SE'LY OF CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT AND 22.0' SE'LY OF CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT  22.0' SE'LY OF CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT 22.0' SE'LY OF CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT  SE'LY OF CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT SE'LY OF CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT  OF CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT OF CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT  CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT CONCRETE MEDIAN OF ADJACENT  MEDIAN OF ADJACENT MEDIAN OF ADJACENT  OF ADJACENT OF ADJACENT  ADJACENT ADJACENT BANK DRIVE-THRU. ELEVATION=733.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch = 20 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
20



GENERAL SITE NOTES

LEGEND

PAVEMENT LEGEND

PROPOSED CONCRETE PAD
4" PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE
4" AGGREGATE BASE

PROPOSED GREEN SYNTHETIC TURF W
ITH CUSHION

SEE DETAILS ON AS2.0 AND SPECIFICATIONS.

PLAYGROUND KEY NOTES
-

12'x12' SHADE PYRAMID
S1

PRESCHOOL PICNIC TABLE
S2

TODDLER TABLE
S3S5

BASKETBALL HOOP - SEE DETAIL 7/AS-2.0. COORDINATE W
ITH TENANT VENDOR

S7

STORAGE SHED (BY TENANT) TYP. OF 2
S8

2'x4' PLANTER BOXES W
ITH 3'x5' W

ALK CLEARANCES BY TENANT
S9

PLAYGROUND GAME STRIPING BY G.C.
S10

S6

PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT. TYP.
S4

PLAYGROUND MOUNDS - SEE DETAIL ON SHEET AS2.0

FUN TUNNEL BALL DROP- MOUNT TO 6' HIGH TO TOP OF THE RIM.

SITE NOTES

1.
CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN ALL NECESSARY PERMITS PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF
CONSTRUCTION.

2.
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING SAFE AND ADEQUATE W

ORKING
CONDITIONS THROUGHOUT THE DURATION OF THE PROPOSED SITE IMPROVEMENTS.

3.
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFICATION OF ALL SITE SETBACKS, EASEMENTS
AND DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION.

4.
ALL CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS AND W

ORKMANSHIP SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE W
ITH THE

LATEST STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS.
5.

ALL HANDICAP ACCESSIBLE SITE IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE
W

ITH ALL FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL CODES AND REQUIREMENTS.
6.

IF DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION THE CONTRACTOR FINDS ANY DISCREPANCIES OR
CONFLICTS BETW

EEN THE PROPOSED SITE IMPROVEMENTS INDICATED ON THE PLANS AND THE
PHYSICAL CONDITIONS OF THE SITE, OR ANY ERRORS OR OMISSIONS W

ITHIN THE PLANS OR IN
THE SITE LAYOUT AS PROVIDED BY THE ENGINEER, IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE
CONTRACTOR TO IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE ENGINEER. UNTIL AUTHORIZED TO PROCEED, ANY
W

ORK PERFORMED BY THE CONTRACTOR AFTER SUCH A DISCOVERY W
ILL BE AT THE

CONTRACTOR'S SOLE RISK AND EXPENSE.
7.

CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE ALL SITE IMPROVEMENTS W
ITH ARCHITECTURAL PLANS.

ARCHITECTURAL PLANS SHALL BE USED FOR BUILDING STAKEOUT.
8.

CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE ALL LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS, INCLUDING NEW
 PLANTINGS

AND TURF AREA RESTORATION REQUIREMENTS, W
ITH THE LANDSCAPE PLANS. CONTRACTOR TO

ENSURE NO PLANTINGS ARE IN PLAY AREAS OR FENCED-IN AREAS.
9.

CONSTRUCTION SURVEY AND STAKEOUT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR.
10.ALL DIMENSIONS SHOW

N ARE MEASURED FROM FACE OF CURB TO FACE OF CURB, OR EDGE OF
PAVEMENT TO EDGE OF PAVEMENT UNLESS OTHERW

ISE NOTED.
11.ALL CURB RADII ARE MEASURED AT THE FACE OF CURB UNLESS OTHERW

ISE NOTED.
12.ALL NEW

 ASPHALT AND/OR CONCRETE PAVING SHALL MATCH EXISTING PAVEMENT FLUSH.
13.CONTRACTOR SHALL RESTORE ALL DISTURBED AREAS OUTSIDE OF CONSTRUCTION LIMITS TO

ORIGINAL CONDITION OR BETTER.
14.CONTRACTOR SHALL REPAIR AT HIS EXPENSE ANY DAMAGE TO EXISTING ASPHALT, CONCRETE,

CURBS, SIDEW
ALKS, ETC. RESULTING FROM CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC AND/OR OPERATIONS.

REPAIRS SHALL BE MADE TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE OW
NER AND/OR ENGINEER.

15.ALL FIRE ACCESS LANES W
ITHIN THE PROJECT AREA SHALL REMAIN IN SERVICE, CLEAN OF

DEBRIS, AND ACCESSIBLE FOR USE BY EMERGENCY VEHICLES.
16.ALL DETECTABLE W

ARNING PLATES SHALL BE PREFORMED PLASTIC INSERTS UNLESS
OTHERW

ISE NOTED.
17.PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED AND INSTALLED PER THE PUBLIC

PLAYGROUND SAFETY HANDBOOK BY THE CONSUMER PRODUCT AND SAFETY COMMISSION AND
ASTM F2373-11 AND ASTM F1487-11, PLAYGROUND FENCE TO BE CONSTRUCTED AND INSTALLED
PER ASTM F2049-11.

18.GC SHALL REVIEW
 PLAYGROUND LAYOUT AND COORDINATE PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT LOCATION

W
ITH EQUIPMENT VENDOR PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

19.SIDEW
ALK SHALL CONFORM TO ACCESSIBILITY CODES A117.1 AND 1108.2

20.ENTRAPMENT: THE DISTANCE BETW
EEN ANY OPPOSING SURFACES OR OBJECTS SHALL NOT BE

GREATER THAN 3 1/2" AND LESS THAN 9".
21.CONCRETE SIDEW

ALK AT BUILDING PERIMETER SHALL SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT AW
AY FROM THE

BUILDING. THIS INCLUDES FROST SLABS AT DOOR EGRESS.

3/4" X 18 ga. PICKET
- COLOR: BLACK

POST SIZE VARIES W
ITH HEIGHT.

CENTER POST BETW
EEN

MASONRY PIERS (8'-0" O.C. MAX.)

FINISH GRADE

12" DIA. MIN.
CONCRETE POST
FOOTING

1 1/2" RAIL

SCALE: N.T.S.
ORNAMENTAL FENCE

2
AS1.0

SCALE: N.T.S.
ORNAMENTAL FENCE GATE

1
AS1.0

6'-0"

5'-4"

3'-0"6"

3" AIRSPACE
BETW

EEN PICKETS

2" MAX.

1'-0"
TYP.

1.
COORDINATE PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT W

/ VENDOR DRAW
INGS FOR PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT

DETAILS, AND DESIGN/LAYOUT REQUIRED FOR INSTALLATION OF ALL PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT.
G.C. TO OBTAIN PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT DRAW

INGS FROM VENDOR PRIOR TO START OF
CONSTRUCTION.

2.
ALL FENCE GATES TO HAVE SURFACE MOUNTED EXTERIOR PANIC HARDW

ARE. BASIS OF
DESIGN @

 ALL ALUMINUM GATES: ADVANTEX W
ITH AUDIBLE ALARM. SEE DETAILS ON THIS

SHEET.
3.

PROVIDE PROTECTIVE W
RAP AROUND DOW

NSPOUTS IN PLAYGROUND AREAS. SEE DETAILS ON
SHEET AS2.0.

4.
PROVIDE ACCESS GATE @

 PERIMETER. LOCATION TO BE APPROVED BY TENANT.
5.

PROVIDE A 25'-0" SINGLE SECTION UNIT FLAG POLE CONSTRUCTED OF A MINIMUM 0.156" THICK
ALUMINUM IN A SATIN FINISH W

ITH A MINIMUM BASE DIAMETER OF 6" AND W
ITH AN INTERNAL

ROPE BASE HALYARD. THE CAP SHALL BE A SPUN ALUMINUM BALL AND COLLAR. THE POLE
SHALL BE EQUIPPED W

ITH A LIGHTNING PROTECTION GROUND SLEEVE ASSEMBLY. PROVIDE
AND INSTALL A 4'-0" X 6'-0" UNITED STATES FLAG. COORDINATE LOCATION AND LIGHT FIXTURE
W

/ CIVIL.
6.

ANY SURFACE MOUNTED TRANSFORMERS, PUMPS, STORM W
ATER DEVICES, METERS, SHALL BE

LOCATED AW
AY FROM FRONT ENTRANCE AND BUILDING/PLAYGROUND.

7.
VEHICULAR PROTECTION REQUIRED W

HERE DRIVE AISLES, PARKING LOTS OR ROADW
AYS

BORDER PLAYGROUND AREAS. GUARD RAILS, BOULDERS, BOLLARDS OR W
ALLS AS REQUIRED

AND APPROVED BY TENANT.
8.

STORM DRAINS ARE NOT ALLOW
ED IN THE PLAYGROUND AREAS. IF DRAINS HAVE TO BE

INSTLLED IN THESE AREAS DUE TO SITE CONSTRAINTS, THE DEVELOPER OR CIVIL SHALL
OBTAIN TENANT'S APPROVAL PRIOR TO SUBMITTAL TO THE AHJs.  DRAINS W

ILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED IN SYNTHETIC TURF AREAS.

9.
CATCH BASIN GRATE SLOTS SHALL HAVE 38 " W

IDTH MAX. W
IDER GRATES ARE NOT ALLOW

ED.
10.ALL DOW

NSPOUT ROOF LEADERS SHALL BE ROUTED UNDERGROUND INTO STORM SYSTEM.

SCALE: N.T.S.
BOLLARD TYPES

3
AS1.0

VEHICULAR PROTECTION BOLLARD LEGEND:

PROPOSED 6' ORNAMENTAL ALUMINUM FENCE (COLOR BLACK) W
ITH

BRICK PIERS AND STONE CAP, W
HERE SHOW

 IN PLANS.

PROPERTY LINE

PROPOSED 4' ORNAMENTAL ALUMINUM FENCE- BLACK

S20
S20 BOLLARD RATED FOR 20 MPH:
McCUE 4" CRASHCORE  BOLLARD W

ITH HDPE (PLASTIC) POST COVER, COLOR
GRAY: ORDER NO. 2B-601-121

S20-S
S20 BOLLARD RATED FOR 20 MPH:
McCUE 4" CRASHCORE  BOLLARD W

ITH HDPE (PLASTIC) POST COVER, COLOR
GRAY, W

ITH CRASHCORE SIGN POST ADD-ON: ORDER NO. 2B-695-121-9S604.
(PROVIDE SIGN PLACARD PER PER CIVIL'S SPECIFICATIONS)

S15
S15 BOLLARD RATED FOR 15 MPH:
McCUE 4" CRASHCORE  BOLLARD W

ITH HDPE (PLASTIC) POST COVER, COLOR
GRAY: ORDER NO. 15B-601-121

3" MAX.
4'-0" MIN.

2" (HINGE CLEARANCE)

34"-44"

4'-0" OR 6'-0"
SEE SITE PLAN3'-0"

FINISH GRADE

EXIT DEVICE, SEE NOTES
ON SHEET AS2.1

PROVIDE 10" H. KICK PLATE
ON PUSH SIDE OF GATE

6"

12" DIA. SONOTUBE FILLED
W

/ CONCRETE, TYP.

1'-0"

2" MAX. 10"

PROVIDE STEEL PLATE ON BOTH
SIDES OF FENCE AS NECESSARY
FOR MOUNTING EXIT DEVICE.

BRICK PIER TO
MATCH BUILDING
FINISH. SEE SHEET
A5.0.

STONE CAP TO
MATCH BUILDING
W

INDOW
 SILLS.

FENCE GENERAL NOTES
1.

MAINTAIN A MAXIMUM 2" GAP ALONG THE BOTTOM OF RAIL OF ANY PERIMETER FENCE, UNLESS THERE
ARE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS BY THE STATE LICENSING REGULATIONS.

2.
THERE SHALL BE NO OPEN SPACES MEASURING BETW

EEN 3-1/2"-9" BETW
EEN ANY RAILING

COMPONENTS, OR BETW
EEN RAILING SYSTEM AND EXISTING FLOOR OR W

ALLS.
3.

W
EATHERIZED EXIT DEVISE  (ALARMED): ADVANTEX V40W

-(hand)-360-EBW
- (size)-SN1-GTPLKIT with (1)

SCHLAGE CYLINER 20-001.
4.

W
EATHERIZED EXIT DEVISE (NOT ALARMED): ADVANTEX V40W

-(hand)-360-___-(size)-SN1-GTPLKIT with (1)
SCHLAGE CYLINER 20-001.

5.
PROVIDE TYPICAL CLAW

 FOOT GATE LATCH AT INTERIOR PROPERTY GATES.
6.

GC SHALL ENSURE THAT GATE POSTS REMAIN ALIGNED AFTER GATE OPERATION. POST CORE AND
FULL FOUNDATIONS SHALL BE PROVIDED PER PLANS .

7.
INSTALL SELF CLOSING HINGES AT ALARMED GATES. REFER TO SITE PLAN FOR LOCATIONS.

EQ.EQ.
EQ.

EQ.

12
3 4

2
AS2.0

8
AS2.0

MONUMENT SIGN, SEE SIGN
PACKAGE &  ARCHITECTURAL
DETAILS.

25' FLAGPOLE

CONCRETE PAD

GREEN SYNTHETIC
TURF USED BY ALL
AGE GROUPS

GREEN SYNTHETIC TURF
TO MEET 4' FALL ZONE
HEIGHT REQUIREMENTS,
TYP.

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

GATE W
/

HORSESHOE
LATCH

6' H. ORNAMENTAL
ALUMINUM FENCE W

ITH
MASONRY PIERS, TYP.
SEE DETAIL 2/AS1.0.

STROLLER RAMP

DASHED LINE DESIGNATES
BICYCLE TRACK. SEE 9/AS2.0

BOLLARDS AT
STROLLER RAMP

PROPOSED PREMIUM PRESCHOOL
12,870 S.F.
1 STORY

MAIN
ENTRY

PRESCHOOL
PLAYGROUND

INFANT/TODDLER
PLAYGROUND

8
AS2.0

8'-4"

12'-3"

S4

S4

S4

S5

4
AS2.0

2
AS2.0

10
AS2.0TYP. S8

S9

S6S10

S7

S2 S1

S10

1
AS2.1

REFER TO SHEET A0.1 FOR CODE DATA,
BUILDING OCCUPANCY, AND EGRESS
FROM BUILDING.

4' H.  GATE W
/

PANIC HARDW
ARE

(NOT ALARMED).
SEE DETAIL 1/AS-1.

4' H. FENCE & GATE W
/

ALARMED PANIC HARDW
ARE

AND SELF-CLOSING HINGES.
SEE DETAIL 1/AS-1

LANDSCAPE AREA
LANDSCAPE AREA

PROVIDE VEHICULAR PROTECTION BOLLARDS (5'-6" O.C. MAX.).
SEE LEGEND ON THIS SHEET. CIVIL AND DEVELOPER TO
COORDINATE ACTUAL REQUIREMENTS AND DESIGN W

ITH
LEARNING CARE GROUP'S VEHICULAR PROTECTION
CONSULTANT PRIOR TO SITE SUBMITTAL TO THE AJHs.

1'-6" TO
CENTERLINE

S15 S3 S1

S5

SLOPE 1/4" PER
FT. AW

AY FROM
BUILDING. TYP.

SLOPE
PROVIDE FOOR DRAIN
IN ALCOVE AREA.
COORD. W

ITH CIVIL.

SLOPE

INSTALL SO THAT
CORNERS TOUCH
THE TURF. TYP.

TYP. U.N.O. SEE SPECS ON THIS SHEET.
S20

SANITARY

S20-S
4'-6"

4'-6"

LANDSCAPE AREA

UTILITY SERVICE ALCOVE

SEE PLAN AND EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS FOR GATE DETAILS.

GAS

ELEC.
SERVICE

FDC
DOMESTIC AND FIRE
W

ATER SERVICE

18'-1"77'-5"

60'-7"

32'-7"

25'-0"

21'-0"

10'-3"

17'-5"
56'-3"

11'-6" 52'-4"

R9'-7"TYP.

R5'-9"
S10

S10
S10

SLOPE

4' H. FENCE & GATE W
/

ALARMED PANIC HARDW
ARE

AND SELF-CLOSING HINGES.
SEE DETAIL 1/AS-1

6' H. FENCE & GATE W
/

ALARMED PANIC HARDW
ARE

AND SELF-CLOSING HINGES.
SEE DETAIL 1/AS-1

EASEMENT

50' BUILDING SETBACK

BUILDING SETBACK

15' BUILDING SETBACK

50' BUILDING SETBACK

EASEMENT

EX. BANK
DRIVE THRU

EXISTING RETAINING
W

ALLS

CIVIL TO DETERMINE
IS SINGLE OR DOUBLE
CAPACITY DUMPSTER
IS REQUIRED

6'-6" 5'-0"

S20-S

4' H. FENCE & GATE W
/ ALARMED PANIC

HARDW
ARE AND SELF-CLOSING HINGES.

SEE DETAIL 1/AS1.0

62'-0"

5'-7" 13'-3"

11'-11"

4
AS2.0

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

ROUTE 30

29'-0"

EVERBROOK
DIRECTIONAL SIGN

94'-2"

70'-6"
DISTANCE TO PROP. LINE

38'-0"
 DISTANCE TO

PROP. LINE

170'-9"
DISTANCE TO PROP. LINE

115'-5" DISTANCE TO PROP. LINE

EVERBROOK ACADEMY- FRANKFORT
LINCOLN HWY FRANKFORT, IL, 60423

JOB NO.

DATE

22024

SHEET NO.

# DATE TYPE
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

REVISIONS

03/01/2022

10

12 K PROTOTYPE/MODEL

17710 Detroit Avenue     Lakewood, Ohio  44107
Phone (216)  521-5134         Fax (216) 521-4824

www.adaarchitects.com
THESE DOCUMENTS CONTAIN INFORMATION PROPRIETARY TO ADA ARCHITECTS, INC.

UNAUTHORIZED USE OF THESE DOCUMENTS IS EXPRESSLY PROHIBITED UNLESS AGREED UPON IN WRITING.

SITE PLAN

AS1.0
SCALE: 1" = 20'-0"
SITE PLAN

1
AS1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

mschwarz
Received



SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"
DETAIL AT GATE

8
AS2.1

HSS 2 x 2 x 3/16" GATE
FRAME AND CROSS

BRACING

SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"
DETAIL AT GATE

9
AS2.1

2"
6"

8A2.1

1'-0"

4"x4" STEEL TUBE POST, W
ITH

HEAVY DUTY HINGES AT TOP,
MIDDLE, & BOTTOM. PAINTED
PAD-CLAD SIERRA TAN.

CONCRETE FILLED 6"
DIA. STEEL BOLLARD.
SEE 12/AS2.1

ENCLOSURE W
ALL

BOERBOEL EPN-5078: 2 3/4"
HEAVY-DUTY CENTER MOUNT
HINGE. QTY. PER MANUF.
REQUIREMENTS BUT NOT LEST
THT PROVIDE (3) PER LEAVE.

HSS 2 x 2 x 3/16" GATE FRAME
AND CROSS BRACING. PAINT
TO MATCH SLATS COLOR.

2x COMPOSITE  W
OOD SLATS.

MATCH SD-1 COLOR AS
CLOSE AS POSSIBLE.

STONE FINISH BELOW
.

SEE ELEVATIONS.

SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"
SECTION THRU MONUMENT SIGN

5
AS2.1

REFER TO SITE PLANS
FOR GRADING INFO 8'-0"

4"

PREFINISHED METAL
COPING TO MATCH
CMU COLOR.

2X BLOCKING
ANCHORED TO CMU

8" BOND BEAM W
/

(2) #4 CONT.

HORIZONTAL
REINFORCEMENT:
#9 GA. LADDER
TYPE 16" O.C.

CONCRETE PAD W
ITH

BROOM FINISH, SEE CIVIL

COMPACTED
ENGINEERED FILL

SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"
TRASH ENCLOSURE W

ALL SECTION
4

AS2.1

EQ

GROUT CORES SOLID
BELOW

 GRADE, TYP.

36" SPLICE (MIN.)

3'-6" MIN.
(FROST LINE)

EQ
EQ

3'-0"

1'-4"

#5 @
 12" O.C.

EQ

#5 @
 32" O.C. W

/ DOW
ELS

TO MATCH. GROUT SOLID
AT REINF. CORES.

(4) #5 CONT.

PRE-MOLDED
JOINT FILLER

STL. MESH

PROVIDE FULL CMU COURSES
BELOW GRADE AS NEEDED

FOR  SITE CONDITIONS

INTEGRALLY
COLORED 8" CMU.

ST-2

ST-1

PROVIDE CAST
STONE SILL
ALIGN W

ITH CMU
COURSE. SEE
ELEVATION.

STONE

3" MIN.

2" 2"

PER MFG.
REQUIREMENTS

FAUX CEDAR W
OOD SLATS

STANDARD COLOR TO
MATCH NICHIHA FINISH AS
CLOSE AS POSSIBLE.

SIGN BY VENDOR

4" DIA. STEEL PIPE

2'-8"

1"
INTEGRAL DRIP EDGE

8" BOND BEAMS W
/ (2)

#4 CONT., EA.

±2'-4"
REFER TO SIGN PACKAGE
BEFORE CONSTRUCTION

PRECAST STONE SILL
TO MATCH BUILDING

#5 BARS @
 32" O.C.

VERTICAL
REINFORCEMENT @

 ℄
OF 10" CMU. GROUT ALL
CELLS SOLID (TYP.)
ALSO PROVIDE AT END
PIERS.

GRADE -
SEE CIVIL

(3) #6 @
 TOP

& BOTTOM

EQ
EQ

#4 @
 12" O.C.

3" MIN.

8" MIN.

4"

STARTER TRACK GAP
PER MFR. SPECS.

2'-0"

2'-0"

ST-1
STONE PIER BEYOND

5'-0"

MASONRY TIES SPACED 32"
O.C. MAX HORIZONTALLY
AND 16" MAX VERTICALLY

8
AS2.1

8'-0"

4"x4" GALVANIZED TUBE STEEL
GATE POST: T/POST AT 8'-0" ABOVE
SLAB. SEE DETAIL ON THIS SHEET.
PAINTED TO MATCH SLATS.

2" METAL TUBE FRAME AND
CROSS BRACING W

ITH VERTICAL
SLATS. PAINTED TO MATCH
SLATS.

PAIR 7'-6" HIGH GATE DOORS W
/

2x COMPOSITE W
OOD SLATS:

HOLD 4" ABOVE SLAB.

BRICK AND STONE FINISHES TO
MATCH THE BUILDING

PAINTED CONCRETE FILLED BOLLARD,
TYP. REFER TO BOLLARD DETAIL

PAIR OF GALVANIZED CANE
BOLTS: DRILL 3" INTO SLAB

PAVEMENT - REFER TO SITE
PLANS FOR GRADE INFO

4'-6"
UNPAINTED

6"
MIN.

SCALE: 3/8" = 1'-0"
PLAN AT ENCLOSURE

1
AS2.1

EQ

4'-0"
(U.N.O)

4'-0"
UNPAINTED

CONCRETE FILLED 6"
DIAMETER STANDARD STEEL
PIPE PAINT SAFETY YELLOW

6"
MIN.

ROUNDED CONCRETE
TOP, PAINTED

PAVING OR CONCRETE SLAB

CONCRETE FOOTING.
MIN. 6" BELOW

 BOTTOM
OF PIPE

SCALE: 3/8" = 1'-0"
ELEVATION AT ENCLOSURE

3
AS2.1

8'-0"

ROUNDED CONCRETE
TOP, PAINTED

CONCRETE FILLED 4"X4"
SQUARE GALVANIZED
STEEL TUBE

PAVING OR CONCRETE SLAB

CONCRETE FOOTING.
MIN. 6" BELOW

 BOTTOM
OF PIPE

SCALE: 3/8" = 1'-0"
ELEVATION AT ENCLOSURE

2
AS2.1

SCALE: 3/8" = 1'-0"
DETAIL AT PIPE BOLLARD

12
AS2.1

SCALE: 3/8" = 1'-0"
DETAIL AT GATE POST

11
AS2.1

6"
DIA.

4"

CONCRETE PAD

CAST STONE AND THIN BRICK TO ON
8" CMU. SEE GENERAL NOTE 5.

11'-0" 22'-0"
OVERALL DIM.

±8'-6 3/8"

9'-4"

2
AS2.1

2
AS2.1

3
AS2.1

9
AS2.1

4
AS2.1

SIM.

TYP. (2)
CONCRETE FILLED
BOLLARD, TYP.  OF 4.
REFER TO BOLLARD
DETAIL 12/AS2.1

2'-5"
TYP.

6"
TYP.

EQ

2'-0"

EQ
EQ

1'-6"

1'-6" MAX.
TYP.

W
HEELSTOPS,

(TYP. OF 4)

GENERAL NOTES

G.C. AND CIVIL TO VERIFY TRASH DISPOSAL
AND RECYCLING REQUIREMENTS (NUMBER
OF DUMPSTERS AND ENCLOSURE SIZE) W

ITH
LOCAL JURISDICTION PRIOR TO
CONSTRUCTION. ADJUST DUMPSTER
ENCLOSURE SIZE ACCORDINGLY.

1.
CONTRACTOR SHALL VERFY SIZE OF DUMPSTER W

ITH LOCAL
W

ASTE HAULER. NOTIFY ARCHITECT AND CIVIL AND ADJUST
ENCLOSURE SIZE AS REQUIRED.

2.
REFER TO CIVIL DRAW

INGS FOR LOCATION OF MONUMENT
SIGN & DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE.

3.
COORDINATE MONUMENT SIGN SIZE AND OVERALL DESIGN
W

ITH SIGN MANUFACTURER PRIOR TO MASONRY BASE
CONSTRUCTION.

4.
SEE EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS FOR EXTERIOR FINISH SCHEDULE.

5.
DUMPSTER BLOCK TO BE INTEGRALLY COLORED CMU -
STANDARD COLOR TO MATCH STONE ST-2  COLOR AS CLOSE
AS POSSIBLE.

4
PREFINISHED METAL
COPING-2 TO MATCH CMU
COLOR

FINISH GRADE -
SEE CIVIL

8'-2"

ST-2

ST-1

±9'-4" CLEAR OPENING

4"

3'-4" BK-1

4" X 1/4" Ø STEEL PIPE
FOR SIGN SUPPORT

10" CMU
5

AS2.1
6

AS2.1

7
AS2.1

SCALE: 3/8" = 1'-0"
MONUMENT SIGN PLAN

10
AS2.1

4" X 1/4" Ø STEEL PIPE
FOR SIGN SUPPORT

SIGN BY SIGN VENDOR

PRECAST STONE SILL
BEYOND, SEE SECTION

STONE FINISH, SEE
SHEET A5.0

SCALE: 3/8" = 1'-0"
MONUMENT SIGN ELEVATION

7
AS2.1

2'-8"

4" X 1/4" Ø STEEL
PIPE FOR SIGN
SUPPORT

SIGN BY VENDOR

PRECAST STONE
SILL AND CAP, SEE
SECTIONS

STONE FINISH, SEE
SHEET A5.0

SCALE: 3/8" = 1'-0"
MONUMENT SIGN ELEVATION

6
AS2.1

GRADE VARIES

ST-2

ST-1

ST-1

SIM.

1'-0"

9 5/8" EQ.EQ.

CULTURED
STONE FINISH

1'-0"

1'-0"
7'-8"

1"
1"

2'-4"

6"4'-6"

PRECAST STONE CAP

5'-6"

NOTE: REFER TO CIVIL DRAW
INGS AND SIGN PERMIT

PACKAGE FOR SIGN #3 AND #4 LOCATIONS.

1'-6"

1'-4"

GUTTER SYSTEM & FACIA
BD., SEE TYP. DETAILS.

ROOF BEYOND

T.O. JOIST
12'-6" A.F.F.

1x COMPOSITE LUMBER
TRIM. FRONT AND BACK.

2" x 8" COMPOSITE LUMBER
CONTINUOUS CAP

3 12"

4x4 P.T. W
OOD POST SECURED

TO BLDG. FRAMING, REFER TO
STRUCT.

1 12 " x 5 12 "  COMPOSITE
LUMBER RAILING PLANKS
INSTALLED AT 45 °.

MTL. BOOT W
ITH ROOF

FLASHING PER ROOFING
MANUF'S. RECOMMENDATIONS

EXTEND ROOFING OVER
CONT. MTL. FLASHING.
TERMINATE PER ROOFING.
MFG. RECOMMENDATIONS.

3°

3'-6"

STL. BOOT W
ITH ROOF

FLASHING PER ROOFING
MANUF'S. RECOMMENDATIONS

PLAN VIEW
COMPOSITE COVER OVER
4x4 P.T. W

OOD POST

1x COMPOSITE LUMBER TRIM

2x COMPOSITE LUMBER
TRIM NOTCHED FOR HORIZ.
PLANK INSTALLATION.

COMPOSITE BLOCKING

1x COMPOSITE LUMBER
TRIM. FRONT AND BACK.

PLAYGROUND SIDE
FLAT ROOF SIDE

-
A6.4

2 3/4"

TYP.

ROOF EQUIP. SCREENING W
ALL

NOT TO SCALE
4"x4" GALVANIZED TUBE
STEEL GATE POST: T/POST
AT 8'-0" ABOVE SLAB. SEE
DETAIL THIS SHEET

PAIR 7'-6" HIGH GATE
DOORS W

/ CEDAR
W

OOD SLATS: HOLD
6" ABOVE SLAB

CONCRETE FILLED
BOLLARD, TYP. REFER
TO BOLLARD DETAIL

PAIR OF GALVANIZED CANE
BOLTS: DRILL 3" INTO SLAB

SCALE: 3/8" = 1'-0"
ELEVATION AT ENCLOSURE

3
AS2.1

2" METAL TUBE FRAME
AND CROSS BRACING
W

ITH VERTICAL CEDAR
W

OOD SLATS

INTEGRALLY COLORED 8" SPLIT
FACE CMU - SEE GENERAL NOTE 5.

8

CULTURED STONE/BRICK - SEE
TO EXTERIOR FINISH SCHEDULE

4"

PAVEMENT - REFER TO SITE
PLANS FOR GRADE INFO

4'-0"

℄

7"

TYP.

EVERBROOK ACADEMY- FRANKFORT
LINCOLN HWY FRANKFORT, IL, 60423

JOB NO.

DATE

22024

SHEET NO.

# DATE TYPE
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

REVISIONS

06/23/2022

10

12 K PROTOTYPE/MODEL

17710 Detroit Avenue     Lakewood, Ohio  44107
Phone (216)  521-5134         Fax (216) 521-4824

www.adaarchitects.com
THESE DOCUMENTS CONTAIN INFORMATION PROPRIETARY TO ADA ARCHITECTS, INC.

UNAUTHORIZED USE OF THESE DOCUMENTS IS EXPRESSLY PROHIBITED UNLESS AGREED UPON IN WRITING.

SITE
DETAILS

AS2.1

mschwarz
Received



BR-1

RECESSED KNOX BOX: MODEL
3263, FINISH TO MATCH
STOREFRONT COLOR.

BR-1
BR-1

BR-1

BR-1
SD-1

W
N-1

SD-1
W

N-1
BR-1

BR-1

AS-1
AS-1

SD-1
GL-1

5
12

5
12

SD-1
BR-1

W
N-2

BR-1

BR-1

SD-1
W

N-1
BR-1

SD-1
W

N-1
BR-1

AS-1

5
12

ST-1
ST-1

ST-1

ST-1
ST-1

ST-1

TRUSS BEARING
@

 12'-0" A.F.F.

T.O. RIDGE
@

 ±26'-4" A.F.F.

T.O. STONE
@

 2'-8" A.F.F.
FIN FLOOR

@
 0'-0" A.F.F.

T.O. RIDGE
@

 22'-8" A.F.F.

T.O. CANOPY
@

 +/-13'-9" A.F.F.

T.O. STONE
@

 2'-8" A.F.F.
FIN FLOOR

@
 0'-0" A.F.F.

T.O. RIDGE
@

 +/-26'-4" A.F.F.

T.O. JOIST
@

 15'-4" A.F.F.
A 21st Century Preschool

# # # #

7
12

7
12

7
12

7
12

ST-2

PRE-FINISHED FASCIA.
COLOR TO MATCH PAC-CLAD
SIERRA TAN, TYP.

EXTERIOR
LIGHTING,

TYP.

PRE-FINISHED FASCIA.
COLOR TO MATCH PAC-CLAD
SIERRA TAN, TYP.

ST-2

BOTH SIDES
OF SOFFIT

BOTH SIDES
OF SOFFIT

SFT

SFT

W
N-1

SFT

3'-6"

2'-0"

10"

COORDINATE BUILDING
NUMBER SIGN (RAISED

LETTERS) W
ITH VENDOR

BUILDING SIGN:
COORD. FINAL LOCATION
W

ITH SIGN VENDOR

5A5.0

9'-10" TYP.

10'-0" TYP. ℄

ALL SILL CORNERS IN
PLAYGROUND FENCED AREAS
SHALL BE CHAMFERED, TYP.

3'-8"

6"

NICHIHA JOINT, TYP.

FACADE LIGHTING.
SEE ELECTRICAL
DRAW

INGS

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"
EAST ELEVATION

1A5.0

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"
NORTH ELEVATION

2A5.0

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"
W

EST ELEVATION
3A5.0

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"
SOUTH ELEVATION

4A5.0
GU-1

ST-2
STONE SILL: READING ROCK, ROCKCAST, SMOOTH, COLOR: CREAM BUFF

ST-1
STONE: CULTURED STONE, COUNTRY LEDGESTONE, COLOR: CHARDONNAY

W
N-1

VINYL W
INDOW

S, COLOR: ALMOND

GL-1
STOREFRONT GLAZING, COLOR: CLEAR

SD-1
FIBER CEMENT SIDING: NICHIHA VINTAGE W

OOD,
COLOR: CEDAR #EPC762F.  TRIM TO MATCH CEDAR PANEL COLOR.

1.
ALL MATERIALS NOT LABELED ARE TYPICAL FOR ALL SIMILAR LOCATIONS.  QUESTIONS SHALL
BE REFERRED TO THE ARCHITECT.

2.
NOT USED.

3.
NOT USED.

4.
PROVIDE BLOCKING IN FACADE TO SUPPORT ALL BUILDING SIGNAGE.

5.
REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAW

INGS FOR LIGHTING INFORMATION.
6.

GC SHALL PAINT ANY EXPOSED PIPES, CONDUITS, OR UTILITY BOXES THAT ARE VISIBLE ON
FROM THE SITE TO MATCH ADJACENT BUILDING EXTERIOR FINISH.

TAG
DESCRIPTION

EXTERIOR FINISH LEGEND

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS GENERAL NOTES

AS-1
ASPHALT SHINGLES: TIMBERLINE HD, COLOR: W

EATHERED W
OOD

W
N-2

CLEAR ANODIZED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT

PM-1

THIN BRICK: SIMILAR TO MODULAR BELCREST 560, 21-42 BY BELDEN
BRICK OR APPROVED ALTERNATE MANUF. & COLOR THAT AT MATCH
NEXT DOOR'S BANK FINISH.

VENTED VINYL SOFFIT:  STANDARD COLOR TO MATCH BUILDING FASCIA BD.
(TAN COLOR) AS CLOSE AS POSSIBLE

SFT

PAINT BOTH SIDES OF EXTERIOR H.M. DOORS AND FRAMES COLOR: TO MATCH
SW

 7531 CANVAS TAN.
DOORS &
FRAMES

PRE FINISHED METAL TRIM AND FLASHING: COLOR TO MATCH
ADJACENT FINISH AS CLOSE AS POSSIBLE, U.N.O.

PRE FINISHED ALUM GUTTER AND DOW
NSPOUTS, COLOR TO MATCH

FASCIA. (PAD-CLAD SIERRA TAN)

1A5.0

3A5.0

4A5.0

2A5.0

KEY PLAN
SCALE: N.T.S.

N

W
ALL MOUNTED KEY BOX-

MASTER LOCK 5423D FOR
TENANT'S STAFF ACCESS.

BK-1

BK-2
THIN BRICK: SIMILAR TO ANCHOR CARBON BLACK VELOUR, MODIFIED 21-02 BY
BELDEN BRICK OR APPROVED ALTERNATE MANUF. & COLOR THAT AT MATCH
NEXT DOOR'S BANK FINISH.

SD-1

SD-1

8'-8"

6'-0"

ST-1
ST-1

BK-2

5
12

BK-1
BK-1

BK-1
BK-1

W
N-1

W
N-1

AS-1
5

12

TRUSS BEARING
@

 12'-0" A.F.F.

T.O. STONE
@

 2'-8" A.F.F.
FIN FLOOR

@
 0'-0" A.F.F.

T.O. RIDGE
@

 ±26'-4" A.F.F.

AS-1

COMPOSITE LUMBER RAILING.
COLOR SIMILAR TO MATCH
PAC-CLAD AGED BRONZE, TYP.

ST-2

PRE-FINISHED ALUMINUM GUTTER,
FASCIA, AND DOW

NSPOUT. SEE
FINISH SCHEDULE, TYP.

SILL STONE: REFER TO
FOUNDATION DETAILS FOR
SPECIFICATIONS. TYP.

GU-1

PAINT TO MATCH
BRICK COLOR

(3) SIDES
BK-1

5
12

SFT

5
12

ST-1
BR-1

BR-1
BR-1

W
N-1

W
N-1

ST-1
ST-1

ST-1
ST-1

BR-1

TRUSS BEARING
@

 12'-0" A.F.F.

T.O. STONE
@

 2'-8" A.F.F.
FIN FLOOR

@
 0'-0" A.F.F.

T.O. RIDGE
@

 ±26'-4" A.F.F.

5
12

BK-2
AS-1EGRESS LIGHTING.

SEE ELECTRICAL
DRAW

INGS, TYP.

ST-2

SFT

PAINT TO MATCH
BRICK COLOR

(3) SIDES

(VIEW
 FRO ROUTE 30)

9'-9 3/8"

SPANDREL GLASS
W

INDOW
S

SPANDREL GLASS
W

INDOW
S

BK-1

7
12

TRELLIS
TR-1

TR-1
ALUMINUM TRELLIS: XP SERIES SUNSHADE W

ITH EXTRUDED LOUVER BLADES
BY INDUSTRIAL LOUVERS INC (OR SIMILAR). STANDARD FINISH TO MATCH
PAC-CLAD SIERRA TAN AS CLOSE AS POSSIBLE.

SUNSHADE
TR-1

PROVIDE PADLOCK TO
LOCK DOORS CLOSED

2"X2" W
ELDED STEEL FRAME AND

CROSS MEMBER, PAINTED TO
MATCH CEDAR FINISH COLOR.

6" W
IDE COMPOSITE W

D. SLATS SIM. TO
TREX TRANSCEND- COLOR "TIKI TORCH"
(W

/ 1/4" GAPS) SECURED TO METAL
FRAME. DESIGN INTENT IS TO MATCH
SD-1 AS CLOSE AS POSSIBLE.

PROVIDE (3) HEAVY DUTY
EXTERIOR HINGES PER DOOR
LEAF.

3"X3" POSTS DOW
N TO

BUILDING FOUNDATION. PAINT
TO MATCH FENCE SLAT COLOR.

LINE OF GRADE

LINE OF GRADE

EXTEND FINISH TO
FOUNDATION SILL BELOW

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"
GATE ELEVATION

5A5.0

DROP RODS AT
BOTH GATES

7'-4"

2"

COORDINATE POST
FOUNDATION W

ITH
BUILDING AS REQ'D.

8"

GATE POST

GATE

SECURE TO POST TO
BUILDING STRUCTURE

THROUGH EXTERIOR FINISH.

W
ATER TABLE TO W

RAP CONER
AND STOP AT POST LOCATION.

PLAN VIEW

EVERBROOK ACADEMY- FRANKFORT
LINCOLN HWY FRANKFORT, IL, 60423

JOB NO.

DATE

22024

SHEET NO.

# DATE TYPE
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

REVISIONS

10

12 K PROTOTYPE/MODEL

17710 Detroit Avenue     Lakewood, Ohio  44107
Phone (216)  521-5134         Fax (216) 521-4824

www.adaarchitects.com
THESE DOCUMENTS CONTAIN INFORMATION PROPRIETARY TO ADA ARCHITECTS, INC.

UNAUTHORIZED USE OF THESE DOCUMENTS IS EXPRESSLY PROHIBITED UNLESS AGREED UPON IN WRITING.

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

A5.0 6/23/2022

mschwarz
Received



6/23/2022

mschwarz
Received



EVERBROOK ACADEMY- FRANKFORT

17710 Detroit Avenue     Lakewood, Ohio  44107
Phone (216)  521-5134         Fax (216) 521-4824

www.adaarchitects.cc

LINCOLN HWY FRANKFORT, IL, 60423

JOB NO.

DATE

22024

SHEET NO.

# DATE TYPE
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

REVISIONS

ARCHITECTS, INC.
This document (“Instrument of Service”) was prepared by ADA Architects, Inc. (“ADA”) specifically for the referenced project and is not intended for any other use. ADA retains all common law, statutory and other
reserved rights, including copyrights. This Instrument of Service shall not be used on other projects, for additions to this project or for completion of this project by others without ADA's prior written consent. Any
unauthorized use of this Instrument of Service shall be at the User's sole risk and without liability to ADA. ADA makes no warranties, express or implied, of merchantability or of fitness for a particular purpose.

03/01/2022

10

12 K PROTOTYPE/MODEL

A
E

R
IA

L V
IE

W

B
U

ILD
IN

G
 M

A
IN

 E
N

T
R

A
N

C
E

A
-1 3D

R
E

N
D

E
R

IN
G

S

mschwarz
Received



EVERBROOK ACADEMY- FRANKFORT

17710 Detroit Avenue     Lakewood, Ohio  44107
Phone (216)  521-5134         Fax (216) 521-4824

www.adaarchitects.cc

LINCOLN HWY FRANKFORT, IL, 60423

JOB NO.

DATE

22024

SHEET NO.

# DATE TYPE
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

REVISIONS

ARCHITECTS, INC.
This document (“Instrument of Service”) was prepared by ADA Architects, Inc. (“ADA”) specifically for the referenced project and is not intended for any other use. ADA retains all common law, statutory and other
reserved rights, including copyrights. This Instrument of Service shall not be used on other projects, for additions to this project or for completion of this project by others without ADA's prior written consent. Any
unauthorized use of this Instrument of Service shall be at the User's sole risk and without liability to ADA. ADA makes no warranties, express or implied, of merchantability or of fitness for a particular purpose.10

12 K PROTOTYPE/MODEL

V
IE

W
 F

R
O

M
 N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

 (Lincoln H
w

y)
V

IE
W

 F
R

O
M

 N
O

R
T

H
W

E
S

T
 (Lincoln H

w
y)

A
-2 3D

R
E

N
D

E
R

IN
G

S

6/23/2022

V
IE

W
 F

R
O

M
 N

O
R

T
H

E
A

S
T

 (Lincoln H
w

y)



GU-1

ST-2
STONE SILL: READING ROCK, ROCKCAST, SMOOTH, COLOR: CREAM BUFF

ST-1
STONE: CULTURED STONE, COUNTRY LEDGESTONE, COLOR: CHARDONNAY

W
N-1

VINYL W
INDOW

S, COLOR: ALMOND

GL-1
STOREFRONT GLAZING, COLOR: CLEAR

SD-1
FIBER CEMENT SIDING: NICHIHA VINTAGE W

OOD,
COLOR: CEDAR #EPC762F.  TRIM TO MATCH CEDAR PANEL COLOR.

TAG
DESCRIPTION

EXTERIOR FINISH LEGEND

AS-1
ASPHALT SHINGLES: TIMBERLINE HD, COLOR: W

EATHERED W
OOD

W
N-2

CLEAR ANODIZED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT

PM-1

THIN BRICK: SIMILAR TO MODULAR BELCREST 560, 21-42 BY BELDEN
BRICK OR APPROVED ALTERNATE MANUF. & COLOR THAT AT MATCH
NEXT DOOR'S BANK FINISH.

VENTED VINYL SOFFIT:  STANDARD COLOR TO MATCH BUILDING FASCIA BD.
(TAN COLOR)  AS CLOSE AS POSSIBLE

SFT

PAINT BOTH SIDES OF EXTERIOR H.M. DOORS AND FRAMES COLOR: TO MATCH
SW

 7531 CANVAS TAN.
DOORS &
FRAMES

PRE FINISHED METAL TRIM AND FLASHING: COLOR TO MATCH
ADJACENT FINISH AS CLOSE AS POSSIBLE, U.N.O.

PRE FINISHED ALUM GUTTER AND DOW
NSPOUTS, COLOR TO MATCH

FASCIA. (PAD-CLAD SIERRA TAN)

BK-1

BK-2
THIN BRICK: SIMILAR TO ANCHOR CARBON BLACK VELOUR, MODIFIED 21-02 BY
BELDEN BRICK OR APPROVED ALTERNATE MANUF. & COLOR THAT AT MATCH
NEXT DOOR'S BANK FINISH.

TR-1
ALUMINUM TRELLIS: XP SERIES SUNSHADE W

ITH EXTRUDED LOUVER BLADES
BY INDUSTRIAL LOUVERS INC (OR SIMILAR). STANDARD FINISH TO MATCH
PAC-CLAD SIERRA TAN AS CLOSE AS POSSIBLE.

EVERBROOK ACADEMY- FRANKFORT
LINCOLN HWY FRANKFORT, IL, 60423

JOB NO.

DATE

22024

SHEET NO.

# DATE TYPE
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

REVISIONS

10

12 K PROTOTYPE/MODEL

17710 Detroit Avenue     Lakewood, Ohio  44107
Phone (216)  521-5134         Fax (216) 521-4824

www.adaarchitects.com
THESE DOCUMENTS CONTAIN INFORMATION PROPRIETARY TO ADA ARCHITECTS, INC.

UNAUTHORIZED USE OF THESE DOCUMENTS IS EXPRESSLY PROHIBITED UNLESS AGREED UPON IN WRITING.

MATERIALS
BOARD

A5.1 6/23/2022

AS-1

ST-2
ST-1

ORNAMENTAL
FENCE

BK-1
BK-2

PM-1

SD-1

mschwarz
Received



TYPICAL NIGHT VIEW

mschwarz
Received



Infants   Preschool   School Age

mschwarz
Received



mschwarz
Received



mschwarz
Received



101

102

103

104

105

106 - 109

110

111

112

113

114 115
116

PRESERVE 2
COLUMNAR OAKS
WITH 4' HT SNOW

FENCE FOR
TREE PROTECTION

117

118
119

120 121

122

123

124
125

126

128

127

129 131

130
132

133

134

135

137

136
138

139

140

141

142

143

144

145

146

147

148
149

150
151

152

153

154

155

156

177

176

175

157

158

159

160

161

162

163

164

165

166

167

168

169

170

171

172

173

174

VERIFY IF TREES IN
BRUSH LINE ARE

INSIDE THE PROPERTY
LINE PRIOR TO

REMOVAL

182 183 184 185 186 187 188

181
180

179 178

TP1

PR
O

JEC
T N

O
:   

D
R
A
W

N
 B

Y:   

D
A
TE:  

S
H
EET N

O
: 

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S
: 

.

djs

A
LL C

O
N
C

EPTS
 IN

C
LU

D
ED

 IN
 TH

IS
 PLA

N
A
R
E TH

E PR
O

PER
TY O

F KD
 LA

N
D

S
C

A
PE

IN
C

. U
N
TIL R

ELEA
S
ED

 IN
 W

R
ITIN

G
 B

Y
KD

 LA
N
D

S
C

A
PE, IN

C
.

2
4

 M
A
T 2

0
2

2

DANIEL J.
STONE

157-001098

LICENSED LANDSCA P E  A RCH I T EC T

STATE
 OF

 ILLINOIS

.
.

. 

PR
ES

ER
V
A
TIO

N
PLA

N

4
0

2
0

1
0

0 S
C
A
LE:  1

" =
 2

0
' 

N
O

R
TH

LANDSCAPE PLAN
EEVERBROOK ACADEMY - FRANKFORT

LINCOLN HIGHWAY & WOLF RD
FRANKFORT, IL  60423O

F 1

815.725.0758
w

w
w

.kdlandscapeinc.com

TR
EE

E. PRESERVATION TECHNIQUES

1. Prior to the development of any project,
temporary barriers shall be installed to protect and
preserve the existing vegetation.
a. Wooden lath snow fencing, brightly colored plastic
construction fencing, chain link fencing, or an
alternative barrier, shall be installed at the periphery
of the drip line of the tree or beyond to prevent
storage of materials or vehicles. Said fence or barrier
shall be a minimum of forty-eight inches (48”) in height
securely anchored to fence posts a minimum distance
of five feet on center.
2. Wherever a change of grade is planned, the trees
to be preserved shall be protected by a wall so as to
persevere the existing grade for the roots.
3. Wherever a change of grade is planned, the topsoil
shall be preserved for the new landscaping to be
installed, unless imported topsoil is used which meets
planting specifications as outlined in §158.06.
4. All grading and construction equipment shall be
forbidden from encroaching upon the drip line of any
tree.
5. Crushed limestone or any other material which may
be detrimental to trees shall not be dumped within
the drip line of any tree(s) nor shall be located at any
higher location where drainage toward the tree(s)
could adversely affect the health of said tree(s).
6. No materials or vehicles shall be stored, driven, or
parked within the drip line of any trees.
7. In the event that an underground utility line is to be
located within five feet (5’) of the trunk of a tree
designated for preservation, said utility line shall be
augured to prevent damage to the trees root system.
8. All trees to be preserved which have been
subjected to the construction activity within the drip
line should be reviewed by a qualified arborist and
appropriate actions performed per the
recommendation of the arborist. None of the trees
shall be topped, headed-back, skinned (removal of
interior branches), or climbed with spikes. All dead
wood shall be removed to reduce hazard.

F. ENFORCEMENT
1. In the event that trees are destroyed /
removed, leaving no physical evidence for
measurement, tree size in caliper inches will be
measured at the stump diameter.
2. In the event that a tree designated for
preservation is destroyed or razed during the
construction process or has been removed without
the approval of Village staff, each tree shall be
replaced in accordance with the applicable exchange
rates. A minimum of $500.00 per tree penalty shall
be assessed upon the owner of the property on which
the
trees were removed. A temporary work stoppage
shall commence until such time that the Village has
determined the number and size of tree (s)
destroyed. In addition to the fines, destroyed trees
must be replaced in accordance to replacement ratios
as mentioned above, by the next growing season.
Penalty see §158.99

Note: Trees in Brush Lines not located
on survey are estimated in location and
should be verified prior to final removal



M
O

N
U

M
EN

T SIG
N

, SEE
D

ETAIL 5&6/AS-2.1

EXISTIN
G

 R
ETAIN

IN
G

W
ALLS

PR
O

PER
TY LIN

E

59'-0"

EX. BAN
K

D
R

IVE TH
R

U

FD
C

G
A

S

ELEC
.

SER
VIC

E

17'-5"

D
O

M
ESTIC

 A
N

D
 FIR

E
W

A
TER

 SER
VIC

E

U
TILITY SER

VIC
E ALC

O
VE

SLO
PE

56'-3"

3 4
12

6' H
. SEM

I-PR
IVATE

VIN
YL FEN

C
E

8'-4"

PR
O

PO
SED

 PR
EM

IU
M

 PR
ESC

H
O

O
L

12,870 S.F.
1 STO

R
Y

SLO
PE

6' H
. BLAC

K VIN
YL C

O
ATED

C
H

AIN
 LIN

K FEN
C

E, TYP.

4' H
. O

R
N

AM
EN

TAL FEN
C

E & G
ATE

M
AIN

EN
TR

Y

25' FLAG
PO

LE

EVER
BR

O
O

K
D

IR
EC

TIO
N

 SIG
N

VEH
IC

U
LAR

 PR
O

TEC
TIO

N
 BO

LLAR
D

S (5'-6" O
.C

. M
AX.).

D
U

M
PSTER

1
AS2.1

BU
ILD

IN
G

 SETBAC
K

EASEM
EN

T

PR
O

PER
TY LIN

E

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

CHAIN LINK
FENCEBUILDING SETBACK

171'-7" 18'-1"

VINYL PRIVACY
FENCE

SLOPE

11'-6" 52'-4"

BUILDING SETBACK

CHAIN LINK
FENCE

SEMI-PRIVATE
FENCE

EASEMENT

PROPERTY LINE

PR
O

PER
TY LIN

E

60'-7"

11'-11"
BU

ILD
IN

G
 SETBAC

K

32'-7"

R9'-7"TYP.

R5'-9"

BUILDING SETBACK

Existing Landscape

Existing Trees (Typ.)

Existing Trees (Typ.)

Existing S
hade and

Evergreen Trees
(Typical)

Existing C
urbline

from
 B

ank S
ite

L1

PR
O

JEC
T N

O
:   

D
R
A
W

N
 B

Y:   

D
A
TE:  

S
H
EET N

O
: 

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S
: 

.

KM
, djs

A
LL C

O
N
C

EPTS
 IN

C
LU

D
ED

 IN
 TH

IS
 PLA

N
A
R
E TH

E PR
O

PER
TY O

F KD
 LA

N
D

S
C

A
PE

IN
C

. U
N
TIL R

ELEA
S
ED

 IN
 W

R
ITIN

G
 B

Y
KD

 LA
N
D

S
C

A
PE, IN

C
.

1
3
 A

PR
 2

0
2
2

DANIEL J.
STONE

157-001098

LICENSED LANDSCA P E  A RCH I T EC T

STATE
 OF

 ILLINOIS

2
3
 M

ay 2
2

1
no fruiting plants

LA
N
D

S
C
A
PE

PLA
N

4
0

2
0

1
0

0 S
C
A
LE:  1

" =
 2

0
' 

N
O

R
TH

LANDSCAPE PLAN
EEVERBROOK ACADEMY - FRANKFORT

LINCOLN HIGHWAY & WOLF RD
FRANKFORT, IL  60423O

F 1

TR
E

E
S

Q
TY

B
O

TA
N

IC
A

L N
A

M
E

C
O

M
M

O
N

 N
A

M
E

S
IZE

C
O

N
TA

IN
E

R
A

C
A

R
4

A
cer rubrum

 `A
utum

n R
adiance`

A
utum

n R
adiance R

ed M
aple

2.5" C
al.

B
&

B
A

C
FR

5
A

cer x freem
anii 'Jeffersred' TM

A
utum

n B
laze Freem

an M
aple

2.5" C
al.

C
E

C
A

14
C

ercis canadensis
E

astern R
edbud

6` H
t.

B
&

B
P

IA
B

17
P

icea abies
N

orw
ay S

pruce
6` H

t.
B

&
B

P
IP

U
25

P
icea pungens

C
olorado S

pruce
6` H

t.
B

&
B

Q
U

B
I

7
Q

uercus bicolor
S

w
am

p W
hite O

ak
2.5" C

al.
B

&
B

Q
U

K
S

4
Q

uercus robur x bicolor 'N
adler' TM

K
indred S

pirit O
ak

2.5" C
al.

B
&

B
S

Y
R

E
9

S
yringa reticulata `Ivory S

ilk`
Ivory S

ilk Japanese Tree Lilac
6` H

t.
B

&
B

TIA
M

3
Tilia am

ericana 'R
edm

ond'
R

edm
ond A

m
erican Linden

2.5" C
al.

S
H

R
U

B
S

Q
TY

B
O

TA
N

IC
A

L N
A

M
E

C
O

M
M

O
N

 N
A

M
E

S
IZE

C
O

N
TA

IN
E

R
D

IK
B

94
D

iervilla rivularis `S
M

N
D

R
S

F` TM
K

odiak B
lack H

oneysuckle
3 gal.

D
IK

O
65

D
iervilla x `G

2X
88544` TM

K
odiak O

range D
iervilla

3 gal.
H

A
V

E
23

H
am

am
elis vernalis

O
zark W

itchhazel
4` H

t.
B

&
B

H
Y

A
R

167
H

ydrangea arborescens `A
nnabelle`

A
nnabelle H

ydrangea
5 gal.

H
Y

P
Q

43
H

ydrangea pan. `Little Q
uick Fire`

Little Q
uick Fire H

ydrangea
5 gal.

JU
H

P
34

Juniperus horizontalis 'P
lum

osa C
om

pacta'
C

reeping Juniper
5 gal.

P
H

A
J

29
P

hysocarpus opulifolius 'Jefam
' TM

A
m

ber Jubilee N
inebark

5 gal.
R

H
A

R
141

R
hus arom

atica 'G
ro-Low

'
G

ro-Low
 Fragrant S

um
ac

3 gal.
R

H
TY

31
R

hus typhina `B
altiger` TM

Tiger E
yes S

taghorn S
um

ac
5 gal.

S
Y

P
A

25
S

yringa patula 'M
iss K

im
'

M
iss K

im
 K

orean Lilac
3` H

t.
B

&
B

TH
O

F
34

Thuja occidentalis `C
ongabe` TM

Fire C
hief A

rborvitae
5 gal.

W
E

R
P

19
W

eigela florida 'R
ed P

rince'
R

ed P
rince W

eigela
5 gal.

G
R

A
S

S
E

S
Q

TY
B

O
TA

N
IC

A
L N

A
M

E
C

O
M

M
O

N
 N

A
M

E
S

IZE
C

O
N

TA
IN

E
R

H
E

S
E

184
H

elictotrichon sem
pervirens 'S

aphirsprudel'
S

aphire Fountain B
lue O

at G
rass

1 gal.

G
R

O
U

N
D

 C
O

V
E

R
S

Q
TY

B
O

TA
N

IC
A

L N
A

M
E

C
O

M
M

O
N

 N
A

M
E

S
IZE

C
O

N
TA

IN
E

R
S

P
A

C
IN

G
E

C
P

M
59

E
chinacea x `P

ixie M
eadow

brite`
P

ixie M
eadow

brite P
urple C

oneflow
er

1 gal.
18" o.c.

S
O

D
/S

E
E

D
Q

TY
B

O
TA

N
IC

A
L N

A
M

E
C

O
M

M
O

N
 N

A
M

E
S

IZE
C

O
N

TA
IN

E
R

S
P

A
C

IN
G

S
O

D
28,233 sf

P
oa pratensis

K
entucky B

luegrass
sod

PLA
N
T S

C
H
ED

U
LE L1

815.725.0758
w

w
w

.kdlandscapeinc.com





mschwarz
Received



















mschwarz
Received

























EVERBROOK ACADEMY - FRANKFORT, IL

D
e
s
ig

n
e
r

TJD
D

a
te

05/19/2022
S

c
a
le

N
ot to S

cale
D

r
a
w

in
g

 N
o

.

S
u

m
m

a
r
y

S
ITE PH

O
TO

M
ETR

IC

1
 o

f 1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.2

0
.2

0
.2

0
.2

0
.2

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.2

0
.3

0
.4

0
.4

0
.4

0
.4

0
.4

0
.3

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.2

0
.4

0
.6

0
.8

0
.9

0
.9

0
.3

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.2

0
.3

0
.6

0
.9

1
.2

1
.5

0
.5

0
.3

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.2

0
.4

0
.7

0
.4

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.3

0
.5

0
.8

0
.4

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.3

0
.6

0
.8

0
.4

0
.2

0
.1

0
.2

0
.4

0
.8

0
.4

0
.2

0
.1

0
.2

0
.4

0
.4

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.3

0
.6

0
.3

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.4

0
.9

0
.3

0
.1

0
.1

0
.2

0
.7

1
.9

0
.3

0
.1

0
.1

0
.2

0
.8

4
.0

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.2

0
.9

3
.0

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.2

0
.5

1
.3

0
.3

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.3

0
.7

0
.3

0
.2

0
.1

0
.2

0
.5

0
.4

0
.2

0
.1

0
.2

0
.4

0
.4

0
.2

0
.1

0
.2

0
.3

0
.4

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.3

0
.4

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.3

0
.5

0
.7

0
.4

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.2

0
.4

0
.7

1
.0

0
.6

0
.3

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.3

0
.5

0
.7

0
.9

0
.7

0
.4

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.2

0
.3

0
.4

0
.6

0
.6

0
.6

0
.6

0
.5

0
.4

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.2

0
.2

0
.3

0
.3

0
.3

0
.3

0
.3

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.2

0
.1

0
.2

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.1

0
.9

0
. 7

1
.5

1
.4

1
.2

0
.8

0
.8

1
.2

1
.7

2
.1

2
.3

2
.0

1
.5

1
.1

0
.9

1
.5

2
.2

3
.0

3
.2

2
.9

1
.9

1
.4

1
.0

1
.7

2
.5

3
.2

3
.5

3
.1

2
.1

1
.5

0
.7

1
.2

1
.8

2
.3

3
.2

2
.3

2
.9

2
.0

1
.4

1
.1

1
.5

1
.9

2
.2

2
.5

2
.6

2
.3

1
.8

1
.2

0
.7

2
.3

2
.6

2
.3

2
.4

2
.6

2
.5

2
.2

1
.7

1
.1

0
.6

4
.5

4
.1

2
.7

2
.6

2
.6

2
.4

2
.0

1
.5

1
.0

0
.6

6
.6

5
.2

3
.2

3
.3

3
.3

2
.7

2
.0

1
.5

0
.9

6
.6

3
.7

3
.1

3
.5

3
.2

2
.2

1
.5

0
.8

8
.4

6
.1

3
.6

3
.6

3
.5

3
.1

2
.2

1
.5

0
.9

5
.5

4
.7

3
.1

3
.1

3
.1

2
.6

2
.1

1
.5

0
.9

3
.4

3
.5

2
.6

2
.6

2
.7

2
.5

2
.2

1
.6

1
.1

0
.6

1
.7

2
.0

2
.1

2
.4

2
.6

2
.6

2
.3

1
.8

1
.2

0
.7

0
.9

1
.3

1
.8

2
.3

2
.9

3
.1

2
.6

1
.9

1
.3

0
.8

0
.7

1
.1

1
.8

2
.5

3
.3

1
.9

3
.1

2
.1

1
.5

0
.8

1
.0

1
.7

2
.4

3
.2

3
.4

3
.1

2
.1

1
.4

0
.8

0
.9

1
.4

1
.9

2
.7

2
.9

2
.5

1
.8

1
.3

1
.1

1
.4

1
.7

1
.8

1
.7

1
.4

1
.0

1
.2

1
.2

1
.2

0
.0

0
. 0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.5

0
.5

0
.5

0
.5

0
.5

0
.5

9
.9

T
4

 @
 1

5
'

T
5

 @
 1

5
'

T
5

 @
 1

5
'

T
5

 @
 1

5
'

P
la

n
 V

ie
w

S
cale - 1" =

 25ft

S
ta

tis
tic

s

D
e
s
c
r
ip

tio
n

S
y
m

b
o

l
A

v
g

M
a
x

M
in

M
a
x
/

M
in

A
v
g

/
M

in

O
V
ER

A
LL S

ITE
0.3 fc

9.9 fc
0.0 fc

N
/A

N
/A

PA
R
K
IN

G
2.2 fc

9.9 fc
0.5 fc

19.8:1
4.4:1

S
c
h

e
d

u
le

S
y
m

b
o
l

L
a
b
e
l

I
m

a
g
e

Q
u

a
n

tity
M

a
n

u
fa

c
tu

re
r

C
a
ta

lo
g
 N

u
m

b
e
r

D
e
s
c
rip

tio
n

N
u

m
b
e
r

L
a
m

p
s

L
u

m
e
n

s

P
e
r L

a
m

p

L
ig

h
t L

o
s
s

F
a
c
to

r
W

a
tta

g
e

P
lo

t

T
5

3
Lithonia Lighting

R
S
X
1 LED

 P3 40K
 R

5
R
S
X
 A

rea Fixture S
ize 1 P3 Lum

en Package
4000K

 C
C
T Type R

5 D
istribution

1
14396

0.9
109.44

T
4

1
Lithonia Lighting

R
S
X
1 LED

 P3 40K
 R

4 H
S

R
S
X
 LED

 A
rea Lum

inaire S
ize 1 P3 Lum

en
Package 4000K

 C
C
T Type R

4 D
istribution

w
ith H

S
 shield

1
9337

0.9
109.44

thomas.dillman
Image



One Lithonia Way • Conyers, Georgia 30012 • Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378) • www.acuitybrands.com
© 2018-2022 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved. 

Lithonia RSX1 Area LED
Rev. 03/01/22

Page 1 of 9

COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR

RSX1 LED
Area Luminaire

Specifications

Catalog 
Number

Notes

Type

Introduction
The new RSX LED Area family delivers maximum 
value by providing significant energy savings, long 
life and outstanding photometric performance at an 
affordable price. The RSX1 delivers 7,000 to 17,000 
lumens allowing it to replace 70W to 400W HID 
luminaires.

The RSX features an integral universal mounting 
mechanism that allows the luminaire to be mounted 
on most existing drill hole patterns. This “no-drill” 
solution provides significant labor savings. An 
easy-access door on the bottom of mounting arm 
allows for wiring without opening the electrical 
compartment. A mast arm adaptor, adjustable 
integral slipfitter and other mounting configurations 
are available.

EPA  
(ft2@0°):

0.57 ft2 (0.05 m2)

Length: 21.8” (55.4 cm)
(SPA mount)

Width: 13.3” (33.8 cm)

Height: 3.0" (7.6 cm) Main Body
7.2” (18.4 cm) Arm

Weight:  
(SPA mount):

22.0 lbs (10.0 kg)

Hit the Tab key or mouse over the page to see all interactive elements.

 L 

 W 

 H 

Options Finish

Shipped Installed
HS House-side shield 7

PE Photocontrol, button style 8,9

PEX Photocontrol external threaded, adjustable 9,10

PER7 Seven-wire twist-lock receptacle only (no controls) 9,11,12,13

CE34 Conduit entry 3/4” NPT (Qty 2)
SF Single fuse (120, 277, 347) 5

DF Double fuse (208, 240, 480) 5

SPD20KV 20KV Surge pack (10KV standard)

FAO Field adjustable output 9,13

DMG 0-10V dimming extend out back of housing for external 
control (control ordered separate) 9,13

Shipped Installed
*Standalone and Networked Sensors/Controls (factory default settings, see table page 9)
NLTAIR2 nLight AIR generation 2 13,14,15

PIRHN Networked, Bi-Level motion/ambient sensor (for use with NLTAIR2) 13,15,16

BAA Buy America(n) Act Compliant

*Note: PIRHN with nLight Air can be used as a standalone or networked solution. Sensor coverage 
pattern is affected when luminaire is tilted.

Shipped Separately (requires some field assembly)

EGS External glare shield 7

EGFV External glare full visor (360° around light aperture) 7

BS Bird spikes 17

DDBXD Dark Bronze
DBLXD Black
DNAXD Natural Aluminum
DWHXD White
DDBTXD Textured Dark Bronze
DBLBXD Textured Black
DNATXD Textured Natural Aluminum
DWHGXD Textured White

WW

Ordering Information EXAMPLE: RSX1 LED P4 40K R3 MVOLT SPA DDBXD

RSX1 LED

Series Performance 
Package 

Color 
Temperature Distribution Voltage Mounting

RSX1 LED P1
P2
P3
P4

30K 3000K
40K 4000K
50K 5000K 

R2 Type 2 Wide
R3 Type 3 Wide
R3S Type 3 Short
R4 Type 4 Wide
R4S Type 4 Short
R5 Type 5 Wide 1

R5S Type 5 Short 1

AFR Automotive Front Row
AFRR90 Automotive Front Row 

Right Rotated 
AFRL90 Automotive Front Row 

Left Rotated

MVOLT (120V-277V) 2

HVOLT (347V-480V) 3

XVOLT (277V-480V) 4

(use specific voltage for 
options as noted)
120 3 277 5

208 3 347 5

240 3 480 5

SPA Square pole mounting (3.0" min. SQ pole for 1 at 90°, 3.5" min. SQ pole for 2, 3, 4 at 90°)
RPA Round pole mounting (3.2" min. dia. RND pole for 2, 3, 4 at 90°, 3.0" min. dia. RND pole 

for 1 at 90°, 2 at 180°, 3 at 120°)
MA Mast arm adaptor (fits 2-3/8" OD horizontal tenon)
IS Adjustable slipfitter (fits 2-3/8" OD tenon) 6

WBA Wall bracket 1

WBASC Wall bracket with surface conduit box
AASP Adjustable tilt arm square pole mounting 6

AARP Adjustable tilt arm round pole mounting 6

AAWB Adjustable tilt arm with wall bracket 6

AAWSC Adjustable tilt arm wall bracket and surface conduit box 6

Buy American

http://www.acuitybrands.com


One Lithonia Way • Conyers, Georgia 30012 • Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378) • www.acuitybrands.com
© 2018-2022 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved. 

Lithonia RSX1 Area LED
Rev. 03/01/22

Page 2 of 9

COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR

Ordering Information

NOTES
1 Any Type 5 distribution, is not available with WBA.
2 MVOLT driver operates on any line voltage from 120-277V (50/60 Hz).
3 HVOLT driver operates on any line voltage from 347-480V (50/60 Hz).
4 XVOLT driver not available with P1 or P2. XVOLT driver operates on 

any line voltage from 277V-480V (50/60 Hz). XVOLT not available with 
fusing (SF or DF) and not available with PE or PEX. 

5 Single fuse (SF) requires 120V, 277V or 347V. Double fuse (DF) 
requires 208V, 240V or 480V.

6 Maximum tilt is 90° above horizontal.
7 It may be ordered as an accessory.
8 Requires MVOLT or 347V.
9 Not available in combination with other light sensing control options 

(following options cannot be combined: PE, PEX, PER7, FAO, DMG, 
PIRHN).

10 Requires 120V, 208V, 240V or 277V.

11 Twistlock photocell ordered and shipped as a separate line item from 
Acuity Brands Controls. See accessories. Shorting Cap included. 
Dimming leads capped for future use.

12 For units with option PER7, the mounting must be restricted to +/- 
45° from horizontal aim per ANSI C136.10-2010.

13 Two or more of the following options cannot be combined including 
DMG, PER7, FAO and PIRHN.

14 Must be ordered with PIRHN.
15 Requires MVOLT or HVOLT.
16 Must be ordered with NLTAIR2. For additional information on PIRHN 

visit here.
17 Must be ordered with fixture for factory pre-drilling.
18 Requires luminaire to be specified with PER7 option. Ordered and 

shipped as a separate line item from Acuity Brands Controls.

Accessories
Ordered and shipped separately. 

House Side Shield External Glare Shield External 360 Full Visor

RSX1HS RSX1 House side shield (includes 1 shield)
RSX1HSAFRR U RSX1 House side shield for AFR rotated optics (includes 1 shield)
RSX1EGS (FINISH) U External glares hield (specify finish)
RSX1EGFV (FINISH) U External glare full visor (specify finish)
RSXRPA (FINISH) U RSX Universal round pole adaptor plate (specify finish) 
RSXWBA (FINISH) U   RSX WBA wall bracket (specify finish) 1

RSXSCB (FINISH) U RSX Surface conduit box (specify finish, for use with WBA, WBA not included) 
DLL127F 1.5 JU Photocell -SSL twist-lock (120-277V) 18

DLL347F 1.5 CUL JU Photocell -SSL twist-lock (347V) 18

DLL480F 1.5 CUL JU Photocell -SSL twist-lock (480V) 18

DSHORT SBK U Shorting cap 18

External Shields

Pole/Mounting Informatiion

HANDHOLE ORIENTATION

A
Handhole

B

C

D

Accessories including bullhorns, cross arms and other adpaters are available under the accessories tab at Lithonia's Outdoor Poles and Arms product page.  
Click here to visit Accessories.

RSX1 - Luminaire EPA

Fixture Quantity & Mounting 
Configuration Single 2 @ 90 2 @ 180 3 @ 90 3 @ 120 4 @ 90 2 Side  

by Side
3 Side  

by Side
4 Side  

by Side

Mounting Type Tilt

SPA - Square Pole Adaptor
0 °

0.57 1.03 1.05 1.52 1.36 2.03 1.31 1.7 2.26
RPA - Round Pole Adaptor 0.62 1.08 1.15 1.62 1.46 2.13 1.36 1.8 2.36
MA - Mast Arm Adaptor 0.49 0.95 0.89 1.36 1.2 1.87 1.23 1.54 2.1

IS - Integral Slipfitter                                                                                                   
AASP/AARP - Adjustable 
Arm Square/Round Pole

0 ° 0.57 1.03 1.05 1.52 1.36 2.03 1.31 1.7 2.26
10° 0.68 1.34 1.33 2 1.74 2.64 1.35 2.03 2.71
20° 0.87 1.71 1.73 2.56 2.26 3.42 1.75 2.62 3.49
30° 1.24 2.19 2.3 3.21 2.87 4.36 2.49 3.73 4.97
40° 1.81 2.68 2.98 3.85 3.68 5.30 3.62 5.43 7.24
45° 2.11 2.92 3.44 4.2 4.08 5.77 4.22 6.33 8.44
50° 2.31 3.17 3.72 4.52 4.44 6.26 4.62 6.94 9.25
60° 2.71 3.66 4.38 5.21 5.15 7.24 5.43 8.14 10.86
70° 2.78 3.98 4.54 5.67 5.47 7.91 5.52 8.27 11.03
80° 2.76 4.18 4.62 5.97 5.76 8.31 5.51 8.27 11.03
90° 2.73 4.25 4.64 6.11 5.91 8.47 5.45 8.18 10.97

*Includes luminaire and integral mounting arm.  Other tenons, arms, brackets or other accessories are not included in this EPA data.Top of Pole

0.563”

2.650”

1.325”
0.400”
(2 PLCS)

Template #8

RSX POLE DRILLING

RSX STANDARD ARM & ADJUSTABLE ARM

5.25”

2.65”

Drilling Template Mounting Option Single 2 @ 180 2 @ 90 3 @ 120 3 @ 90 4 @ 90

Head Location Side B Side B & D Side B & C Round Pole Only Side B, C & D Side A, B, C & D

#8 Drill Nomenclature DM19AS DM28AS DM29AS DM32AS DM39AS DM49AS

 Tenon O.D. RSX Mounting Single 2 at 180° 2 at 90° 3 at 120° 3 at 90° 4 at 90°

2 - 3/8" RPA, AARP AS3-5 190 AS3-5 280 AS3-5 290 AS3-5 320 AS3-5 390 AS3-5 490

2 - 7/8" RPA, AARP AST25-190 AST25-280  AST25-290 AST25-320 AST25-390 AST25-490

4" RPA, AARP AST35-190 AST35-280 AST35-290 AST35-320 AST35-390 AST35-490

Round Tenon Mount - Pole Top Slipfitters

Drill/Side Location by Configuration Type

http://www.acuitybrands.com
https://www.acuitybrands.com/products/detail/817178/nLight/rSDGR/-/media/products/nLight/817178/document/rSDGR_pdf.pdf
https://www.acuitybrands.com/products/lighting/outdoor/poles-and-arms#c4fccc7e-7568-4942-aa27-0a1497c73bcf)


One Lithonia Way • Conyers, Georgia 30012 • Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378) • www.acuitybrands.com
© 2018-2022 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved. 

Lithonia RSX1 Area LED
Rev. 03/01/22

Page 3 of 9

COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR

Performance Data

Lumen Ambient Temperature
(LAT) Multipliers
Use these factors to determine relative lumen output for  
average ambient temperatures from 0-50°C (32-122°F).

Ambient Ambient Lumen Multiplier

0°C 32°F 1.05

5°C 41°F 1.04

10°C 50°F 1.03

15°C 59°F 1.02

20°C 68°F 1.01

25°C 77°F 1.00

30°C 86°F 0.99

35°C 95°F 0.98

40°C 104°F 0.97

45°C 113°F 0.96

50°C 122°F 0.95

Current (A)

Performance Package System Watts (W) 120V 208V 240V 277V 347V 480V
P1 51W 0.42 0.25 0.21 0.19 0.14 0.11
P2 72W 0.60 0.35 0.30 0.26 0.21 0.15
P3 109W 0.91 0.52 0.45 0.39 0.31 0.23
P4 133W 1.11 0.64 0.55 0.48 0.38 0.27

Electrical Load

Values calculated according to IESNA TM-21-11 methodology and valid up to 40°C.

Operating Hours 50,000 75,000 100,000

Lumen Maintenance Factor >0.97 >0.95 >0.92

Projected LED Lumen Maintenance

To see complete photometric reports or download .ies files for this product, visit Lithonia Lighting’s RSX Area homepage. Photometric Diagrams

Isofootcandle plots for the RSX1 LED P4 40K. Distances are in units of mounting height (20’).

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

Visual - Template Tool 

These lighting calculation results are for general informational purposes only and are provided without warranty as to accuracy, completeness, reliability or 
otherwise. Results are based on user provided data and data provided from publicly available sources; actual field conditions may affect calculated output. Visit 
www.Visual-3D.com . 

Design Information 
Project 
Description 

Thursday, August 02, 2018 
Name 
Company 
Phone 
Email 

[ A ] - RSX1 LED P4 40K R3
Manufacturer Acuity Brands Configuration Single

Lamp Lumens 16360 Orientation Single

Lamp Quantity 1 Mounting Height 20

Light Loss Factor 1 Arm Length 1

Input Power 133.1 Tilt 0

Max Illuminance 7 Area > 0.5fc 7250

Page 1 of 1Template Print

8/2/2018http://www.visual-3d.com/tools/template/Print.aspx?SessionID=4882423

R3R3

Visual - Template Tool 

These lighting calculation results are for general informational purposes only and are provided without warranty as to accuracy, completeness, reliability or 
otherwise. Results are based on user provided data and data provided from publicly available sources; actual field conditions may affect calculated output. Visit 
www.Visual-3D.com . 

Design Information 
Project 
Description 

Thursday, August 02, 2018 
Name 
Company 
Phone 
Email 

[ B ] - RSX1 LED P4 40K R4
Manufacturer Acuity Brands Configuration Single

Lamp Lumens 16574 Orientation Single

Lamp Quantity 1 Mounting Height 20

Light Loss Factor 1 Arm Length 1

Input Power 133.1 Tilt 0

Max Illuminance 8 Area > 0.5fc 7475

Page 1 of 1Template Print

8/2/2018http://www.visual-3d.com/tools/template/Print.aspx?SessionID=4882423

R4R4

Visual - Template Tool 

These lighting calculation results are for general informational purposes only and are provided without warranty as to accuracy, completeness, reliability or 
otherwise. Results are based on user provided data and data provided from publicly available sources; actual field conditions may affect calculated output. Visit 
www.Visual-3D.com . 

Design Information 
Project 
Description 

Thursday, August 02, 2018 
Name 
Company 
Phone 
Email 

[ C ] - RSX1 LED P4 40K R5
Manufacturer Acuity Brands Configuration Single

Lamp Lumens 16796 Orientation Single

Lamp Quantity 1 Mounting Height 20

Light Loss Factor 1 Arm Length 1

Input Power 133.1 Tilt 0

Max Illuminance 2 Area > 0.5fc 10850

Page 1 of 1Template Print

8/2/2018http://www.visual-3d.com/tools/template/Print.aspx?SessionID=4882423

R5R5

Visual - Template Tool 

These lighting calculation results are for general informational purposes only and are provided without warranty as to accuracy, completeness, reliability or 
otherwise. Results are based on user provided data and data provided from publicly available sources; actual field conditions may affect calculated output. Visit 
www.Visual-3D.com . 

Design Information 
Project 
Description 

Thursday, August 02, 2018 
Name 
Company 
Phone 
Email 

[ D ] - RSX1 LED P4 40K AFR
Manufacturer Acuity Brands Configuration Single

Lamp Lumens 16395 Orientation Single

Lamp Quantity 1 Mounting Height 20

Light Loss Factor 1 Arm Length 1

Input Power 133.1 Tilt 0

Max Illuminance 16 Area > 0.5fc 4200

Page 1 of 1Template Print

8/2/2018http://www.visual-3d.com/tools/template/Print.aspx?SessionID=4882423

R2R2

LEGEND

0.1 fc

0.5 fc

1.0 fc

1.0 fc

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

Visual - Template Tool 

These lighting calculation results are for general informational purposes only and are provided without warranty as to accuracy, completeness, reliability or 
otherwise. Results are based on user provided data and data provided from publicly available sources; actual field conditions may affect calculated output. Visit 
www.Visual-3D.com . 

Design Information 
Project 
Description 

Wednesday, August 22, 2018 
Name 
Company 
Phone 
Email 

[ D ] - RSX3 LED P4 40K AFR
Manufacturer Acuity Brands Configuration Single

Lamp Lumens 40537 Orientation Single

Lamp Quantity 1 Mounting Height 30

Light Loss Factor 1 Arm Length 1

Input Power 311.9 Tilt 0

Max Illuminance 17 Area > 0.5fc 9844

Page 1 of 1Template Print

8/22/2018http://www.visual-3d.com/tools/template/Print.aspx?SessionID=7970173

AFRAFR

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

Visual - Template Tool 

These lighting calculation results are for general informational purposes only and are provided without warranty as to accuracy, completeness, reliability or 
otherwise. Results are based on user provided data and data provided from publicly available sources; actual field conditions may affect calculated output. Visit 
www.Visual-3D.com . 

Design Information 
Project 
Description 

Monday, July 29, 2019 
Name 
Company 
Phone 
Email 

[ B ] - RSX2 LED P6 40K AFRL90
Manufacturer Lithonia Lighting Configuration Single

Lamp Lumens 30752 Orientation Single

Lamp Quantity 1 Mounting Height 30

Light Loss Factor 1 Arm Length 1

Input Power 246.6 Tilt 0

Max Illuminance 15 Area > 0.5fc 8044

Page 1 of 1Template Print

7/29/2019http://www.visual-3d.com/tools/template/Print.aspx?SessionID=3885952

AFRL90AFRL90

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

Visual - Template Tool 

These lighting calculation results are for general informational purposes only and are provided without warranty as to accuracy, completeness, reliability or 
otherwise. Results are based on user provided data and data provided from publicly available sources; actual field conditions may affect calculated output. Visit 
www.Visual-3D.com . 

Design Information 
Project 
Description 

Monday, July 29, 2019 
Name 
Company 
Phone 
Email 

[ A ] - RSX2 LED P6 40K AFRR90
Manufacturer Lithonia Lighting Configuration Single

Lamp Lumens 30623 Orientation Single

Lamp Quantity 1 Mounting Height 30

Light Loss Factor 1 Arm Length 1

Input Power 246.6 Tilt 0

Max Illuminance 14 Area > 0.5fc 8325

Page 1 of 1Template Print

7/29/2019http://www.visual-3d.com/tools/template/Print.aspx?SessionID=3885952

AFRR90AFRR90

http://www.acuitybrands.com


One Lithonia Way • Conyers, Georgia 30012 • Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378) • www.acuitybrands.com
© 2018-2022 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved. 

Lithonia RSX1 Area LED
Rev. 03/01/22

Page 4 of 9

COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR

Performance Data

Performance 
Package System Watts

Distribution.
Type

30K 
(3000K, 70 CRI)

40K 
(4000K, 70 CRI)

50K 
(5000K, 70 CRI)

Lumens B U G LPW Lumens B U G LPW Lumens B U G LPW

P1 51W

R2 6,482 1 0 1 126 7,121 1 0 1 139 7,121 1 0 1 139
R3 6,459 1 0 2 127 7,096 1 0 2 139 7,096 1 0 2 139

R3S 6,631 1 0 1 129 7,286 1 0 2 142 7,286 1 0 2 142
R4 6,543 1 0 2 128 7,189 1 0 2 141 7,189 1 0 2 141

R4S 6,313 1 0 1 124 6,936 1 0 1 136 6,936 1 0 1 136
R5 6,631 3 0 2 130 7,286 3 0 2 143 7,286 3 0 2 143

R5S 6,807 3 0 1 133 7,479 3 0 1 147 7,479 3 0 1 147
AFR 6,473 1 0 1 127 7,112 1 0 1 139 7,112 1 0 1 139

AFRR90 6,535 2 0 2 127 7,179 2 0 2 140 7,179 2 0 2 140
AFRL90 6,562 2 0 1 128 7,210 2 0 2 140 7,210 2 0 2 140

P2 72W

R2 8,991 2 0 1 123 9,878 2 0 1 135 9,878 2 0 1 135
R3 8,959 2 0 2 124 9,843 2 0 2 137 9,843 2 0 2 137

R3S 9,198 2 0 2 126 10,106 2 0 2 139 10,106 2 0 2 139
R4 9,077 2 0 2 126 9,972 2 0 2 139 9,972 2 0 2 139

R4S 8,757 1 0 2 122 9,622 2 0 2 134 9,622 2 0 2 134
R5 9,198 4 0 2 128 10,106 4 0 2 140 10,106 4 0 2 140

R5S 9,443 3 0 1 131 10,374 3 0 1 144 10,374 3 0 1 144
AFR 8,979 2 0 1 125 9,865 2 0 1 137 9,865 2 0 1 137

AFRR90 9,064 3 0 2 124 9,959 3 0 2 137 9,959 3 0 2 137
AFRL90 9,102 3 0 2 125 10,001 3 0 2 137 10,001 3 0 2 137

P3 109W

R2 12,808 2 0 1 117 14,072 2 0 2 129 14,072 2 0 2 129
R3 12,763 2 0 2 117 14,023 2 0 2 129 14,023 2 0 2 129

R3S 13,104 2 0 2 120 14,397 2 0 2 132 14,397 2 0 2 132
R4 12,930 2 0 2 119 14,206 2 0 2 130 14,206 2 0 2 130

R4S 12,475 2 0 2 114 13,707 2 0 2 126 13,707 2 0 2 126
R5 13,104 4 0 2 120 14,397 4 0 2 132 14,397 4 0 2 132

R5S 13,452 3 0 2 123 14,779 3 0 2 136 14,779 3 0 2 136
AFR 12,791 2 0 1 117 14,053 2 0 2 129 14,053 2 0 2 129

AFRR90 12,913 3 0 3 118 14,187 3 0 3 130 14,187 3 0 3 130
AFRL90 12,967 3 0 2 118 14,247 3 0 3 130 14,247 3 0 3 130

P4 133W

R2 14,943 2 0 2 112 16,417 2 0 2 123 16,417 2 0 2 123
R3 14,890 2 0 3 112 16,360 2 0 3 123 16,360 2 0 3 123

R3S 15,287 2 0 2 115 16,796 2 0 2 126 16,796 2 0 2 126
R4 15,085 2 0 3 113 16,574 2 0 3 125 16,574 2 0 3 125

R4S 14,554 2 0 2 109 15,991 2 0 2 120 15,991 2 0 2 120
R5 15,287 4 0 2 115 16,796 4 0 2 126 16,796 4 0 2 126

R5S 15,693 4 0 2 118 17,242 4 0 2 130 17,242 4 0 2 130
AFR 14,923 2 0 2 112 16,395 2 0 2 123 16,395 2 0 2 123

AFRR90 15,065 3 0 3 113 16,551 3 0 3 124 16,551 3 0 3 124
AFRL90 15,128 3 0 3 114 16,621 3 0 3 125 16,621 3 0 3 125

Lumen Output
Lumen values are from photometric tests performed in accordance with IESNA LM-79-08. Data is considered to be representative of the configurations shown, within the tolerances allowed by Lighting 
Facts. Contact factory for performance data on any configurations not shown here.

http://www.acuitybrands.com


One Lithonia Way • Conyers, Georgia 30012 • Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378) • www.acuitybrands.com
© 2018-2022 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved. 

Lithonia RSX1 Area LED
Rev. 03/01/22

Page 5 of 9

COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR

Dimensions & Weights

 L 

 W 

 H 

Length: 22.8” (57.9 cm)
Width:  13.3” (33.8 cm)
Height:  3.0” (7.6 cm) Main Body
             7.2” (18.4 cm) Arm 

RSX1 with Round Pole Adapter (RPA)

Note: RPA — Round Pole mount can also be 
used to mount on square poles by omitting 
the round pole adapter plate shown here. 

 L 

 W 

 H 

Length: 23.2” (59.1 cm)
Width:  13.3” (33.8 cm)
Height:  3.0” (7.6 cm) Main Body
             3.5” (8.9 cm) Arm 

RSX1 with Mast Arm Adapter (MA)

7/16" locking thru bolt/nut provided

 L 

 W 

 H 

Length: 20.7” (52.7 cm)
Width:  13.3” (33.8 cm)
Height:  3.0” (7.6 cm) Main Body
             7.6” (19.3 cm) Arm 

RSX1 with Adjustable Slipfitter (IS)

7/8" KO - fits 1/2" NPT water- tight fitting

Luminaire Weight by Mounting Type

Mounting Configuration Total Luminaire Weight
SPA 22 lbs

RPA 24 lbs

MA 22 lbs

WBA 25 lbs

WBASC 28 lbs

IS 25 lbs

AASP 25 lbs

AARP 27 lbs

AAWB 28 lbs

AAWSC 31 lbs

http://www.acuitybrands.com


One Lithonia Way • Conyers, Georgia 30012 • Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378) • www.acuitybrands.com
© 2018-2022 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved. 

Lithonia RSX1 Area LED
Rev. 03/01/22

Page 6 of 9

COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR

Dimensions

L 

W H 

Length: 23.6" (59.9 cm) 
Width:  13.3” (33.8 cm)
Height: 3.0” (7.6 cm) Main Body
             8.9” (22.6 cm) Arm 

RSX1 with Wall Bracket (WBA)

Wall Bracket (WBA) Mounting Detail

4.5

7.0

L 

W H 

Length: 25.3” (64.3 cm)
Width:  13.3” (33.8 cm)
Height: 3.0” (7.6 cm) Main Body
             9.2” (23.4 cm) Arm 

RSX1 with Wall Bracket with Surface Conduit Box (WBASC)

3/4" NPT taps with plugs - Qty (4) provided

Surface Conduit Box (SCB) Mounting Detail
4.4

7.0

http://www.acuitybrands.com


One Lithonia Way • Conyers, Georgia 30012 • Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378) • www.acuitybrands.com
© 2018-2022 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved. 

Lithonia RSX1 Area LED
Rev. 03/01/22

Page 7 of 9

COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR

Dimensions

L 

W 
H 

Length: 25.3” (65.3 cm) AASP 
             26.3” (66.8 cm) AARP
Width:  13.3” (33.8 cm)
Height: 3.0” (7.6 cm) Main Body
             7.2” (18.2 cm) Arm 

RSX1 with Adjustable Tilt Arm - Square or Round Pole (AASP or AARP)

NOTE:
RPA - Round Pole mount can also be used 
to mount on square poles by omitting the 
round pole adapter plate shown here. 

7/8" KO - fits 1/2" NPT water- tight fitting

Notes
AASP: Requires 3.0" min. square pole for 1 at 90°. Requires 3.5" min. square pole for mounting 2, 3, 4 at 90°.  

AARP:  Requires 3.2" min. dia. round pole for 2, 3, 4 at 90°. Requires 3.0" min. dia. round pole for mounting 1 at 90°, 2 at 180°, 3 at 120°.

L 

W 
H 

Length: 27.1” (68.8 cm)
Width:  13.3” (33.8 cm)
Height: 3.0” (7.6 cm) Main Body
             8.9” (22.6 cm) Arm 

RSX1 with Adjustable Tilt Arm with Wall Bracket (AAWB)

Wall Bracket (WBA) Mounting Detail

4.5

7.0

7/8" KO - fits 1/2" NPT water- tight fitting

http://www.acuitybrands.com


One Lithonia Way • Conyers, Georgia 30012 • Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378) • www.acuitybrands.com
© 2018-2022 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved. 

Lithonia RSX1 Area LED
Rev. 03/01/22

Page 8 of 9

COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR

Dimensions

L 

W H 

Length: 28.8” (73.2 cm)
Width:  13.3” (33.8 cm)
Height: 3.0” (7.6 cm) Main Body
             9.2” (23.4 cm) Arm 

RSX1 with Adjustable Tilt Arm with Wall Bracket and Surface Conduit Box (AAWSC)

Additional Reference Drawings

Surface Conduit Box (SCB) Mounting Detail
4.4

7.0

3/4" NPT taps  
with plugs - Qty (4) 
provided

7/8" KO - fits 1/2" NPT water- tight fitting

Option CE34 Reference Dimensions

Automotive Front Row - Rotated Optics (AFRL90/R90)

AFRR90 AFRL90

(Example: 2@180 - arrows indicate direction of light exiting the luminaire)

http://www.acuitybrands.com


One Lithonia Way • Conyers, Georgia 30012 • Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378) • www.acuitybrands.com
© 2018-2022 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved. 

Lithonia RSX1 Area LED
Rev. 03/01/22

Page 9 of 9

COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR

FEATURES & SPECIFICATIONS

 INTENDED USE 
The RSX LED area family is designed to provide a long-lasting, energy-efficient solution for the one-
for-one replacement of existing metal halide or high pressure sodium lighting. The RSX1 delivers 7,000 
to 17,000 lumens and is ideal for replacing 70W to 400W HID pole-mounted luminaires in parking lots 
and other area lighting applications.

 CONSTRUCTION 
The RSX LED area luminaire features a rugged die-cast aluminum main body that uses heat-
dissipating fins and flow-through venting to provide optimal thermal management that both 
enhances LED performance and extends component life.  Integral “no drill” mounting arm allows 
the luminaire to be mounted on existing pole drillings, greatly reducing installation labor. The 
light engines and housing are sealed against moisture and environmental contaminants to IP66. 
The low-profile design results in a low EPA, allowing pole optimization. All mountings are rated for 
minimum 1.5 G vibration load per ANSI C136.31. 3G Mountings: Include SPA, RPA, MA, IS, AASP, 
and AARP rated for 3G vibration. 1.5G Mountings: Include WBA, WBASC, AAWB and AAWSC 
rated for 1.5G vibration.

 FINISH 
Exterior parts are protected by a zinc-infused Super Durable TGIC thermoset powder coat finish 
that provides superior resistance to corrosion and weathering. A tightly controlled multi-stage 
process ensures superior adhesion as well as a minimum finish thickness of 3 mils. The result is a 
high-quality finish that is warrantied not to crack or peel.

 OPTICS 
Precision acrylic refractive lenses are engineered for superior application efficiency, distributing 
the light to where it is needed most. Available in short and wide pattern distributions including 
Type 2, Type 3, Type 3S, Type 4, Type 4S, Type 5, Type 5S, AFR (Automotive Front Row), and AFR 
rotated AFRR90 and ARFL90.

 ELECTRICAL 
Light engine(s) configurations consist of high-efficacy LEDs mounted on metal-core circuit boards 
and aluminum heat sinks to maximize heat dissipation.  Light engines are IP66 rated.  LED lumen 
maintenance is >L92/100,000 hours. CCT’s of 3000K, 4000K and 5000K (minimum 70 CRI) are 
available. Class 1 electronic drivers ensure system power factor >90% and THD <20%. Easily 
serviceable 10kV surge protection device meets a minimum Category C Low operation (per ANSI/
IEEE C62.41.2).

 STANDARD CONTROLS 
The RSX LED area luminaire has a wide assortment of control options. Dusk to dawn controls 
include MVOLT and 347V button-type photocells and NEMA twist-lock photocell receptacles. 

 nLIGHT AIR CONTROLS 
The RSX LED area luminaire is also available with nLight® AIR for the ultimate in wireless 
control. This powerful controls platform provides out-of-the-box basic motion sensing 
with photocontrol functionality and is suitable for mounting heights up to 40 feet. No 
commissioning is required when using factory default settings that provide basic stand-alone 
motion occupancy dimming that is switched on and off with a built-in photocell. See chart 
above for motion sensor default out-of-box settings. For more advanced wireless functionality, 
such as group dimming, nLight AIR can be commissioned using a smartphone and the easy-to-
use CLAIRITY app. nLight AIR equipped luminaries can be grouped, resulting in motion sensor 
and photocell group response without the need for additional equipment. Scheduled dimming 
with motion sensor over-ride can be achieved when used with the nLight Eclypse. Additional 
information about nLight Air can be found here.

 INSTALLATION 
Integral “no-drill” mounting arm allows for fast, easy mounting using existing pole drillings. 
Select the “SPA” option for square poles and the “RPA” option to mount to round poles. Note, 
the RPA mount can also be used for mounting to square poles by omitting the RPA adapter 
plate. Select the “MA” option to attach the luminaire to a 2 3/8” horizontal mast arm or the 
“IS” option for an adjustable slipfitter that mounts on a 2 3/8” OD tenon. The adjustable 
slipfitter has an integral junction box and offers easy installation. Can be tilted up to 90° above 
horizontal. Additional mountings are available including a wall bracket, adjustable tilt arm for 
direct-to-pole and wall and a surface conduit box for wall mount applications.

 LISTINGS 
CSA Certified to meet U.S. and Canadian standards. Suitable for wet locations. Rated for 
-40°C minimum ambient. DesignLights Consortium® (DLC) Premium qualified product and 
DLC qualified product. Not all versions of this product may be DLC Premium qualified or DLC 
qualified. Please check the DLC Qualified Products List at www.designlights.org/QPL to confirm 
which versions are qualified. 
International Dark-Sky Association (IDA) Fixture Seal of Approval (FSA) is available for all 
products on this page utilizing 3000K color temperature only. U.S. Patent No. D882, 146S

 BUY AMERICAN 
Product with the BAA option is assembled in the USA and meets the Buy America(n) 
government procurement requirements under FAR, DFARS and DOT.  
Please refer to www.acuitybrands.com/buy-american for additional information.

 WARRANTY 
5-year limited warranty. This is the only warranty provided and no other statements in this 
specification sheet create any warranty of any kind. All other express and implied warranties are 
disclaimed. Complete warranty terms located at:  
www.acuitybrands.com/support/warranty/terms-and-conditions

 Note: Actual performance may differ as a result of end-user environment and application. 
All values are design or typical values, measured under laboratory conditions at 25 °C. 
Specifications subject to change without notice.

nLight Control - Sensor Coverage and Settings

Motion Sensor Default Settings - Option PIRHN

 
Option

Dimmed State  
(unoccupied)

High Level  
(when occupied)

Photocell  
Operation

Dwell Time  
(occupancy time delay)

Ramp-up Time  
(from unoccupied to occupied)

Ramp-down Time  
(from occupied to unoccupied)

NLTAIR2 PIRHN Approx. 30% Output 100% Output Enabled @ 1.5FC 7.5 minutes 3 seconds 5 minutes

nLight Sensor Coverage Pattern
NLTAIR2 PIRHN

Top Side

*Note: NLTAIR2 PIRHN default settings including photocell set-point, high/low dim rates, and occupancy sensor time delay are all configurable using the Clairity Pro App.  
Sensor coverage pattern shown with luminaire at 0°. Sensor coverage pattern is affected when luminaire is titled. 

http://www.acuitybrands.com
https://www.acuitybrands.com/products/controls/nlightair
http://www.designlights.org/QPL
https://www.acuitybrands.com/resources/buy-american
http://www.acuitybrands.com/support/warranty/terms-and-conditions


EVERBROOK ACADEMY

FRANKFORT, IL
11125 WEST LINCOLN
HIGHWAY

PRELIMINARY
COVER SHEET

   
INTERNAL REVIEW04/26/190

   
   
   
   

   
   
   
   

   
   

C
0.0

SH
EET N

o
.

5

22.XC
E.C

01

DESCRIPTIONNo. DATE DESCRIPTIONNo. DATESHEET NAME

rtm
engineering consultants

rtm
engineering consultants

PR
O

JEC
T N

o
.

O
F     SH

EETS

PROJECT NAME
650 E. Algonquin Road
Suite 250
Schaumburg, IL 60173
Telephone: (847) 756 - 4180
www.rtmec.com

IL Design Firm: 184006777-0002

User: mubbasher.hasham  File:  J:\2022\22.XCE.C01 Everbrook Academy - Frankfort, IL\09 DESIGN DRAWINGS\02-SHEETS\22.XCE.C01_COVER SHEET.dwg   Time:   Jun 23, 2022 - 3:49pm

LO
C

A
TIO

N
 M

A
P

21.56

SYM
BO

L A
N

D
 LIN

E LEG
EN

D

BEN
C

H
M

A
R

KS: (N
A

V
D

88)

C
A

LL 48 H
O

U
R

S
 B

E
FO

R
E

 Y
O

U
 D

IG
W

ITH
 TH

E
 FO

LLO
W

IN
G

 IN
FO

R
M

A
TIO

N

C
O

U
N

TY
 N

A
M

E
:

TO
W

N
S

H
IP

, R
A

N
G

E
 :

S
E

C
TIO

N
 N

U
M

B
E

R
:

K
now

 w
hat's below

.
C

all before you dig.

W
ILL20 35N

, 12E

PR
ELIM

IN
A

R
Y EN

G
IN

EER
IN

G
 PLA

N
S

V
A

LV
E V

A
ULT

W
A

TER B-BO
X

W
A

TER V
A

LV
E BO

X

FIRE HYD
RA

N
T

W
ELL HEA

D

FIRE D
EPA

RTM
EN

T C
O

N
N

EC
TIO

N

STO
RM

 IN
LET

STO
RM

 M
A

N
HO

LE

C
A

TC
H BA

SIN

STO
RM

 C
LEA

N
O

UT

D
O

W
N

SPO
UT

FLA
RED

 EN
D

 SEC
TIO

N

SA
N

ITA
RY M

A
N

HO
LE

SA
N

ITA
RY C

LEA
N

O
UT

LIG
HT PO

LE

TELEPHO
N

E M
A

N
HO

LE

PO
W

ER PO
LE

G
A

S V
A

LV
E

G
A

S M
ETER

HA
N

D
 HO

LE

M
A

IL BO
X

ELEC
TRIC

A
L M

A
N

HO
LE

C
A

BLE TV
 PED

ESTA
L

TELEPHO
N

E PED
ESTA

L

TRA
FFIC

 O
R STREET SIG

N

SO
IL BO

RIN
G

SPO
T ELEV

A
TIO

N

SURFLA
C

E FLO
W

100-YEA
R O

V
ERFLO

W

W
A

TERM
A

IN
 PIPE

STO
RM

 SEW
ER PIPE

STO
RM

 UN
D

ERD
RA

IN

SA
N

ITA
RY SEW

ER PIPE

IRRIG
A

TIO
N

 SLEEV
E/PIPIN

G

ELEC
TRIC

A
L D

UC
T BA

N
K

N
A

TURA
L G

A
S LIN

E

C
O

M
M

UN
IC

A
TIO

N
S LIN

E

C
HILLED

 W
A

TER SUPPLY

C
HILLED

 W
A

TER RETURN

TELEV
ISIO

N
 C

A
BLE

UN
D

ERG
RO

UN
D

 W
IRE

TELEPHO
N

E C
A

BLE

FIBER O
PTIC

 C
A

BLE

A
ERIA

L W
IRES

C
O

N
STRUC

TIO
N

 LIM
ITS

PRO
PERTY LIN

E

EA
SEM

EN
T LIN

E

V
EN

T LIN
E

HIG
H W

A
TER LIN

E

N
O

RM
A

L W
A

TER LIN
E

C
HA

IN
 LIN

K FEN
C

E

BA
RBED

-W
IRE FEN

C
E

W
O

O
D

EN
 FEN

C
E

SILT FEN
C

E

D
EC

ID
UO

US TREE

SHRUB O
R BUSH

EV
ERG

REEN
 TREE

LO
C
A
T
IO
N

D
U

TY TO
 IN

D
EM

N
IFY

½

N
O

TES

EV
ER

BR
O

O
K A

C
A

D
EM

Y
11125 W

EST LIN
C

O
LN

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y, FR

A
N

KFO
R

T, IL

O
W

N
ER

 IN
FO

R
M

A
TIO

N

Sh
e

e
t List Ta

b
le

Sheet N
um

ber
Sheet Title

C
0.0

PRELIM
IN

A
RY C

O
V

ER SHEET

C
1.0

PRELIM
IN

A
RY D

EM
O

LITIO
N

 PLA
N

C
2.0

PRELIM
IN

A
RY SITE PLA

N

C
3.0

PRELIM
IN

A
RY UTILITY PLA

N

C
4.0

PRELIM
IN

A
RY G

RA
D

IN
G

 PLA
N

mschwarz
Typewritten Text
VOF RECEIVED 7-5-22 VIA DROPBOX 



L I N C O L N     H I G H W A Y
(I L     R O U T E     3 0)

S 85°34'34" E     252.80'

S 88°29'41" W     311.05'

N
 0

1°
56

'2
0"

 W
   

  1
03

.5
4'

S 
01

°5
4'

36
" E

   
  4

06
.3

0'

N 87°57'10" E     60.00'

N
 0

1°
56

'2
0"

 E
   

  3
28

.3
1'

EX. C
URB TO

 BE
REM

O
V

ED
 (TYP.)

EX. BO
LLA

RD
 TO

BE REM
O

V
ED

EX. TREE TO
 BE

REM
O

V
ED

EX. TREE TO
 BE

REM
O

V
ED

1.
SITE A

C
C

ESS C
O

N
TRO

L IN
C

LUD
IN

G
 SA

FETY FEN
C

ES A
N

D
 TRA

FFIC
 C

O
N

TRO
L, A

LL
C

O
N

STRUC
TIO

N
 M

EA
N

S A
N

D
 M

ETHO
D

S, A
N

D
 SITE SA

FETY A
RE THE SO

LE RESPO
N

SIBILITY O
F THE

C
O

N
TRA

C
TO

R.

2.
C

O
N

TRA
C

TO
R A

G
REES THA

T IN
 A

C
C

O
RD

A
N

C
E W

ITH G
EN

ERA
LLY A

C
C

EPTED
 C

O
N

STRUC
TIO

N
PRA

C
TIC

ES, C
O

N
TRA

C
TO

R W
ILL BE REQ

UIRED
 TO

 A
SSUM

E SO
LE A

N
D

 C
O

M
PLETE RESPO

N
SIBILITY

FO
R

JO
B SITE C

O
N

D
ITIO

N
S D

URIN
G

 THE C
O

URSE O
F C

O
N

STRUC
TIO

N
 O

F
THE PRO

JEC
T, IN

C
LUD

IN
G

 SA
FETY O

F A
LL PERSO

N
S A

N
D

 PRO
PERTY. THIS REQ

UIREM
EN

T SHA
LL BE

M
A

D
E TO

 A
PPLY C

O
N

TIN
UO

USLY A
N

D
 N

O
T BE LIM

ITED
 TO

 N
O

RM
A

L W
O

RKIN
G

 HO
URS.

C
O

N
TRA

C
TO

R FURTHER A
G

REES TO
 D

EFEN
D

, IN
D

EM
N

IFY, A
N

D
 HO

LD
 THE O

W
N

ER A
N

D
 D

ESIG
N

PRO
FESSIO

N
A

L HA
RM

LESS O
F A

N
Y A

N
D

 A
LL LIA

BILITY, REA
L O

R A
LLEG

ED
 IN

 C
O

N
N

EC
TIO

N
 W

ITH
THE PERFO

RM
A

N
C

E O
F W

O
RK O

N
 THIS PRO

JEC
T, EXC

EPTIN
G

 LIA
BILITY A

RISIN
G

 FRO
M

 THE SO
LE

N
EG

LIG
EN

C
E O

F THE O
W

N
ER O

R D
ESIG

N
 PRO

FESSIO
N

A
L.

3.
A

LL SITE C
LEA

RIN
G

, TO
PSO

IL STRIPPIN
G

, EXC
A

V
A

TIO
N

, EM
BA

N
KM

EN
T, G

RA
D

IN
G

,
C

O
M

PA
C

TIO
N

, SUB G
RA

D
E PREPA

RA
TIO

N
 A

N
D

 O
THER W

O
RK HEREIN

 C
O

N
TEM

PLA
TED

 SHA
LL BE

C
O

N
STRUC

TED
 IN

 C
O

N
FO

RM
A

N
C

E W
ITH THE A

PPLIC
A

BLE SEC
TIO

N
S O

F THE STA
N

D
A

RD
SPEC

IFIC
A

TIO
N

S FO
R RO

A
D

 A
N

D
 BRID

G
E C

O
N

STRUC
TIO

N
, ILLIN

O
IS D

EPA
RTM

EN
T O

F
TRA

N
SPO

RTA
TIO

N
, JA

N
UA

RY 2016 ED
ITIO

N
, (HEREIN

A
FTER REFERRED

 TO
 A

S STA
N

D
A

RD
SPEC

IFIC
A

TIO
N

S) EXC
EPT THA

T PA
YM

EN
T W

ILL BE D
EFIN

ED
 A

S D
ETA

ILED
 IN

 THE STA
N

D
A

RD
SPEC

IFIC
A

TIO
N

S FO
R W

A
TER A

N
D

 SEW
ER SIXTH ED

ITIO
N

, 2009.

4.
THE EXISTEN

C
E A

N
D

 LO
C

A
TIO

N
 O

F UN
D

ERG
RO

UN
D

 UTILITIES SHA
LL BE IN

V
ESTIG

A
TED

 A
N

D
V

ERIFIED
 IN

 THE FIELD
 BY THE C

O
N

TRA
C

TO
R BEFO

RE STA
RTIN

G
 W

O
RK IN

 THE C
O

N
STRUC

TIO
N

A
REA

. EXC
A

V
A

TIO
N

 IN
 THE V

IC
IN

ITY O
F EXISTIN

G
 STRUC

TURES A
N

D
 UN

D
ERG

RO
UN

D
 UTILITIES

SHA
LL BE PERFO

RM
ED

 BY HA
N

D
.  THE C

O
N

TRA
C

TO
R SHA

LL BE HELD
 RESPO

N
SIBLE FO

R A
N

Y A
N

D
A

LL D
A

M
A

G
ES TO

 EXISTIN
G

 FA
C

ILITIES, M
A

IN
TEN

A
N

C
E A

N
D

 PRO
TEC

TIO
N

 O
F EXISTIN

G
 UTILITIES

A
N

D
 STRUC

TURES SHA
LL BE THE RESPO

N
SIBILITY O

F THE C
O

N
TRA

C
TO

R.

5.
THE C

O
N

TRA
C

TO
R IS TO

 UN
C

O
V

ER A
LL LIN

ES BEIN
G

 TIED
 IN

TO
 A

N
D

 V
ERIFY SIZE A

N
D

 ELEV
A

TIO
N

BEFO
RE A

N
Y C

O
N

STRUC
TIO

N
.

6.
C

O
N

TRA
C

TO
R SHA

LL BE RESPO
N

SIBLE FO
R C

O
O

RD
IN

A
TIN

G
 A

LL STREET A
N

D
 SID

EW
A

LK
C

LO
SURES W

ITH THE M
UN

IC
IPA

LITY.

7.
C

O
N

D
UC

T D
EM

O
LITIO

N
 O

PERA
TIO

N
S A

N
D

 REM
O

V
A

L O
F D

EBRIS A
N

D
 SPO

ILS TO
 IN

SURE
M

IN
IM

A
L IN

TERFEREN
C

E W
ITH O

W
N

ER O
PERA

TIO
N

S.

8.
EN

SURE SA
FE PA

SSA
G

E O
F PERSO

N
S A

RO
UN

D
 A

REA
S O

F D
EM

O
LITIO

N
.  REM

O
V

E FRO
M

 SITE A
LL

D
EBRIS, RUBBISH A

N
D

 O
THER M

A
TERIA

LS RESULTIN
G

 FO
RM

 D
EM

O
LITIO

N
 A

N
D

 LA
W

FULLY D
ISPO

SE
O

F SA
M

E.

9.
A

LL ITEM
S TO

 BE REM
O

V
ED

 SHA
LL BE PRO

PERLY A
N

D
 LEG

A
LLY D

ISPO
SED

 O
F BY THE

C
O

N
TRA

C
TO

R.

10.
A

T LO
C

A
TIO

N
S O

F UTILITY REM
O

V
A

L, A
N

Y O
PEN

 TREN
C

HES REQ
UIRED

, SHA
LL BE BA

C
KFILLED

W
ITH C

O
M

PA
C

TED
 TREN

C
H BA

C
KFILL.

11.
N

O
TIFY UTILITY O

W
N

ER 72 HO
URS IN

 A
D

V
A

N
C

E O
F A

N
Y UTILITY SHUTD

O
W

N
.

12.
THE C

O
N

TRA
C

TO
R SHA

LL C
O

O
RD

IN
A

TE W
ITH THE O

W
N

ER A
LL ITEM

S D
ESIG

N
A

TED
 TO

 BE
REM

O
V

ED
 O

R RELO
C

A
TED

.

13.
IF A

N
Y ITEM

S A
RE EN

C
O

UN
TERED

 IN
 THE FIELD

 THA
T A

RE N
O

T SHO
W

N
 O

N
 THE PLA

N
 W

HIC
H

REQ
UIRE D

EM
O

LITIO
N

 O
R RELO

C
A

TIO
N

, THE C
O

N
TRA

C
TO

R SHA
LL N

O
TIFY THE A

/E IM
M

ED
IA

TELY.

14.
THE SURV

EY BA
SE PRO

V
ID

ED
 HEREIN

 IS FO
R IN

FO
RM

A
TIO

N
A

L PURPO
SES O

N
LY.  THE O

W
N

ER,
A

RC
HITEC

T &
 EN

G
IN

EER(S) A
RE N

O
T RESPO

N
SIBLE FO

R A
N

Y M
ISC

HA
RTED

 O
R UN

C
HA

RTED
UTILITIES, O

R O
THER D

ESC
REPEN

C
IES D

ETEC
TED

.  IT IS THE RESPO
N

SIBILITY O
F THE C

O
N

TRA
C

TO
R

TO
 V

ERIFY A
LL SITE C

O
N

D
ITIO

N
S.

15.
THE C

O
N

TRA
C

TO
R W

ILL PRO
TEC

T A
LL UTILITIES, STREETS, STRUC

TURES, V
EG

ETA
TIO

N
, A

N
D

A
D

JA
C

EN
T PRO

PERTY D
ESIG

N
A

TED
 TO

 REM
A

IN
.  A

N
Y D

A
M

A
G

E BY THE C
O

N
TRA

C
TO

R TO
UTILITIES, STREETS, STRUC

TURES, V
EG

ETA
TIO

N
 A

N
D

 A
D

JA
C

EN
T PRO

PERTY W
ILL BE REPLA

C
ED

 O
R

REPA
IRED

 A
T THE C

O
N

TRA
C

TO
R'S EXPEN

SE.

16.
THE C

O
N

TRA
C

TO
R W

ILL PA
Y A

LL REQ
UISITE FEES TO

 THE M
UN

IC
IPA

LITY, A
N

D
 A

N
Y O

THER
A

G
EN

C
Y REQ

UIRED
, FO

R C
O

M
PLETIO

N
 O

F D
EM

O
LITIO

N
 W

O
RK.

17.
C

O
N

TRA
C

TO
R TO

 A
D

JUST RIM
S O

F EXISTIN
G

 STRUC
TURES W

ITHIN
 SC

O
PE O

F W
O

RK TO
 FIN

A
L

G
RA

D
E ELEV

A
TIO

N
S.

18.
EXISTIN

G
 LA

TERA
L C

O
N

N
EC

TIO
N

S FO
R UTILITIES SHA

LL BE C
O

O
RD

IN
A

TED
 W

ITH THE
C

O
RRESPO

N
D

IN
G

 UTILITY C
O

M
PA

N
Y FO

R C
A

PPIN
G

 A
N

D
 C

UT O
FF W

ITHIN
 THE SC

O
PE O

F W
O

RK.

19.
THE C

O
N

TRA
C

TO
R IS TO

 C
O

M
PLY W

ITH FED
ERA

L, STA
TE, A

N
D

 LO
C

A
L O

RD
IN

A
N

C
ES W

ITH
REG

A
RD

 TO
 REM

O
V

A
L A

N
D

 D
ISPO

SA
L O

F M
A

TERIA
LS FO

R A
LL ITEM

S TO
 BE D

EM
O

LISHED
. W

O
RK

IN
C

LUD
ES THE C

O
M

PLETE REM
O

V
A

L A
N

D
 LEG

A
L D

ISPO
SA

L O
F A

LL O
BJEC

TS A
N

D
 M

A
TERIA

LS
(REG

A
RD

LESS O
F THEIR N

A
TURE) IN

C
LUD

IN
G

 BUT N
O

T LIM
ITED

 TO
 TREE RO

O
TS, O

RG
A

N
IC

 SO
IL,

D
RUM

S, TIRES, W
O

O
D

, BRO
KEN

 C
O

N
C

RETE PIEC
ES, A

N
D

 FEN
C

ES A
BO

V
E THE REQ

UIRED
ELEV

A
TIO

N
.

20.
BURN

IN
G

 O
N

 O
W

N
ERS PRO

PERTY IS N
O

T PERM
ITTED

.

21.
FULL D

EPTH SA
W

C
UTS A

RE REQ
UIRED

 FO
R PA

V
EM

EN
T REM

O
V

A
LS, A

D
JA

C
EN

T TO
 EXISTIN

G
PA

V
EM

EN
T TO

 REM
A

IN
.

22.
SA

W
C

UT A
LL TREE RO

O
TS EN

C
O

UN
TERED

 IN
 LIEU O

F USIN
G

 SHO
V

ELS (HA
N

D
 SHO

V
ELS O

R
M

EC
HA

N
IC

A
L). SEE LA

N
D

SC
A

PE PLA
N

S FO
R TREE PRO

TEC
TIO

N
 REQ

UIREM
EN

TS.

23.
PO

LES, BUILD
IN

G
, FEN

C
E, STO

RA
G

E, ETC
. FO

UN
D

A
TIO

N
S SHA

LL BE C
O

M
PLETELY REM

O
V

ED
BELO

W
 G

RA
D

E TYP.

24.
UTILITIES  TO

 BE C
A

PPED
 A

N
D

 FILLED
 W

ITH C
O

N
TRO

LLED
 LO

W
 STREN

G
TH M

A
TERIA

L

SA
W

C
UT LIN

E

LIN
EA

R ITEM
 REM

O
V

A
L

ITEM
 REM

O
V

A
L

LEG
EN

D
:

LIN
EA

R C
URB REM

O
V

A
L

( IN
 FEET )

G
R

A
PH

IC
 SC

A
LE

0

1 in
c

h
 =

 20 ft.

10
20

40
20

N
O

TES:

EVERBROOK ACADEMY

FRANKFORT, IL
11125 WEST LINCOLN
HIGHWAY

PRELIMINARY
DEMOLITION PLAN

   
INTERNAL REVIEW04/26/190

   
   
   
   

   
   
   
   

   
   

C
1.0

SH
EET N

o
.

5

22.XC
E.C

01

DESCRIPTIONNo. DATE DESCRIPTIONNo. DATESHEET NAME

rtm
engineering consultants

rtm
engineering consultants

PR
O

JEC
T N

o
.

O
F     SH

EETS

PROJECT NAME
650 E. Algonquin Road
Suite 250
Schaumburg, IL 60173
Telephone: (847) 756 - 4180
www.rtmec.com

IL Design Firm: 184006777-0002

User: mubbasher.hasham  File:  J:\2022\22.XCE.C01 Everbrook Academy - Frankfort, IL\09 DESIGN DRAWINGS\02-SHEETS\22.XCE.C01_DEMOLITION PLAN.dwg   Time:   Jun 23, 2022 - 3:51pm



9'

126'

117'

115'

135'

18'

R30'
R25'

R5'R2'

R10'
R4.5'

R4.06'

R3'

R4.5'
R10'

R15'

R12'
R12'

R7.21'
R12.12'

BO
LLA

RD

FLA
G

PO
LE

FLO
O

R D
RA

IN

70.18'

70.62'

8'

9'

37.97'

39.88'

7'7'
16.58'

92.16'

13
13

15

75.36'

75.22'

56.95'

81.31'

30.85'
24'

18'
5'

24'
18'

50.72'

33.67'

PLA
YG

RO
UN

D
EQ

UIPM
EN

T

L I N C O L N     H I G H W A Y
(I L     R O U T E     3 0)

S 85°34'34" E     252.80'

S 88°29'41" W     311.05'

N
 0

1°
56

'2
0"

 W
   

  1
03

.5
4'

S 
01

°5
4'

36
" E

   
  4

06
.3

0'

N 87°57'10" E     60.00'

N
 0

1°
56

'2
0"

 E
   

  3
28

.3
1'

12,870 SF
EV

ERBRO
O

K A
C

A
D

EM
Y

EVERBROOK ACADEMY

FRANKFORT, IL
11125 WEST LINCOLN
HIGHWAY

PRELIMINARY SITE
PLAN

User: mubbasher.hasham  File:  J:\2022\22.XCE.C01 Everbrook Academy - Frankfort, IL\09 DESIGN DRAWINGS\02-SHEETS\22.XCE.C01_SITE PLAN.dwg   Time:   Jun 23, 2022 - 3:51pm

   
INTERNAL REVIEW04/26/190

   
   
   
   

   
   
   
   

   
   

C
2.0

SH
EET N

o
.

5

22.XC
E.C

01

N
O

TES:
1.

A
LL D

IM
EN

SIO
N

S A
LO

N
G

 C
URB LIN

ES A
RE TO

 FA
C

E O
F C

URB, UN
LESS N

O
TED

O
THERW

ISE.

2.
BUILD

IN
G

S A
N

D
 A

D
JA

C
EN

T TO
 BUILD

IN
G

 IM
PRO

V
EM

EN
TS SHO

W
N

 O
N

 THESE PLA
N

S
A

RE BA
SED

 UPO
N

 THE BUILD
IN

G
 PLA

N
S PRO

V
ID

ED
 BY O

THERS A
T THE D

A
TE O

F THESE
PLA

N
S BEIN

G
 PREPA

RED
. BUILD

IN
G

 PLA
N

S N
O

RM
A

LLY C
O

N
TIN

UE TO
 C

HA
N

G
E

A
FTER SITE PLA

N
S HA

V
E BEEN

 A
PPRO

V
ED

. THEREFO
RE THE C

O
N

TRA
C

TO
R SHA

LL USE
THE BUILD

IN
G

 PLA
N

S FO
R FIN

A
L BUILD

IN
G

 IM
PRO

V
EM

EN
TS, A

N
D

 V
ERIFY THA

T A
LL

A
D

JA
C

EN
T IM

PRO
V

EM
EN

TS A
RE C

O
N

SISTEN
T W

ITH THE D
ESIG

N
 IN

TEN
T A

N
D

REQ
UIREM

EN
TS O

F THE SITE PLA
N

S. THE C
O

N
TRA

C
TO

R SHA
LL N

O
TIFY EN

G
IN

EER
IM

M
ED

IA
TELY IF C

LA
RIFIC

A
TIO

N
 IS N

EED
ED

, O
R IF C

O
N

FLIC
TS O

R IN
C

O
N

SISTEN
C

IES
EXIST.

3.
A

D
A

 D
ETEC

TIBLE W
A

RN
IN

G
 STRIPS SHA

LL BE C
A

ST IRO
N

 TILES, W
ET SET IN

TO
C

O
N

C
RETE SURFA

C
E, PER M

A
N

UFA
C

TURERS IN
STA

LLA
TIO

N
 REC

O
M

M
EN

D
A

TIO
N

S.

4.
TO

PO
G

RA
PHIC

 A
N

D
 BO

UN
D

A
RY SURV

EY PREPA
RED

 BY xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

A
.

4" YELLO
W

 STRIPIN
G

B.
YELLO

W
 HA

N
D

IC
A

P PA
RKIN

G
 STRIPIN

G
 (SEE D

ETA
IL)

C
.

"A
C

C
ESSIBLE" PA

RKIN
G

 STA
LL SIG

N
 A

SSEM
BLY ($250 FIN

E)
D

.
"STO

P" SIG
N

 R1-1 (30''X30'')
E.

24" W
HITE THERM

O
PLA

STIC
 STO

P BA
R

F.
4" PA

IN
TED

 C
RO

SS STRIPIN
G

 4' C
-C

G
.

D
IREC

TIO
N

A
L A

RRO
W

H.
RIG

HT TURN
 O

N
LY R3-5 (24"X30")

I.
THERM

O
PLA

STIC
 RIG

HT TURN
 O

N
LY STRIPIN

G
J.

4'' YELLO
W

 LIN
ES, 5.5'' C

-C
 SKIP-D

A
SH A

N
D

 SO
LID

K.
6" SO

LID
 W

HITE THERM
O

PLA
STIC

.
L.

"N
O

 LEFT TURN
" SIG

N
 (30"X30")

M
.

6" W
HITE THERM

O
PLA

STIC
 6' SKIP 2' D

A
SH

STRIPIN
G

 N
O

TE: O
N

-SITE PA
V

EM
EN

T M
A

RKIN
G

S A
N

D
 G

RA
PHIC

S SHA
LL C

O
N

SIST O
F TW

O
(2) C

O
A

TS O
F TRA

FFIC
-RA

TED
 PA

IN
T A

PPLIED
 A

 M
IN

IM
UM

 O
F 30 D

A
YS A

PA
RT. STRIPIN

G
A

N
D

 G
RA

PHIC
S A

T EN
TRY D

RIV
ES SHA

LL BE THERM
O

PLA
STIC

 A
S N

O
TED

. M
A

TERIA
LS SHA

LL
M

EET ILLIN
O

IS D
EPA

RTM
EN

T O
F TRA

N
SPO

RTA
TIO

N
 STA

N
D

A
RD

S.

SIG
N

IN
G

 A
N

D
 STR

IPIN
G

 SC
H

ED
U

LE

PA
R

KIN
G

 SU
M

M
A

R
Y

X

EXISTIN
G

PRO
PO

SED

REG
ULA

R STA
LLS (9'x18')

0
39

A
C

C
ESSIBLE STA

LLS
(16'x18')

0
2

TO
TA

L STA
LL C

O
UN

T
0

41

X

PRO
PO

SED
 FULL-D

EPTH REG
ULA

R A
SPHA

LT PA
V

EM
EN

T.

PRO
PO

SED
 C

O
N

C
RETE PA

V
EM

EN
T.

PRO
PO

SED
 C

O
N

C
RETE SID

EW
A

LK.

PRO
PO

SED
 FULL-D

EPTH HEA
V

Y-D
UTY A

SPHA
LT PA

V
EM

EN
T.

LEG
EN

D
:

SA
W

C
UT LIN

E

B6.12 C
URB A

N
D

 G
UTTER UN

LESS N
O

TED
 O

THERW
ISE

B6.12 C
URB A

N
D

 G
UTTER - D

EPRESSED

B6.12 C
URB A

N
D

 G
UTTER - TRA

N
SITIO

N
 (ZERO

 TO
 FULL HEIG

HT)

EXISTIN
G

 C
URB A

N
D

 G
UTTER - D

EPRESSED

EXISTIN
G

 C
URB A

N
D

 G
UTTER

BA
RRIER C

URB A
N

D
 G

UTTER UN
LESS N

O
TED

 O
THERW

ISE

BA
RRIER C

URB A
N

D
 G

UTTER - D
EPRESSED

B6.12 C
URB A

N
D

 G
UTTER - TRA

N
SITIO

N
 (ZERO

 TO
 FULL HEIG

HT)

A
D

A
 TRUN

C
A

TED
 D

O
M

ES

( IN
 FEET )

G
R

A
PH

IC
 SC

A
LE

0

1 in
c

h
 =

 20 ft.

10
20

40
20

DESCRIPTIONNo. DATE DESCRIPTIONNo. DATESHEET NAME

rtm
engineering consultants

rtm
engineering consultants

PR
O

JEC
T N

o
.

O
F     SH

EETS

PROJECT NAME
650 E. Algonquin Road
Suite 250
Schaumburg, IL 60173
Telephone: (847) 756 - 4180
www.rtmec.com

IL Design Firm: 184006777-0002

1

1

PRO
PO

SED
 A

RTIFIC
IA

L TURF.



L I N C O L N     H I G H W A Y
(I L     R O U T E     3 0)

S 85°34'34" E     252.80'

S 88°29'41" W     311.05'

N
 0

1°
56

'2
0"

 W
   

  1
03

.5
4'

S 
01

°5
4'

36
" E

   
  4

06
.3

0'

N 87°57'10" E     60.00'

N
 0

1°
56

'2
0"

 E
   

  3
28

.3
1'

12,870 SF
EV

ERBRO
O

K A
C

A
D

EM
Y

4'Ø
 ST. M

H #
RIM

. 731.76
IN

V
. 726.60

4'Ø
 ST. M

H #
RIM

.731.90
IN

V
. 726.85

4'Ø
 ST. M

H #
RIM

. 731.53
IN

V
. 727.42

4'Ø
 ST. M

H #
RIM

. 731.99
IN

V
. 728.45

4'Ø
 ST. M

H #
RIM

. 731.53
IN

V
. 728.20

4'Ø
 ST. M

H #
RIM

. 731.22
IN

V
. 728.85

4'Ø
 ST. M

H #
RIM

. 731.27
IN

V
. 727.30

4'Ø
 ST. M

H #
RIM

. 731.27
IN

V
. 727.75

LF-12" RCP ST. SEW. 113' @ 0.50%

LF-12" RC
P ST. SEW

. 45' @
 0.53%

LF-12" RCP ST. SEW. 80' @ 0.50%

LF-12" RC
P ST. SEW

. 153' @
 0.50%

LF-12" RC
P ST. SEW

. 46' @
 0.54%

LF-12" RCP ST. SEW. 77' @ 0.52%

LF-12" RCP ST. SEW. 83' @ 0.50%

LF-12" RC
P ST. SEW

. 87' @
 0.50%

W
YE RISER C

O
N

N
EC

TIO
N

M
EET EXISTIN

G
 IN

V
ERT 716.55'

F.F.
734

F.F.
734

F.F.
734

F.F.
734

F.F.
734

IN
V

. 720.10'LF-6" PVC
 SA

N
. SEW

. 86' @
 5.00%

6" W
A

TER SERV
IC

E

N
O

TES:
1.

EX. ITEM
S SHALL BE FIELD VERIFIED. RELO

C
ATIO

N O
R ADJUSTM

ENT M
AY BE NEEDED.

C
O

NTRAC
TO

R TO
 VERIFY.

2.
C

O
NTRAC

TO
R SHALL VERIFY ALL W

O
RK, INC

LUDING
 BUT LIM

ITED TO
, SIZES, M

ATERIALS AND
LO

C
ATIO

N, W
ITH UTILITY C

O
M

PANIES PRIO
R TO

 INSTALLATIO
N.

3.
VERIFY SERVIC

E LO
C

ATIO
NS W

ITH BUILDING
 PLANS PRIO

R TO
 C

O
NSTRUC

TIO
N AND NO

TIFY
ENG

INEER O
F ANY DISC

REPANC
IES.

4.
RIM

 G
RADES ALO

NG
 C

URBS ARE FLO
W

 LINE ELEVATIO
NS.

5.
SEE SPEC

IFIC
ATIO

NS SHEET FO
R ALL STO

RM
, SANITARY, AND W

ATER PIPE AND STRUC
TURE

SPEC
IFIC

ATIO
NS.

6.
ALL UTILITY TIE DIM

ENSIO
NS ARE FRO

M
 C

ENTER O
F UTILITY AND TO

 BAC
K O

F C
URB W

HEN TIED
TO

 C
URB LINES, UNLESS O

THERW
ISE NO

TED.

7.
C

O
NTRAC

TO
R TO

 INSPEC
T EXISTING

 SEW
ER AT PO

INT O
F C

O
NNEC

TIO
N. C

O
NTRAC

TO
R TO

VERIFY THAT EXISTING
 PIPE IS IN G

O
O

D W
O

RKING
 C

O
NDITIO

N. C
O

NTRAC
TO

R TO
 REPAIR AS

REQ
UIRED.

8.
C

O
NTRAC

TO
R TO

 NO
TIFY O

W
NER/ENG

INEER IF C
O

NFLIC
TS O

C
C

UR.

9.
NEW

 O
PENING

/C
O

NNEC
TIO

NS TO
 EXISTING

 M
ANHO

LE/STRUC
TURES SHALL BE C

O
RE-DRILLED

AND UTILIZE RUBBER BO
O

TS C
O

NFO
RM

ING
 TO

 ASTM
 C

-923.

EVERBROOK ACADEMY

FRANKFORT, IL
11125 WEST LINCOLN
HIGHWAY

PRELIMINARY
UTILITY PLAN

User: mubbasher.hasham  File:  J:\2022\22.XCE.C01 Everbrook Academy - Frankfort, IL\09 DESIGN DRAWINGS\02-SHEETS\22.XCE.C01_UTILITY PLAN.dwg   Time:   Jun 23, 2022 - 3:52pm

   
INTERNAL REVIEW04/26/190

   
   
   
   

   
   
   
   

   
   

C
3.0

SH
EET N

o
.

5

22.XC
E.C

01

( IN
 FEET )

G
R

A
PH

IC
 SC

A
LE

0

1 in
c

h
 =

 20 ft.

10
20

40
20

DESCRIPTIONNo. DATE DESCRIPTIONNo. DATESHEET NAME

rtm
engineering consultants

rtm
engineering consultants

PR
O

JEC
T N

o
.

O
F     SH

EETS

PROJECT NAME
650 E. Algonquin Road
Suite 250
Schaumburg, IL 60173
Telephone: (847) 756 - 4180
www.rtmec.com

IL Design Firm: 184006777-0002



L I N C O L N     H I G H W A Y(I L     R O U T E     3 0)

S 85°34'34" E     252.80'

S 88°29'41" W     311.05'

N
 0

1°
56

'2
0"

 W
   

  1
03

.5
4'

S 
01

°5
4'

36
" E

   
  4

06
.3

0'

N 87°57'10" E     60.00'

N
 0

1°
56

'2
0"

 E
   

  3
28

.3
1'

12,870 SF
EV

ERBRO
O

K A
C

A
D

EM
Y732

732

733

732

732

733

733

733

732

732

733
732

733

732

733
733

732

733

734
733

732
731

730

733
732

731
730

R:731.53

R:731.22

R:731.27
R:731.27

731.99

732.34

733.71

733

733

734

732.65
733.75

733.60

733.40

733.27
730.21(M

E)

729.36(M
E)

733.26

729.14(M
E)

734.32 734.34

730.18(M
E)

726.46(M
E)

733.56

731.73(M
E)

733.99

732.71(M
E)

733.76

733.50(M
E)

732.29

732.65(M
E)

733.80

731.53

732.60(M
E)

R:733.80

734.00

733.32

733.80

R:731.90
R:731.76

732.43
732.53

732.53
732.53

732.22
732.15

732.22
732.10

C
:733.80

FL:733.30

C
:733.80

FL:733.30

C
:733.80

FL:733.30

C
:733.49

FL:732.99

C
:732.66

FL:732.16
C

:732.66
FL:732.16

C
:733.47

FL:732.97C
:733.39

FL:732.89
C

:733.74
FL:733.24

C
:733.74

FL:733.24

C
:733.42

FL:732.92
C

:733.36
FL:732.86

C
:733.22

FL:732.72

C
:733.18

FL:732.68

C
:732.75

FL:732.25

C
:732.65

FL:732.15

C
:733.47

FL:732.97
C

:733.31
FL:732.81

C
:733.74

FL:733.24
732.23

C
:732.99

FL:732.49

R:732.03

732

732

732

732

733

733

734

N
O

TES:
1.

PRO
PO

SED
 ELEV

A
TIO

N
S SHO

W
N

 O
N

 PRO
PO

SED
 C

URB LIN
ES A

RE FLO
W

 LIN
E

ELEV
A

TIO
N

S UN
LESS N

O
TED

 O
THERW

ISE. A
D

D
 0.50' TO

 O
BTA

IN
 TO

P O
F C

URB
ELEV

A
TIO

N
S.

2.
A

 C
O

N
STA

N
T SLO

PE SHA
LL BE M

A
IN

TA
IN

ED
 BETW

EEN
 SPO

T G
RA

D
ES.

3.
2%

 M
IN

IM
UM

 SLO
PE A

N
D

 3:1 M
A

XIM
UM

 SLO
PE IN

 TURF A
REA

S A
N

D
 1%

 M
IN

IM
UM

SLO
PE A

N
D

 5%
 M

A
XIM

UM
 SLO

PE IN
 PA

V
ED

 A
REA

S.

4.
RIM

 G
RA

D
ES A

LO
N

G
 C

URBS A
RE FLO

W
 LIN

E ELEV
A

TIO
N

S.

5.
TO

PO
G

RA
PHIC

 A
N

D
 BO

UN
D

A
RY SURV

EY PREPA
RED

 BY xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

LEG
EN

D
:

RID
G

E LIN
E

TO
P O

F C
URB

TO
P O

F W
A

LK

TO
P O

F PA
V

EM
EN

T

C
:XX.XX

W
:XX.XX

P:XX.XX

FLO
W

 LIN
E @

 D
EPRESSED

 C
URB

D
:XX.XX

FLO
W

 LIN
E

F:XX.XX
ED

G
E O

F PA
V

EM
EN

T
E:XX.XX

FIN
ISHED

 G
RO

UN
D

G
:XX.XX

M
A

TC
H EXISTIN

G
M

E:XX.XX

RIM
 G

RA
D

E
R:XX.XX

FIN
ISHED

 FLO
O

R
FF:XX.XX

1 FO
O

T C
O

N
TO

UR

5 FO
O

T C
O

N
TO

UR

G
RA

D
E

0.00

FLO
W

 A
RRO

W
O

V
ERFLO

W

EVERBROOK ACADEMY

FRANKFORT, IL
11125 WEST LINCOLN
HIGHWAY

PRELIMINARY
GRADING PLAN

User: mubbasher.hasham  File:  J:\2022\22.XCE.C01 Everbrook Academy - Frankfort, IL\09 DESIGN DRAWINGS\02-SHEETS\22.XCE.C01_GRADING PLAN.dwg   Time:   Jun 23, 2022 - 3:52pm

   
INTERNAL REVIEW04/26/190

   
   
   
   

   
   
   
   

   
   

C
4.0

SH
EET N

o
.

5

22.XC
E.C

01

( IN
 FEET )

G
R

A
PH

IC
 SC

A
LE

0

1 in
c

h
 =

 20 ft.

10
20

40
20

DESCRIPTIONNo. DATE DESCRIPTIONNo. DATESHEET NAME

rtm
engineering consultants

rtm
engineering consultants

PR
O

JEC
T N

o
.

O
F     SH

EETS

PROJECT NAME
650 E. Algonquin Road
Suite 250
Schaumburg, IL 60173
Telephone: (847) 756 - 4180
www.rtmec.com

IL Design Firm: 184006777-0002



 

10045 West Lincoln Highway, Frankfort, IL 60423 l phone: (815) 806-0300 l fax: (815) 806-0301 l www.reltd.com 
Page 1 of 2 

  
 

August 3, 2022 
To:  RTM Engineering Consultants  
  650 E. Algonquin Road 
  Schaumburg, IL 60173 

 
Attn:  M. Scott DiGilio, PE 

 
RE: Everbrook Academy 

Preliminary Engineering Review 1 
  Project Number 22-R0528.FF 

 
Dear M. DiGilio: 
 
On behalf of the Village of Frankfort, we reviewed the 4/26/2019 Preliminary Engineering Plans (received 7/06/22) for 
the above referenced project and provide the following comments. Please review the comments and revise the plans 
and supporting documents accordingly.  Italicized comments remain from previous correspondence. 

 
General 

1. It is the applicant’s responsibility to secure any and all outside approvals. The Village shall receive copies of 
submittals, coordination letters and the issued permit between the parties. It appears this project will require 
at least the following permits/approvals: 

a. IEPA NOI 
b. IEPA Sewer: Provide an estimate of anticipated Population Equivalent 
c. IDOT (if applicable) 
d. Fire Department  

2. It is the owner and owner’s consultant and contractors’ responsibility to verify that all existing and proposed 
utilities (electric, gas, telephone, underground cable, etc.) and related easements are shown on the plans and 
plat and that they will be relocated/removed accordingly with any and all required approvals. 

3. Clarify if the trees along the south portion of the parking lot will be preserved or removed with the proposed 
grading plan.  Verify all landscaping requirements with Village Staff.  

4. The owner and/or contractor are responsible for verifying soil and subgrade conditions for the project. 
5. The site includes an existing retaining wall system along Route 30.   

a. Verify the structural integrity of the system, especially in consideration of anticipated construction 
activities. 

b. Verify fence and handrail requirements with the Village Building Department. 
c. A long-term maintenance plan will be required with final engineering. 
d. Modifications to the wall for water and sewer services are proposed. 

6. The plans should be signed and sealed. 
7. The benchmark shall reference the datum; if NAVD 88 was not used, a conversion to NAVD is required. 
8. On Sheet C3.0, update/complete Note 4 (indicating the surveyor).  Similarly, update Sheet C4.0, Note 5. 

 
Parking 

9. Parking lot geometrics shall generally confirm to the recommendation of the Institute of Transportation 
Engineers; revise drive aisles to 26’ wide. 

10. Provide a maneuverability analysis (or Autoturn analysis) of the proposed site to demonstrate that emergency 
vehicles can enter, circulate, and exit the site with access to structures as required by the Fire Department. 
Assume that all parking stalls are occupied for this analysis. Fire trucks… 

mschwarz
Received



 

10045 West Lincoln Highway, Frankfort, IL 60423 l phone: (815) 806-0300 l fax: (815) 806-0301 l www.reltd.com 
Page 2 of 2 

11. Provide a maneuverability analysis (or Autoturn analysis) to demonstrate that the site will accommodate any 
and all anticipated delivery vehicles. 

12. Show detectable warnings at all locations where sidewalk meets a traveled way.    
13. Combination concrete curb and gutter shall be constructed along the edge of all pavement. 

 
Stormwater Conveyance 

14. Demonstrate how the 100-year storm will be conveyed to the stormwater facilities.  Provide arrows where 
ponded areas will overtop. 

 
Grading 

15. Please add the proposed finished floor elevation for the building. 
16. Label the berm with 3:1 maximum slope; all other grassed areas shall be 5:1 maximum. 
17. Paved areas shall be 1% minimum slope.  
18. Ponding depths in paved and grassed areas shall not exceed six and twelve inches, respectively.   
19. Provide additional spot elevations within the playground area to ensure proper drainage. 

 
Final Engineering  

20. Provide stormwater conveyance calculations for the storm sewer and overland flow routes.  
21. Any needs for drainage and/or utility easements will be confirmed during the final engineering review. 

 
Please note that this engineering review is based on the Village of Frankfort Design Standards (June 2009) and the 
Village of Frankfort Flood Regulations (February 2019) and excludes review of site, planning, zoning, lighting, 
photometric, signage and landscaping requirements of other Village ordinances and codes being performed by the 
Development Services Department and other Village designees.   
 
Should you have any questions or require any further information, please contact me at dwest@reltd.com or (815) 412-
2702.  At time of resubmittal of this project, please include a disposition letter responding to each listed comment as 
well as reference to revision on plan sheet or supporting document (where applicable). 

 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
Dana E. West, PE, CFM, CPESC 
Senior Project Manager 



111111111\lllllll\lllllllllll\llllllll\llll\ R2~~e~~fr~fa~t~394 
2

L
0

AUR,IE
0

MCPHILL1PS Wi 11 County Record.er 10P 
D t 02/ 2912008 Time 08.50.00 

CK a e $30.75 
Recording Fees: $0.00 
IL Rental Hsng. Support Program: 

ORDINANCE NO. 243 9 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A MAJOR PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

(PUD) CHANGE FOR PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RETAIL CENTER 
(PRAIRIE CROSSINGS PROFESSIONAL CENTER - 11125 W. LINCOLN HIGHWAY) 

WHEREAS, Carlson Brothers Inc., applicant; and REM Acquisitions, LLC and Prairie 
Banlc & Trust Company, as Trustee under Trust Agreement dated December 12, 2005, and 
known as Trust Number 05-142, owners; filed an application with the Village of Frankfort for a 
major PUD change to the Prairie Crossings retail center property, located at 11125 W. Lincoln 
Highway, Frankfort, Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, the property is located within the cmvorate limits of the Village of 
Frankfort, in Will and Cook Counties, Illinois, and is zoned B-4 Office District with a Special 
Use for a PUD; and 

WHEREAS, a timely Notice of Public Hearing on this application before the Plan 
Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals of the Village of Frankfort was published in the Star 
Newspaper announcing a Public Hearing on the application for a major PUD change for Lot 1 in 
New Lenox State Bank Subdivision of the Prairie Crossings development; and 

WHEREAS, at a time and place designated in such published notice, a Public Hearing 
was held before the Village of Frankfort Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals on said 
application; and 

WHEREAS, the Village of Frankfmt Plan Commission recommended to the Board of 
Trustees of the Village of Frankfort that the subject property be granted a major PUD change to 
accommodate the construction of two one-story office buildings, with conditions as enumerated 
in Section 1 of this ordinance and as generally depicted on Exhibits A-1 through A-6, attached. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD 
OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF FRANKFORT, WILL & COOK COUNTIES, 
ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS: 



SECTION 1. ZONING. 

PIN: 19-09-20-301-055-0000 
PARCEL 1 
LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART 
OF THE EAST y, OF THE SOUTHWEST V. OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, 
RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED NOVEMBER 8, 2002 AS DOCUMENT NO. R2002-192064 IN WILL 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
PARCEL2 
EASTMENT FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS EASEMENT 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN KOHL'S DEPARTMENT STORES, INC. A DELAWARE 
CORPORATION, AND ALSO NLSB, AN ILLINOIS BANKING CORPORATION, 
RECORDED JANUARY 17, 2003 AS DOCUMENT NO. R2003-12121 FOR TI-IE PASSAGE 
OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS OVER AND ACROSS THE DRIVEWAY 
AND ACCESS ROAD AS DESCRIBED IN SAID DOCUMENT. 
PARCEL3 
EASEMENT FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 CREATED BY ACCESS AGREEMENT 
BY AND BETWEEN NLSB AND NLSB, AS TRUSTEE UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF A 
TRUST AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 18, 1988, NOWN AS TRUST NO. 1183, 
RECORDED MARCH 24, 2004 AS DOCUMENT R2004-49251 FOR INGRESS AND 
EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF LOT 1 IN NEW LENOX STATE BANK PHASE 
2, RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. R2003-261229, IN WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS, 
commonly known as part of Lot 1 of the New Lenox State Bank Subdivision property, Prairie 
Crossings retail center, located at 11125 W. Lincoln Highway, in Frankfort, Will County, 
Illinois, is hereby granted a major PUD change, in accordance with the reviewed plans prepared 
by Arete 3 Ltd (Site Plan rev. 11.15.06; Landscape Plan, rev. 01.25.07; Elevations, rev. 04.02.07 
and 11.15.06; Tenant Signage, rev. 04.02.07; Photometric Plan, rev. 01.31.07) and subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. Staff approval of final Covenants and Restrictions with language stating attic space to be 
used for storage only 

2. Extension of the sidewalk along Route 30 to the eastern property line 
3. Retaining wall material to match existing material in bulk and color 
4. Inclusion ofa cut-off timer on the parking lot light located west of the southernmost trash 

enclosure 
5. Removal of any wall signage on the northern fa9ade of Building 1, should the building 

reve1i back to a multi-tenant orientation. 

SECTION 2. REPEALER 
That all other ordinances or pmis or provisions of ordinances of the Village of Frankfort 

in conflict with any of the provisions of this Ordinance shall be, and the same are hereby 
repealed. 

2 



SECTION3. SEVERABILITY 
This Ordinance and every provision thereof, shall be considered severable. In the event 

that any court of competent jurisdiction may find and declare any word, phrase, clause, sentence, 
paragraph, provision or section or part of a phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, provision or 
section of this Ordinance is void or unconstitutional, the remaining words, phrases, clauses, 
sentences, paragraphs and provisions and parts of phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, 
provisions and sections not ruled void or unconstitutional shall continue in full force and effect. 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DA TE 
This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, approval and 

publication in pamphlet fonn as provided by law. 

PASSED, this 22nd day of January, 2008, with four members voting AYE; no members 

voting NAY; and two members absent; the President not voting; with no members abstaining or 

passing and said vote being: 

KEVIN EGAN ABSENT 
TODD S. MORGAN AYE 
RICHARD TREV ARTHAN AYE 

APPROVED this 22nd day of January, 2008. 

ATTEST: 

fu.tu:..· f?lfhM r&rL<: 
KATE.ROMANI 
VILLAGE CLERK 

PREPARED BY AND RETURN TO: 

VILLAGE CLERK 
VILLAGE OF FRANKFORT 
432 W. NEBRASKA STREET 
FRANKFORT, IL 60423 

CYNTHIA CORSO HEATH 
THOMAS J. PARRILLO 
R. DOUGLAS WALKER 

..<;J1· 
c:;;~" VILLAGE PRESIDENT 

AYE 
ABSENT 
AYE 

3 



STATE OF ILLINOIS) 
) SS. 

COUNTY OF WILL) 

I, Alice Y. Schomburg, the Deputy Village Clerk of the Village of Frankfort, in the County 

and State aforesaid, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting Deputy Village Clerk of 

said Village, and as such official I do further certify that with the Village Clerk, I have the care and 

custody of all official records of the President and Board of Trustees of said Village, and that the 

foregoing document, attached hereto, being: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2439, AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A MAJOR PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT (PUD) CHANGE FOR PRAIRIE CROSSINGS RETAIL CENTER (PRAIRIE 
CROSSINGS PROFESSIONAL CENTER- 11125 W. LINCOLN HIGHWAY) 

is a true, correct and compared copy of the original of said document, 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my hand and the corporate seal of said 

Village this 22"d day of January, 2008. 

(Seal) 



E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 
B

A
N

K
 

I 
-
-
'
 

~
-
-
-
_
_
,
 

iQ
. FT

. 
:iQ

. F
T

. 

:iQ
,F

T
. 

rA
L

L
5

 

rA
L

L
S

 
rA

L
L

S
 

fA
LLs 

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 D
R

.IV
E

 
~1 

u
ir-t1

· 
j 

I 
I 

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
O

F
F

IC
E

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 #2 
:!:: B

,866 S
.F

. 

I 
I 

lO~U-
, -

I
' C

V
llV

E
P

 11eNCl!E~ 

~
R
.
A
l
,
E
P
5
E
A
l
'
l
N
O
 

ll' C
O

N
S

E
R

V
 ... l'\Q

,., 
E

A
S

E
>

..!E
,.,l' 

D
E

P
llI:H

i!D
 C

l.IJU
I@

 
K

.C
. S

T
 A

l.L
S

, T
Y

!' 
K

,C
. S

IC
N

. T
Y

i' 

_JJL_ 
a

re
te

' 3 ltd 
d

o
1

lg
n

 
g

i
o

u
p

 

1
M
.
c
~
~
-
O
-
t
»
4
 

~
~
-
I
C
<
J
!
 

r.&J.t:.1'1~""
'!lo!.J('l·11•0~ 

cnloJ.oom
 

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 

S
IT

E
 

P
L

A
N

 

P
R

A
IR

IE
 

C
R

O
S

S
rN

G
 

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 

C
E

N
T

R
E

 

F
R

A
N

K
.F

O
R

T
, 1L 

S
P

-1
 

1011 •: 
a
n
~
~
 

O
R

JO
T

N
: 

!O
'll"

ll 
R

E
V

. D
A

T
E

' 
\lllJ'!l<

I 
S

C
A

L
E

c 
A

S
 ,.,O

T
E

D
 

0 
<C

•"•<><l 1007 ••C
't'l\T

ll 
•\("'"""i•n

tw
""' 

c..--x.1-1161/ A
-1 



....... ,
,
,
~
,
,
 

0 
''""""O

V
 ... T

l>
n

'-"'U
"""" 

~~""'°'""'"''"'''I•-
;~:~::::g~:~~~ 

M~!!t/':;M~V&vr•m•n••v"' '"'L
' 

@
 

'"""'O
lV

U
G

•U
"T

"<
"'""'"" 

0 
''"""""_.. ........... ,. ... ., ..... ... 

W
f,rnLr••,,•u-

,.,.,., ............... . 

lF
"
V

•t1
1

''1
0

E
D

 
'*"u .. O

U
iO

\P
 

"
"
"
 r•cvrnr.n 

""'u
 ••cV

tO
<n 

11o•v.r•ovoorn,. 
l•O

H
J ,.._O

V
ll>

ll>
 

• 
"""'" """m

•rn
" '"''"'"""" 

~
 

1
m

m
.n

1
v

""'"""""'"""n
v

•n
 

"
'"

"
fn

l4
U

 nr•n<
>

'40H
••IT

I '"•U
U

X
:4T

•D
t<)"T

O
l"'IU

><I 
"1

 
...... I U

•
U

 •
•
[
 "U

T
 ~
•
l
C
U
l
.
A
 T

tC
 I
~
 T> .. >

U
l
r
t
~
 T

o'""''"" <
0

"
"
 

'"
"
'•<

c
o

"
"
"
 

''"'" ''"""'" 

' ............................ '
"
°
"
"
~
"
"
 '
"
"
"
'
"
~
 "' ""'" ....... ,..,, .. ,,..,.,, .......... ~

 ... "
'
"
"
'
'
~
"
 

:
"
~
;
.
~
;
;
:
"
"
'
"
 ,.,.,,....,_

,, 1
-•0

>
 "

"
' "

'"
"
"
'"

"
'"

' .,,,,_
.,,..,_

., '"
"
 O

''M
"
"
"
 ...... ,_

, .
.
.
.
.
.
.
 ~
,
 .
.
.
.
 "
U
"
'
<
~
•
l
 

~~;.:.~·.-:~" 
M

W
 W

O
••._,, ...... -

•• ~
 ,..., ·-

.... -
... """'""' ... -

·
·
"
~
'
 '" .. ~

~
·
 ••• .._

 "
"
'°

'"
 tt<

 

' '""'"''-''"' ... •
•
•
•
O
O
U
•
I
O
·
"
"
'
"
'
•
~
·
•
"
'
"
"
"
"
"
 .. "

'"
' 

• • ._.,..,..,.,,,.._,r,.,•r•oo.,o••••'"""'"_,"•0101""'...,"" 
..................... ,, .... ,, ... , ..... , ....................... . 
::..:.;:,:::;: ;.-:,,";!~,\';"''" .......... """"""'" '"'"" .. _ ..................................... "

"
"
•
<

O
P

. .
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
 . 

" ......................... "'""''"'""'"''"' ... '"''"''"-........ 
" .. , .... ,, ................. ,,.. ... 

~
 ... 

" .. ~
 ................................ ,, .... -... ...,"""""' ................... ,, .. ,, .. . 

. , .. , .. ,.,_. ................ ,. •. ., ......... ,,,,.,.,. .... ..,.. ... .,._,., .. ,,, .. ._,, ...... . 

A
N

N
U

A
L

, P
E

R
E

N
N

IA
L

, 
~
J
;
i
p
 G

R
O

U
N

D
C

O
V

E
B

 D
E

T
A

IL
 

11..E
P'°'lll E

-X
lS

T
lN

O
 S

T
O

N
E


R

E
T

A
IN

G
 W

'°'L
L

S
 A

l'lO
 

A
O

O
 S

T
O

N
E

 T
O

 E
X

IS
T

ll'lG
 

W
A

L
L

S
 '°'S 11..E

Q
U

IR
.E

O
· 

F
IE

L
D

 V
E

R
IF

Y
 

~
L
 

a
re

te
' 3 ltd 

O
e

1
lg

n
 

g
r
o

u
o

 

"
"
~
"
"
"
'
-
C
.
-
t
>
'
-
.
 

"'""'""""""'""" 
lO

.-l•;.1
;1

0
.,.. 

7
0

8
.l•1

·'l•O
h

 

"'" .. '""" 

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 

P
L

A
N

 

P
R

A
IR

IE
 

C
R

O
S

S
IN

G
 

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 

C
E

N
T

R
E

 

F
R

A
N

K
F

O
R

T
, IL

 

L
P

-1
 

m
n•· o

n
"' 

O
R

!G
IN

, 
O

'-<lJ.<)<; 
~
f
.
V
 

D
•T

E
· o

\ • .,,m
 

~
C
A
L
E
.
 
·
~
N
O
T
E
D
 

o 
:::io,,,.c.<

•1001"m
•l.m

 
""'""""'"'f''<ll 

E
.X

H
!f3!T

 A
-2. 



"'"'"''""'"'"'"" -
,
 

,.,.,c.,t 
"
'
'
"
"
"
~
'
 """ __ _ 

••r• '"o
' "'""'"" '""o 

n
• ,.,.., n

v
u

 
••"•to••",.''"""'--

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 N
O

R
T

H
 

E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

 
S

C
A

L
E

: 
1

1
6

"• r.o-

::::r: 

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 S
O

U
T

H
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
 

S
C

A
L

E
: 

118" • 
l'-0" 

""""""' 
'"'"C

U
I-----

o· .. •e
•u

 

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 E
A

S
T

 &
 

W
E

S
T

 E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

S
 

S
C

A
L

E
: 

l/B
" • 

1'·0" 
.. 

~
4
'
 

'lllrt'.. 

_JJlL 
a

re
 te

' 3 ltd 
i:le

1
1

c
n

 
o

r
o

u
o

 

''~'°"'''"'''c-:.-... 
tr....,P

tn. lln:::o 
O

'JJA'1 
>

:..·>
'1·1'!-0<

". 
'™

·ll''ll.'.l'<
 

""'")<,,., 

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 
E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
S

 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 #

I 

P
R

A
IR

IE
 

C
R

O
S

S
fN

G
 

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 

C
E

N
T

R
E

 
F

R
A

N
K

F
O

R
T

, IL
 

E
L

-1
 

IO
I!•·. 

~
1
'
0
1
 

O
IU

O
IN

: 
D

l·O
l.0

6
 

llf.V
 o ... T

'E
: 

ll-l·O
l-n

' 

~
C
M
.
I
!
:
 

A
S

 N
O

T
E

D
 

0 
~
"
'
1
0
<
•
 

lO
<lf ••[ft' l 

\
~
 

•11.•te1<
T

l•npol'C
l 



........ , 
~
,
.
,
,
.
,
,
.
 "''0

-

"'"""'"n
 .,,,., 

nu'"'"• "''""••m
e-. 

"
r' ""°" '"''"'"" •<>•n 

""""""" """' --
'"'""""'"~·· 
"""D

'""""'''' 
"'""'"' -·-·-· 

'"'"' '""'"' 
'"'"'n'" -

-
-
-
-

'""'""' 
""'""""'""<>--

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 N
O

R
T

H
 

E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

 
S

C
A

L
E

: 
llB

" • 
l"•O

" 
,. 

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 S
O

U
T

H
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
 

S
C

A
L

E
: 

llH
"-

!".O
" 

,. 
1

4
' 

,,,. .... ~
 

... · 
-
·
~
 

.. ,..,,,,..,""0-
.,. ... r.." '<

"'"· 
r 
'
"
"
 ""U

<
•<

'U
 ·
-

··-
~
,
 

"'""""'n
""" 

:~:·:,:;:"'.:'."''=:-.:::: 

~;~;~~~1::;• ~o 
" 

1;.:-·m· .. 

1{.'.''l.'\'I'. •. 

, k"li7! •. 

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 E

A
S

T
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
 

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 W
E

iS
T

 E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

 
S

C
A

L
E

: 
llB

" • 
1"-0" 

"' 
"' 

'" 
,. 

"' 
H

" 

~
l
L
 

a
re

te
' 3 ltd 

r.1
e

1
IQ

n
 

Q
r
o

u
o

 

'
!
"
~
S
a
.
"
"
w
.
.
.
.
c
,
,
,
.
,
,
~
 

,....,,."""""'""'"""'" 
1
t
)
!
·
l
<
l
1
·
•
l
!
.
'
.
l
~
 

!
Q
l
>
-
J
t
;
.
t
;
'
l
l
~
 

..... l<
O

!'" 

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 
E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
S

 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 #

2
 

P
R

A
IR

IE
 

C
R

O
S

S
IN

G
 

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 

C
E

N
T

R
E

 

F
R

A
N

K
F

O
R

T
. IL

 

'"' ,,, . .,. 

E
L

-2
 

!O
il•' 

0
1
1
9
~
 

O
IU

O
!N

, 
O
l
-
0
:
!
-
0
~
 

R
E

V
.D

"T
E

' 
l\.ll·0

6
 

S
C

A
L

E
' 

A
S

 N
O

T
'l;D

 
o 

ccr>n•C
><T1oa1 ••£

T
rlllll 

iU
 0

1
...,.. O

[!;t"'V
tt>

 

E
X

fl!E
31T !}-'-/ 



O
F

F
IC

E
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 #1 

N
O

R
T

H
 

&
 

S
O

U
T

H
 E

L
E

 
S

C
A

L
E

: 
llR

" • 
\'.O

" 

=
~
~
=
=
=
=
=
=
±
=
=
~
=
=
=
-
=
=
~
=
=
l
e
=
=
=
 

I 
I 

O
F

F
IC

E
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 #

2
 

N
O

R
T

H
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
 

S
C

A
L

F
.: 

JIB
"• 1'-0'' 

S
IG

N
 A

G
E

 
M

A
T

R
IX

 
B

U
IL

D
rN

G
 l 

T
Y

P
IC

A
L

 S
lO

N
A

C
lE

 

T
O

T
A

L
 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

:! 

T
V

P
IC

 ... L s
1

m
; ... 0

E
 

T
Y

i'. T
E

N
A

N
T

 

'l'O
T.O

.L 

O
N

E
 S

IG
N

 P
!?.ll..'llT

T
E

D
 P

!;R
 
~
T
O
R
E
 fn

O
N

T
 ... O

E
-

N
O

T
 T

O
 

E
X

C
C

E
O

 !.O
 S

Q
U

M
IE

 FO
O

T
 
P
E
~
 L

IN
E

A
R

 fO
O

T
O

F
 E

A
C

H
 

S
T

O
IU

\F
R

O
N

T
llO

E
 

N
O

R
 T

H
 &

 
S

O
U

T
H

 E
L

E
V

A
 T

l O
N

 
L

S
 

F
T

. O
P

 
I ;

.
L
L
O
W
A
Q
L
~
 M

IE
ll 

\ 
..... E

 ... U
•IN

O
 

S
T

O
IU

!F
ll.O

N
T

 

'"'"""'" 
I 

IO
!O

Q
F

T
, 

I 
l0

5
Q

, l'T
 

N
O

R
T

H
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
 

L
N

. F
T

.O
F

 
S

T
O

R
..llF

R
C

lN
T

 

J!J'.O
" 

ll0"-0" 

JO
S

Q
. F

T
 

~
S
Q
.
 F

T
 

!j0
5

Q
o

.H
, 

1
0

5
0

.H
 

N
O

 S
IG

N
A

G
E

 A
L

L
O

W
E

D
 O

N
 T

H
E

 
S

O
U

T
H

 E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

 O
F

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 #J. 

' I 

'" 

P
L

 
A

S
E

 N
O

T
E

 
!
F
~
U
I
L
D
I
N
G
 I B

E
 U

T
IL

IZ
E

D
 A

S A
 

M
 

L
T

l·T
E

N
A

N
T

 B
U

T
L

D
rN

G
 S

IG
N

A
G

E
 W

IL
L

 
N

 
T

 B
E

 A
L

L
O

V
IE

D
 O

N
 T

H
E

 N
O

R
T

H
 

E
L

. V
A

T
IO

N
 (F

A
C

T
N

G
 R

O
U

T
E

 JO
) A

N
D

 
S
l
~
A
G
E
 C

A
L

C
U

L
A

T
IO

N
S

 A
N

D
 S

n
'L

E
 

S
H

\U
L

D
 M

A
T

C
H

 T
H

A
T

 O
F

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 2 

__J)Jl_ 
a

re
te

' 3 ltd 
d

a
1

1
g

1
1

 
g

r
o

u
o

 

11 .. ~ ..,_
,.,,,.... c"'°'"""' 

,.._..,...,.....,, ..,,.,1 
10o!.J'1"'W

l<
>

" 
l
"
J
&
-
J
<
;
·
l
1
"
'
.
l
~
 

C
!'O

'o.l<
un 

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 

T
E

N
A

N
T

 
S

IG
N

 A
G

E
 

fo
r 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
 I 

&
 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 2 

P
R

A
IR

IE
 

C
R

O
S

S
IN

G
 

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 

C
E

N
T

R
E

 

F
R

A
N

K
F

O
R

T
, IL

 

S
D

-2
 

JO
U

"' 
O

flO
' 

O
R

JQ
IN

' 
I \..{l).O

O
 

!tE
V

. o
;.T

E
' 

"4
-0

l-0
7

 

s
c
;.L

E
; 

;,s
 N

O
T

E
D

 

0 
~~'!'!'.!.1.o.;:_?"~ l ,,., 

E
X

H
1t31T A

·S
 



!"" ·-,,.,," ooom
 .. , 

I 
,, 

... 
·
·
·
-
~
·
"
"
"
"
'
 

~
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
 

..., 

· I : I :::: : .. :::: :::.:: : .: I : 
"
'
 ...,,_

,,, 
~
 
... _

,,,, "
"
''"

 
~
<
r
>
 

...,. 

1;;.,.,.,.,.J·;, 

'",, , .... ,, .. ,._
 .............. . 

! ............. . 
.... 

,
.
,
,
.
,
.
.
.
,
_
,
~
 ..... ,,,_

 ... ,,..,, .. 
. ,. ... _., .. 

~
 ........... , .... ,, ........... .. 

~lTf;~~.~~:: :: 
... ~

 ............. ,. '" 

..... .... ,, ....... ,,, 
"'''"""'f....,..•M

'I 
····--· ... ·········---· .. 
~:~~('~I~.:. .. " 

1.'.:'.I t· I 

L
IG

H
T

 F
IX

T
U

R
E

 A
!B

 
N

;, 
L

IG
H

T
 F

IX
T

U
R

E
 C

 

L
IG

H
T

 P
O

L
E

 D
E

T
A

IL
 

'"" 

N
" 

D
E

C
O

R
A

T
IV

E
 D

E
T

A
IL

 

----
-

-

"\ "i 
.. J 

"l ··I ... i'~ \,, 
'"1 

N
O

T
E

· 

' 
"
I'"

 , .. ... 

:1 \i 'I ... .. 

~] 
.. 

" :: 
"' 

"' . 
'" 

-
·1 .: 

C
U

T
 •O

F
F

 T
IM

E
R

 U
O

H
T

5
 W

IL
i. U

~
 L

IT
 F

R
O

M
 O

U
fiK

 \JN
T

!l .. q 0
0

1
.M

 

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 P
H

O
T

O
M

E
T

R
lC

 P
L

A
N

 
20' 

4
0

' 
i 60

' 
N

O
R

T
H

 

n 
!1~ I I I I I I B

· 

\ ... \ ... 

!;<
'"'"" 
... 

:: :
~
 

_JJlL_ 
m

ete' 3 ltd 
O

t!
lllJ

ll 
lllO

U
P

 

\W
5

"
"
"
"
\li"

"
C

.-O
... 

"-"""' ........ Ii>''' 
l
'
0
~
;
.
1
;
.
l
;
i
<
J
"
"
 

1
"
4
·
l
<
1
·
•
1
•
n
~
.
 

-
•
!
=

m
 

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 

P
H

O
T

O
M

E
T

R
IC

 
P

L
A

N
 

P
R

A
IR

IE
 

C
R

O
S

S
IN

G
 

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
 A

l 
C

E
N

T
R

E
 

F
R

A
N

K
F

O
R

T
, IL

 

P
H

-1
 

JO
O

•, 
O
l
H
~
 

O
llJ0

1
N

; 0
1

>
-n

.0
6

 
R

..E
V

. O
A

T
);; 

O
l·ll.0

1
 

SC
,o.L

E
' 

"
5

 N
O

T
1m

 

0 
"'""""•" l'"

'' ·
~
 

J 
'"

 
'U

.";>
'"'•C

l!O
V

!D
 



H. Workshop: 11031 W. Lincoln Highway- Everbrook Academy Preschool/Daycare

Mike Schwarz provided the staff report. Briefly summarized, he stated: 
• The proposed use would require a Major Change to two underling PUD's

including the Prairie Crossings PUD and an older PUD that is designated on the

2001 Zoning Map.

• A Special Use Permit would be required for a daycare/preschool use.
• The business is also proposing to open at 6:30 a.m., which is outside of the

Village's normal business hours of 7:00 a.m. to 11 :00 p.m. Extended hours of

operation require approval of a Special Use Permit.

• The proposed site would be heavily landscaped on the north, east and south

sides.

• A small portion of the site (the southwest corner) is part of the Prairie Crossings

PUD, which contains the Kohl's building and other tenants attached to that

building. The majority of the subject property is part of a separate, much older

PUD.

• The daycare/preschool center building would measure 12,870 square feet.

• The property is zoned B-4 Office District.
• The Zoning Ordinance does not contain any use standards specifically for

daycare/preschool facilities.

• The back of the proposed building would be visible from Route 30 and meets

the required setback from Route 30.

• The Zoning Ordinance requires 1 parking space for each employee plus 1 space

for every 10 children. The building would have a maximum capacity of 15 0

children, aged 6 weeks to 12 years, requiring 15 parking spaces. A total of 41

parking spaces are illustrated on the site plan.

• The Village had a previous daycare proposal in 2019 for the Learning

Experience. At that time, the staff referenced the parking requirements

suggested by the American Planning Association (AP A). The parking provided

by the proposed Everbrook Academy daycare/preschool meets the Zoning

Ordinance requirements as well as exceeds the parking recommended by the

APA.

• There would be no curbside drop-off of children; parents would park and escort

children inside.

• The southern row of parking for 15 spaces should be dedicated to employees.

Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals - April 28, 2022 8 







Mr. Wilkins stated that a ground sign definitely would be sought for the 

daycare/preschool and that business would be negatively impacted without one. 

Commissioner Knieriem asked if the Sign Code would allow for a wall sign on the 

west side of the building. Mike Schwarz stated that it would not. He stated that a wall 

sign on a fayade that does not face a public right-of-way or have frontage on a main 

point of access of ingress/egress in the property would be a deviation from the Code. 

Commissioner Knieriem said he would prefer that all wall signage on the west 

elevation be eliminated. 

Commissioner Guevara stated his concern regarding a fence being placed along Route 

30. He noted that although the site will have landscaping, the landscaping will be

located lower on the hillside such that the fencing will still be visible from Route 30.

He noted that landscaping should be added in front of the fence to screen it as much as

possible, even if this meant exceeding the requirements in the Landscape Ordinance.

Chair Rigoni noted that she felt that the business opening at 6:30 am would be 

acceptable. 

Commissioner Knieriem stated that the bank building has aesthetically appealing light 

poles. He asked when the applicant wanted to begin construction. Mr. Williams 

responded that they would like to move forward quickly, proceeding to a public 

hearing in June and obtaining Village Board approval shortly thereafter. They hope to 

begin construction in September, with a roof installed before winter. There would be 

a 9-month construction time, in order to open by June 2023. 

Chair Rigoni asked ifEverbrook would have vans on site for children. Mr. Williams 

responded that they would not; families would drop off and pick up children. 

Mr. Williams asked when the public hearing would occur. Chair Rigoni noted that 

staff would determine whether a second workshop would be needed or if it would 

proceed directly to a public hearing. Mike Schwarz noted that May 26th would be the 

soonest available meeting date for a public hearing. 

Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals -April 28, 2022 II 



mschwarz
Text Box
Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals - June 9, 2022



There were none. 

Chair Rigoni asked the applicant that for the next time changes to the plans be clearly 
marked. 

mschwarz
Text Box
Minutes of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals - June 9, 2022



1 
 

                                          

Planning Commission / ZBA                                                                                                                                                                                                   S                                   August 25, 2022 

 
Project: Oltman Variances  
Meeting Type:  Workshop  
Request: 3 Variances for proposed single-family home 
Location: 240 Center Road 
Applicant:  Gander Builders  
Prop. Owner:  Dustin Oltman   
Representative: Jarrett Lecas 
 
Site Details 
 

Lot Size: 38,350 sq. ft. (0.88 acres)                             Figure 1. Location Map     
PIN: 19-09-28-227-013-0000 
Existing Zoning:  R-2   
Proposed Zoning: N/A 
Buildings / Lots: 1 house w/ attached garage 
Proposed house: 4,837 square feet 
Building Height:  31’ 1 ¼” 
 
 
 
 
Adjacent Land Use Summary:  
 

 
Project Summary  
 

The applicant, Jarrett Lecas, seeks to construct a 4,837 square-foot house on the vacant property at 240 Center 
Road for the Oltman family.  A house formerly existed on this site but has since been demolished and cleared.  
 
The proposed house would require three (3) variances:  
 

1. To permit a reduced side yard setback from 10’ to 5’.  
2. To permit non-masonry siding that covers less than 100% of the 1st floor.  The applicant is proposing a 

mixture of three primary materials, including 4” Hardie Board lap siding (wood composite), 6” metal 
longboard siding and painted white brick.  

3. Metal roofs are not permitted on single family homes except as accent features, such as roof areas above 
bay windows.  The applicant is proposing a mix of metal and shingle roof material over the primary 
structure.  

 
 
 
 

 Land Use Comp. Plan Zoning 

Subject Property     Residential Single-Family R-2 

North Residential  Single-Family R-2 

South  Residential Single-Family R-2 

East Residential Single-Family R-2 

West Residential Single-Family R-2 



2 
 

Attachments 
• Location Maps, prepared by staff (VOF GIS) scales 1:2,500 and 1:1,000 
• Plat of Survey of existing site, prepared by Studnicka and Associates, Ltd. dated 12/17/15 
• Color rendering of front building elevation with primary materials listed 
• Variance findings of fact, submitted by applicant  
• Photographs of property, taken by staff on August 17, 2022 
• Site Plan, received by staff on July 26, 2022 
• Elevation drawings and floorplans, received by staff on July 7, 2022 

    
Analysis 
 

Staff offers the following points for discussion:  

1. The R-2 zone district requires a minimum lot size of 15,000 square feet, 100’ width and 150’ depth.  The 
existing lot is 38,350 square feet in area, 100’ wide and approximately 370.4’ deep and is therefore 
conforming regarding lot size and width.   

2. The Zoning Ordinance requires that all houses in the R-2 zone district provide a 10’ minimum side yard 
setback (total of 25’ on both sides) (Article 6, Section B, Part 1).  The proposed house would be 
constructed 5’ from the north side property line, requiring a variance.  

3. The Zoning Ordinance requires that all houses in the R-2 zone district have the 1st floor entirely 
constructed of masonry (Article 6, Section B, Part 2 (g)(2)).  The proposed house would be constructed of 
three primary materials: 6” metal longboard, 4” Hardie Board lap siding and painted brick, requiring a 
variance.  The proposed 6” metal longboard siding has a surface that closely resembles wood.  To staff’s 
knowledge, no variances have been granted in Frankfort for the specific metal siding being proposed for 
this house, although this building material is gaining popularity for all types of new construction.   

4. The Zoning Ordinance prohibits metal roofs on single-family homes except for accent features above bay 
windows (Article 6, Section B, Part 4 (i)).  The proposed house would have both a metal roof and shingled 
roof over the primary structure, requiring a variance.  The metal vs. shingle material is about an even split.  

5. The Zoning Ordinance requires that all garages over 3 cars in size be side-loaded.  The proposed 4-car 
garage is side-loaded to comply with this requirement.  The garage itself is 1,134 square feet in area.  

6. The Zoning Ordinance requires that the minimum gross floor area of a two-story dwelling in the R-2 
district be at least 2,600 square feet. The proposed house measures 4,837 square feet, complying with 
this requirement.  

7. The Zoning Ordinance permits a maximum lot coverage of 20% for two-story homes in the R-2 zone 
district.  The proposed house with attached garage amounts to 3,241 square feet, which is an 8.4% lot 
coverage, complying with this requirement.  There are two existing accessory structures (sheds) 
measuring 257 SF and 496 SF, although these are proposed to be demolished.  If these structures 
remained after the house was constructed, the lot coverage would be approximately 10.4%.  

8. The Zoning Ordinance permits a maximum impervious lot coverage of 40% in the R-2 zone district.  Due to 
the large size of the lot, the total impervious square footage calculation was not requested of the 
applicant and the impervious lot coverage is estimated to be significantly less than 40%.  

9. The basement is 100% of the area of the first floor (not including the area of the attached garage).  The 
Zoning Ordinance requires a basement size of at least 80% of the area of the first floor, meeting this 
requirement.  

 



3 
 

10. There would be two (2) trees removed to construct the new house, including a 6” pin oak and 42” 
hackberry.  Of these trees, the hackberry is classified as a “preservation tree” in the Landscape Ordinance.  
Preservation trees must be mitigated on-site at a 1”:1” ratio of tree caliper.  Preservation trees must be 
replaced with one of the “overstory tree” species as listed in Appendix A of the Landscape Ordinance.  
Replacement trees shall be at least 2.5” caliper upon planting.  In this instance, 42”/2.5” = 17 overstory 
replacement trees required.  If larger caliper replacement trees were planted, the total number of 
replacement trees needed would be reduced. Page 11 of the Landscape Ordinance notes that “Village 
staff may vary the number of replacement trees required depending on the desirability of the existing 
tree”.  Staff has included site photos that include the hackberry.  

 
Affirmative Motions (future public hearing only) 
 

1. Recommend the Village Board approve the variance from Article 6, Section B, Part 1 of the Village of 
Frankfort Zoning Ordinance to permit a north side yard setback of 5’, whereas at least 10’ is required 
with a total of 25’ on both sides, resulting in a deficiency of 5’, for the property located at 240 Center 
Road, in accordance with the reviewed plans, public testimony and Findings of Fact.    
 

2. Recommend the Village Board approve the variance request for first-floor building materials to allow 
non-masonry siding on the property located at 240 Center Road, in accordance with the reviewed 
plans, public testimony and Findings of Fact.  

 
3. Recommend the Village Board approve a variance from Article 6, Section B, Part 4 (i) to permit a 

metal roof on a residential structure, in accordance with the reviewed plans, public testimony and 
Findings of Fact.  

 
 
 
 



OA
K 

ST

CE
NT

ER
 R

D

LIN
DE

N 
DR

AS
H 

ST

PFAFF DR

PACIFIC ST

UTAH ST E SAUK TRL

OREGON ST

W SAUK TRL

CHURCH ST

CANADIAN RR

SANGMEISTER RD
0 250 500125

Feet

µ
240 Center Road - Proposed House (variances)



CE
NT

ER
 R

D

AS
H 

ST

0 100 20050
Feet

µ
240 Center Road - Proposed House (variances)











North property line

North property line



North 
property 
line

Hackberry



Hackberry

South property line



cgruba
Received



cgruba
Received








	August 25, 2022b
	August 25, 2022 Agenda Packet
	August 25, 2022
	August 25, 2022 Agenda Packet
	PC Minutes 8.11.22 DRAFT
	Binder 1
	Staff Report for PC-ZBA PUBLIC HEARING 8-25-22 + Attachments - Reduced File Size
	Everbrook Frankfort Revised Site Plan 062422.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	AS1.0


	Everbrook Frankfort Revised Site Details 062422.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	AS2.1


	Everbrook Frankfort Revised Exterior Elevations 062422.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A5.0


	Everbrook Frankfort Revised Material Board 062422.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Everbrook Material Board (2)-A5.1


	Everbrook Frankfort Revised Sign Design Package 062422.pdf
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4

	Everbrook Academy Frankfort - Tree Preservaton 220523 TP1 color.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	tree preservation


	Everbrook Academy Frankfort Revised Landscape Plan - color with photos.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	L1


	EVERBROOK Frankfort Preliminary Engineering 062422.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C0.0 PRELIMINARY COVER SHEET
	C1.0 PRELIMINARY DEMOLITION PLAN
	C2.0 PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN
	C3.0 PRELIMINARY UTILITY PLAN
	C4.0 PRELIMINARY GRADING PLAN



	Binder1-Oltman
	1. Staff Report PH 8.25.22 (240 Center)
	2. GIS map 1-2500
	3. GIS map 1-1000
	4. Survey
	5. Color rendering w materials 7.26.22
	6. Findings of Fact - Variance
	8. Site Plan 7.26.22
	9. Submittal 7.7.22




	Catalog Number 3: 
	Notes 3: 
	Type 3: 
	Color Temp 6: 
	Distribution 6: 
	Voltage 6: 
	Mounting 7: 
	Mounting 8: 
	Control Options 6: 
	Control Options 7: 


